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Chairman’s Statement
TR EE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board") of directors (the “Director(s)") of Hailan
Holdings Limited (the “Company” or “Hailan Holdings”, together with its
subsidiaries, collectively known as the “Group”), | am pleased to present the
audited financial results for the year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Reporting
Period’).

In the first half of 2020, despite the overall economy has been hindered by the
novel coronavirus epidemic, with the PRC Government's rapid response to the
epidemic, in respect of the monetary environment, the relatively sufficient
money supply provided more favourable monetary support for economic
development due to thrice-lowered reserve requirement ratio (RRR) by the
central bank as well as the reduced pressure on different markets and
enterprises as a result of twice-lowered mortgage interest rate. In respect of the
policy trends, the overall real estate market regulation policy would remain
continuity and stability. At the end of the year, the position of government’s
policy of "housing properties for accommodation, not speculation” was clearly
emphasised during the conference of the Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural
Development, the Politburo’s meeting and the Central Economic Work
Conference. The central government would also pay more attention to
preventing and resolving financial risk in the future, especially the “three red
lines” regarding the fund monitoring and financing management rules for real
estate enterprises in August, which is conducive to the healthy expansion of
companies, such as the Group, whose interest-bearing debt threshold is in a
safe range. In respect of regional development, in the second quarter of 2020,
the effective control of the domestic epidemic and the free trade policy and
supportive policy implemented in Hainan, which were beneficial to the
development of Hainan Province, resulted in a significant increase in the
number of tourists to Hainan and a surge of sales volume of real estates in
Hainan Province.

During the Reporting Period, contracted sales of the Group amounted to
RMB2,309.4 million, representing an increase of 3.2 times as compared to the
corresponding period in 2019. Contracted saleable gross floor area (“GFA”) was
approximately 171,961.5 square metres (“sq.m.”), representing an increase of
approximately 6.7 times over the corresponding period last year. The
contracted average selling price ("ASP") was approximately RMB13,429.8 per
sg.m., representing a decrease of about 45.9% over the corresponding period
last year. The increase in contracted sales and contracted saleable GFA were
mainly due to the Group undertook new development projects in Sanya City
and Haikou City of Hainan Province, Zhanjiang City and Foshan City of
Guangdong Province and Nanning City of Guangxi Province in the year.
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Chairman’s Statement
FREHREE

Looking ahead, the global economy will remain unstable under the Sino-US
trade disputes. In 2020, however, China is expected to become the only
economy that achieves positive growth among the world’s major economies
in 2020 with strong development momentum. In terms of national strategy,
the Group will continue to develop projects in Sanya and Danzhou, Hainan
Province. By virtue of Hainan Island’s premium climate and environment as
well as the state policies, which support the business and development in
Hainan Province, we remain optimistic about the long-term development of
real estate operation in Hainan Province. We believe that the location of our
valued assets, excellent track record of property management and property
construction execution in Hainan Province, the PRC, and the highly supportive
industry development policy in Hainan Province will help sustain the Group's
business growth and development in Hainan Province in future.

To further promote the sustainable development of the Group, we have been
exploring different exciting investment opportunities. Since 2019, other than
Hainan Province, the Group has started to expand to Foshan, Zhanjiang and
Meizhou in Guangdong Province for investment and development, and in
2020, the coverage has extended to Nanning and Qinzhou in Guangxi while
deepening Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area and laying out
the Western Guangdong Area. Meanwhile, the Group has invested in the
projects located in Long Island and Mountain View City, the U.S. Bay Area. The
projects are still under development and thus no revenue from sales of
properties is generated from such projects during the Reporting Period. It is
anticipated that such projects will contribute to the Group to a certain extent
in the coming 2 years.

The management has formulated the future development plan. By basing in
Hong Kong, delving into the PRC market, expanding the market in North
America and spreading global footprints, it will further promote the
development of the Group’s business and create the best return for
shareholders.

Finally, I would like to express my sincere gratitude on behalf of the Board to all

our staff for their hard work, and my heartfelt thanks to investors, customers
and business partners for their strong and continuous support to the Group.

Zhou Li
Chairperson

24 March 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis

S A LA T

BUSINESS REVIEW

Overall Performance

For the Reporting Period, the revenue and gross profit of the Group were
approximately RMB720.7 million and RMB326.0 million, representing an
increase of approximately 103.2% and 160.2% as compared with 2019
respectively. Profit attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company was
approximately RMB64.0 million, while the Company recorded loss attributable

SE5 ]
L

MEE - AEBNREREFS
7207 BBTRARME360BE T
2019 G 1 A1 49 103.2% K2 160.2% ©
HEMBEFHNABARB40EGETL  MEFL
BEARFEERRELMBEOARK 1808

DRI AR
7RI
AN R AR

to the equity shareholders of the Company of approximately RMB18.9 million 87t - FIREARER] B AR 215 (20194 :
during last year. Basic earnings per share was RMB21 cents (2019: losses per ~ ERREBEBARK 65 ) ©
share of RMB6 cents).
As at 31 December
R12A31H

2020 2019 Changes
Performance Highlights REARE 2020 20194 2
Contracted sales (RMB million)? GHHE(AREBEL)® 2,309.4 550.7 319.4%
Contracted saleable GFA (sq.m.)* SAHEEEmE (FHK)3 171,961.5 22,1920 674.9%
Contracted average selling price AEHTFHEE(TEHEE]

("“ASP”") (RMB/sq.m.)** (AR SEHkK) 23 13,429.8 24817.0 -45.9%
Revenue' (RMB million) WaR (ARBBEET 720.7 354.7 103.2%
Among which: sales of properties Hep o YEHEE
— Revenue from properties delivered — BRI ERE

(RMB million)’ (AR¥BEST)' 715.1 349.7 104.5%
— GFA of properties delivered (sq.m.) — ERNYEREEARR (FHK) 27,114.6 12,263.7 121.1%
— ASP of properties delivered —EXNMETFHERE

(RMB/sq.m.) (AREFHK) 26,373.2 285149 ~7.5%
Rental income (RMB million)’ HEBRAARBEERL) 5.6 50 12.0%
Losses on changes in fair value of REMELNTEZBER

investment properties (RMB million) (AREBHET) (1.8) (22.7) -92.1%
Gross profit (RMB million) EMARBBEET) 326.0 1253 160.2%
Profit (Loss) for the year FEmN(BE)

— Attributable to owners (RMB million) —HEAEIEAREBEET) 64.0 (18.9) 4386%
— Attributable to non-controlling interests ~ — FEF5E AR HE 25 FE (L

(RMB million) (ANR¥Ba®ET) (32.1) (37.7) -14.9%
Total assets (RMB million) BEEANR¥EBET) 7,543.3 49434 52.6%
Cash and bank balances (including cash and fﬁi&ﬁﬁﬁmﬁ?

cash equivalents and restricted cash) (BIEREMREEEBY UK

(RMB million) XREE)AREBAST) 1,031.5 8775 17.5%
Total equity (RMB million) wED(ARBAET 1,914.0 21172 -9.6%
Key financial ratios FEBKHEE
Gross profit margin® ESE 45.2% 35.3% 99 pp.

(B
Gearing ratio® BEBEES 91.6% 15.7% 75.9 p.p.
(B
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Management Discussion and Analysis
B SR B AT

Notes: Kt

1. Representing the amount of income after deduction of sales related taxes. 1. MR IHEARRATIREROBA SR -

2. Excluding the GFA of car parking spaces. 2. T R B ARG AR EAE o

3. Pursuant to the agreement between the shareholders of Danzhou Shuanglian, one of the 3. IREBEMNERR R 2 BaiH= - ENEBREP -2
former shareholders of Danzhou Shuanglian shall continue to manage, develop and PR REEEIE AR LAENZEEMN KA
undertake fully the risk and reward of Danzhou Phase I. The acquisition of Danzhou R ER - EMNEBAOKEE EEEBSHAR
Shuanglian has been accounted for as a business combination with Danzhou Shuanglian fully MmEMNEBBKEBRIBEE 2R EAEENS
consolidated into our Group's consolidated financial statements from the date of acquisition. AFBHRE - B it ARAEETESZ
As the Group does not share any risks and rewards relating to Danzhou Phase | pursuant to Re g BRAE N — B AR RE AR AT LB R B R - kAR
the abovementioned agreement, the net profit or loss, net assets or liabilities arising from M—EAFEENERFHE FEEXEE 25
Danzhou Phase | are wholly attributable to the non-controlling interests in the Group's AREEBGEERLEMEERE RN A NGEE
consolidated statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and the HREBRANNIEERER - KTHmBENTE  AD
consolidated statements of changes in equity. Contracted sales of Danzhou Phase | is AR AN —EEHHE -

excluded in this analysis for discussion purpose.

4. Gross profit margin: Gross profit + revenue x 100% 4. EFE - EF| - WEE X 100%
5. Gearing ratio: Total bank and other borrowings + Total equity x 100% 5. BEAGEE  RITREMMEREE - 2z < 100%
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Management Discussion and Analysis

S A LA T

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT
Contracted sales

For the Reporting Period, the Group recorded contracted sales of
approximately RMB2,309.4 million, representing an increase of approximately
3.2 times as compared with 2019. The contracted saleable GFA was 171,961.5
sg.m. in 2020, representing an increase of approximately 6.7 times year-on-
year. The ASP of contracted sales was RMB13,429.8 per sq.m., representing a
decrease of approximately 45.9% year-on-year.

The increase in contracted sales and contracted saleable GFA was mainly
because the Group undertook new development projects in Sanya City and
Haikou City of Hainan Province, Zhanjiang City and Foshan City of Guangdong
Province and Nanning City of Guangxi Province in the year.

ek

TR

RBEPRRE  AEESRESELHEENARE
230904 H & 7T 20194 [E 1 jn 493213
2020 F A X SHEIREMIE R 171,961.5F K
BEEMB67E - AHEEFHEBAEET
FARAREE 13429877 » RILLRL A 4945.9% °

o

BHHERANHEERERRENIEZAR
AEBRAFEEBHE =M MEAT - &
R TIm R ILTH oA MBS M TH
MFEIEAR -

For the year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE

2020 2019
2020 5 20194
Contracted Contracted Contracted Contracted
GFA sales GFA sales
=) al

BEEE BHHE EEmE BHHE

Project City sg.m. RMB'million sq.m. RMB'million

HE W FERK ARWEER FhAKk ARBBEET

Sanya Phoenix Aqua City Left Shore Sanya 230.6 8.4 14711 526
Z SRR AR =&
Sanya Phoenix Aqua City South Shore Sanya

Phase I &I 28,366.5 1,139.0 9,804.0 384.1
=hREEKSEE SR =

Haikou Phoenix Aqua City Phase | Haikou 14,210.7 249.4 39211 67.8
78 0 BLEKSH — 53 pEqn

Zhanjiang City Binjianghua Fu Zhanjiang 60,470.0 413.2 6,995.8 46.2
BT 5% 91

Jingzhuya Court Foshan 8,825.2 121.0 - -
REH G

Hailan Jin Zhong Fu Nanning 59,858.5 378.4 - -
GRS BT e

171,961.5 2,309.4 22,1920 550.7

WEEIA R A 20204 9



Management Discussion and Analysis

B B i B A

REVENUE FROM SALES OF PROPERTIES

For the Reporting Period, the GFA of delivered properties increased to 27,114.6
sg.m., representing an increase of approximately 1.2 times as compared with
2019, which was mainly attributable by the projects in the city of Sanya and
Haikou. The revenue from sales of properties was approximately RMB715.1
million, representing an increase of approximately 104.5% as compared with
2019 and accounting for 99.2% of total revenue, which continues to be the
main source of revenue and growth momentum for the Group.

Completed projects held for sale

Completed projects held for sale represents completed GFA remaining
undelivered at the end of each reporting period. At the year ended all
completed properties held for sale are located in the PRC.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 4 completed property projects
amounted to RMB374.9 million, representing a decrease of 43.7% as compared
with 2019.

Projects held for future development and projects under
development

Projects held for future development and projects under development are
intended to be held for sale after completion. As at 31 December 2020, the
Group had 10 property projects under development which amounted to
RMB4,625.1 million, representing an increase of 60.5% as compared with 2019.

Land bank

During the Reporting Period, the Group acquired 4 land parcels located at
Nanning City and Qinzhou City of the Guangxi Province, Foshan City of the
Guangdong Province and Nanjing City of the Jiangsu Province, respectively, in
the PRC with a planned GFA of approximately 712,175.6 sq.m. in total.

PROPERTY INVESTMENTS
Rental income

The rental income of the Group for the Reporting Period amounted to
approximately RMB5.6 million, representing the leasing of the serviced
apartments and car parking spaces located at Sanya Phoenix Aqua City Left
Shore and the shops located at Danzhou Phase I.

10 HAILAN HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis
B B o B A

Investment properties

As at 31 December 2020, the investment properties of the Group represent the
car parking spaces held by the Group for rental purpose. As at 31 December
2020, the carrying amount of investment properties was approximately
RMB105.2 million, representing a decrease of approximately 1.7% as compared
with 2019, mainly due to the decrease in fair value of investment properties by
approximately RMB1.8 million.

Financial Review
n Revenue

Revenue of the Group is mainly derived from property development and
property investment. During the Reporting Period, revenue of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB720.7 million, representing an increase
of approximately 103.2% as compared with 2019, primarily due to the
increase in the total GFA of properties delivered during 2020.

(I) Cost of sales and gross profit margin

The cost of sales and gross profit of the Group was approximately
RMB394.7 million and RMB326.0 million respectively, representing an
increase of approximately 72.0% and 1.6 times as compared with 2019
respectively, mainly due to the increase in total GFA delivered.

Increase of gross profit margin from 35.3% to 45.2% was mainly due to
the higher profitability of the property projects delivered during the year.

(Ill)  Selling and distribution expenses and administrative expenses

The Group's selling and distribution expenses for the Reporting Period
amounted to approximately RMB43.3 million (2019: approximately
RMB15.4 million), mainly due to the increase in the expenses on
advertisement and sales agent commission as a result of the increase the
scale of sales of properties.

Administrative expenses decreased by 17.1% to RMB96.8 million, mainly
due to incurred legal and professional expenses on legal proceedings in
2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BRI i BT

(V)

(V)

(\D)

12

Finance costs, net

The net finance costs of the Group for the Reporting Period amounted
to approximately RMB13.0 million (2019: net finance income of RMB2.6
million). The increase in net finance costs was mainly due to the increase
in the interest expenses on bank and other borrowings during the
Reporting Period, as compared with 2019

Income tax expenses

The income tax expenses of the Group increased by 2.2 times to
approximately RMB153.5 million. Among which, the CIT and the LAT
increased to approximately RMB44.5 million and RMB106.8 million,
respectively. The increase mainly attributable to the increase revenue
and profit recorded in the year.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company

The profit attributable to owners of the Company for the Reporting
Period amounted to approximately RMB64.0 million, while loss
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately RMB18.9
million was recorded in 2019, which were mainly attributable to the
increase in gross profit as a result of more properties being delivered in
the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B B L A

(Vi)

(v

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2020, total assets of the Group amounted to
approximately RMB7,543.3 million (2019: approximately RMB4,943.4
million), of which current assets amounted to approximately RMB7,049.3
million (2019: approximately RMB4,631.1 million). Total liabilities
amounted to approximately RMB5,629.3 million (2019: approximately
RMB2,826.2 million), of which non-current liabilities amounted to
approximately RMB1,560.1 million (2019: approximately RMB719.0
million). Total equity amounted to approximately RMB1,914.0 million
(2019: approximately RMB2,117.2 million). Total equity attributable to
owners of the Company amounted to RMB1,484.6 million (2019:
approximately RMB1,852.4 million).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had cash and bank balances
(including restricted cash) of approximately RMB1,031.5 million (2019:
approximately RMB877.5 million). The bank and other borrowings was in
the amount of approximately RMB1,753.7 million (2019: RMB332.0
million).

Commitments

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had capital commitments
outstanding but not provided for in consolidated financial statements
amounting to approximately RMB1,259.4 million (2019: approximately
RMB825.8 million).

(£)

(N)

RBEERMBEER

20208 12 A31H  AEBEERED
BAREE75433BE7L(2019F : HAR
¥40434 5 8BL) ERRBEENAA
R¥70493B B L(2019F : HARE
4631 VBEETT)  AERENAARE
56293 H & 7L (20194F « K9 AR #2,826.2
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MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS AND
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

@

14

Acquisition of land use rights

On 22 January 2020, Foshan Hailu Real Estate Co., Ltd.*
BRAE
of the Company, entered into a confirmation letter with the Foshan
Shunde Public Resources Trading Centre* (1L T IBERE A £ &R
5 # L)) to confirm that Foshan Hailu has successfully won the bid for
the auction for the land use rights of a land having a site area of

(FRILERRE SR

) (‘Foshan Hailu"), an indirect non wholly-owned subsidiary

11,949.63 sq.m., designated for residential usage with a term of land use
rights of 70 years. The land is located at the Angle Plot of Wenhua Road,
Shibu Residential Committee, Longjiang County, Shunde, Foshan City ({3
Wi IE R R BT St 1R B & g L BR 2R A 3 3R, the PRC at a
consideration of RMB179,200,000.

On 21 February 2020, Foshan Hailu entered into a confirmation letter
with the Foshan Shunde Public Resources Trading Centre to confirm that
Foshan Hailu has successfully won the bid for the auction for the land
use rights of a land having a site area of 10,159.64 sq.m., designated for
residential usage with a term of land use rights of 70 years. The land is
located at the Angle Plot 2 of Wenhua Road, Shibu Residential
Committee, Longjiang County, Shunde, Foshan City (f# LI T B {2 & B8
THHIREZE LR AR
RMB170,870,000.

), the PRC at a consideration of
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(i)

The cooperation agreement in relation to acquisition of
land in Wuming District, Nanning City, Guangxi Province

On 30 June 2020, Guangxi Datong Real Estate Development Co,. Ltd* (&
79 K38 5 1 E F % B BR A 7)) (‘Guangxi Datong’), an indirect non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and Guangxi Fuming City
Investment Development Group Co,, Ltd.* (B E B IR E#EE
BREERF)
agreement in relation to the capital increase in Guangxi Minggui Real
Estate Development Co,. Ltd* (EESEFEHERZ AR A F) (the
“Project Company’) and joint development of the land parcel located
at the south of Nanhuan Road and the east of Dingluo Road, Wuming
District, Nanning City, Guangxi Province, with a gross site area of
approximately 69,986.11 sq.m. (the “Project Land Parcel’). The Project
Company is owned as to 10% by Guangxi Fuming and as to 90% by

(“Guangxi Fuming") entered into the cooperation

Guangxi Datong. Guangxi Fuming will contribute RMB15 million being
part of the appraised value of the land use rights of the Project Land
Parcel and Guangxi Datong will pay a total sum of RMB335 million, being
guarantee deposit for the cooperation and capital increase, in cash, in
return for 90% equity interest in the Project Company.

For more details, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 30 June 2020 and 29 July 2020, and the circular of the Company
dated 29 September 2020.

(ii)

A 138 W i A 7 B VY A S XS IR
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(iii) The project agreement in relation to acquisition of land in

16

Wuming District, Nanning City, Guangxi Province

On 14 August 2020, the newly formed associate company, Guangxi
Hailan Jinzhong Real Estate Co, Ltd* (BTN /B E S ERMEFR A R))
("Jinzhong Real Estate”) (which is owned as to 49% by Hailan Industrial
(Guangzhou) Co, Ltd* (BEEE 2 (EM) MR A 7)) (‘Hailan Shiye”),
an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and 51% by
Zhongtou Zhiye (Guangzhou) Co., Ltd* (F & B 2 (E M) B R A 7))
("Zhongtou Zhiye"), entered into the project agreement (the “Project
Agreement’). Under the Project Agreement, Jinzhong Real Estate, by
way of equity investment, will acquire an undeveloped construction land
with an area of approximately 48 mu (the “Project Land A”) and pay for
the land premium of another undeveloped construction land with an
area of approximately 44 mu (the “Project Land B") through Guangxi
Datong Investment Property Co,. Ltd* (B KB EBEABR A A))
("Datong Investment”), and will obtain 49% equity interest Datong
Investment. Project Land A and Project Land B are located at the
southeast of Huange Road, Wuming District, Nanning City, Guangxi
Province, PRC. The maximum investment of the Project Land Parcel to be
contributed by Jinzhong Real Estate will be approximately
RMB135,240,000. Also, on 16 July 2020, Hailan Shiye and Zhongtou Zhiye
signed the article of association in relation to the formation and
management of Jinzhong Real Estate.

For more details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 14 August 2020 and 28 August 2020.
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(iv) Formation of the JV Company and acquisition of shares in

Danzhou Shuanglian

On 22 August 2020, Hailan Shiye, Zhongtou Zhiye and Hengnan Wanwu
Enterprise Management Co, Ltd* (BT E W X EEHR 2 7))
("Hengnan Wanwu’) entered into the articles of association, pursuant
to which the parties agreed to establish Guangdong Jinzhong
Hongpeng Zhiye Co, Ltd* (ER @ E BB E X B R A 7)) (the IV
Company’) for the purpose of engaging in, among others, real estate
development. The JV Company is owned as to 38.37% by Hailan Shiye,
34.24% by Zhongtou Zhiye and 27.39% by Hengnan Wanwu.

On 25 September 2020, Hailan Shiye, Zhongtou Zhiye and Hengnan
Wanwu entered into the joint venture agreement, pursuant to which the
parties thereto agreed to the terms which govern the relationships
between the shareholders of the JV Company.

On 25 September 2020, the JV Company as the purchaser, Nanjing
Sanlong Cement Co,, Ltd* (B8 = = KB B R & (£ 2 7)) (‘Nanjing
Sanlong Cement’) as the vendor and Sanya Zhongzekai Shiye Co., Ltd.*
(Z 2 E Y E ¥ H R 2D A (‘Sanya Zhongzekai’) (an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) entered into the acquisition
agreement (the “First Acquisition Agreement’). Under the Acquisition
Agreement, the JV Company will acquire 29.208% of the equity interest
in Danzhou Shuanglian for a consideration of RMB385,215,000.

On 5 November 2020 and 1 December 2020, the Hailan Shiye (an
indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company), Nanjing Sanlong
Cement, Sanya Zhongzekai (an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company) and the JV Company entered into the acquisition agreement
(the "Second Acquisition Agreement’) and the supplemental
agreement (the “Supplemental Agreement”), respectively. Pursuant to
the Second Acquisition Agreement (as amended by the Supplemental
Agreement), the Purchaser will acquire 9.7% of the equity interest in
Danzhou Shuanglian for a consideration of RMB105,410,000. Upon
completion of the acquisition of Danzhou Shuanglian, the equity interest
of Danzhou Shuanglian would be owned as to 9.7% by Hailan Shiye,
1.092% by Nanjing Sanlong Cement, 29.208% by the JV Company and
60% by Sanya Zhongzekai.

(iv)  BROL AT v v B WS 1F % gk e 1y
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v)

On 5 November 2020, Hailan Shiye, Zhongtou Zhiye and Hengnan
Wanwu entered into the acquisition agreement (the “Third Acquisition
Agreement’). Pursuant to the Third Acquisition Agreement, the
Purchaser will acquire 34.24% of the equity interest in the JV Company
and a debt of RMB67,526,416 for a consideration of RMB75,526,416.
Upon completion, the JV Company would be owned as to 72.61% by the
Purchaser and 27.39% by Hengnan Wanwu.

For more details, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 25 September 2020, 5 November 2020 and 1 December 2020.

Acquisitions of 99% equity interest in a PRC company
holding land parcels in Qinzhou City, Guangxi Zhuang
Autonomous Region

On 16 October 2020, Jiangxi Hailan Hongji Real Estate Development Co.,
Ld* (VL 758 85 76 & 5 M & [ 32 8 IR 2 7)) (Jiangxi Hailan"), an
indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into (i)
the agreement with Guangxi Binhai Urban Construction Development
Co, Lid* (B 78 /& /B M 2 % % R’ B R 2 7)) (‘Guangxi Binhai"),
pursuant to which Jiangxi Hailan agreed to acquire, and Guangxi Binhai
agreed to sell, 69% equity interest in Qinzhou Tianmao Properties Co.,
Ltd* (MR E X AR A F]) (‘Qinzhou Tianmao”), and the sale
debt owing to Guangxi Binhai of RMB32,434,709.58, for a consideration
of RMB74,241,153.80; and (ii) the agreement with Qinzhou Tiangin
Investment Co, Ltd* (88 Il T K X & & B R 2 7)) (‘Qinzhou
Tianqin"), pursuant to which Jiangxi Hailan agreed to acquire, and
Qinzhou Tiangin agreed to sell, 30% equity interest in Qinzhou Tianmao,
and the sale debt owing to Qingzhou Tiangin of RMB9,322,250.00, for a
consideration of RMB27,498,964.88. The acquisitions will enable the
Group to acquire in aggregate 99% of the equity interest in Qinzhou
Tianmao, which holds the land use rights of the two parcels of land
located at Lajiao Chuipian District, Qinzhou City, Guangxi Zhuang
Autonomous Region, the PRC (H B & Fa it ik B 76 & 8RN 7 SRIER A
[ ), with a total site area of approximately 58,314.91 sq.m..

For more details, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 16 October 2020 and 10 December 2020.

Save as disclosed in this report, there are no other material acquisitions,

disposals and significant investments during the Reporting Period.
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GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2020, the gearing ratio (calculated by total debt divided by
total equity; total debt includes interest-bearing bank and other borrowings)
was 91.6% (2019: 15.7%).

FUTURE PLAN FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS

The Group will continue to invest in property development projects and
acquire suitable land parcels in the PRC, Hong Kong, Southeast Asia and the
Us, if it thinks fit. It is expected that internal resources and bank borrowings will
be sufficient to meet the necessary funding requirements. Save as disclosed in
this report, the Group did not have any future plans for material investments as
at the date of this report.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2020, taking into account of Danzhou Phase |, the Group
had 364 employees (as at 31 December 2019: 73 employees). For the Reporting
Period, the Group incurred employee costs of approximately RMB45.0 million.
The remuneration of the employees generally includes salary and
performance-based bonuses. According to the applicable PRC laws and
regulations, the Group participates in various employee benefit plans of the
municipal and provincial governments, including housing provident funds,
pension, medical, maternity, occupational injury and unemployment benefit
plans.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020, the restricted cash in amount of approximately
RMB269.9 million (2019: RMB91.7 million) was pledged for properties under
development. In addition, the carrying amount of properties under
development and completed properties held for sale in amount of
approximately RMB1,145.4 million and RMB119.8 million (2019: RMB454.0
million and RMB 192.0 million) respectively was pledged for bank and other
borrowings.
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FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group mainly operates in the PRC. The Group's functional currency and the
currency in which the Group denominates and settles substantially all of its
transactions are Renminbi. The foreign currency denomination of commercial
transactions, assets and liabilities, and net investments in foreign operations
are mainly in US dollars. The Group is not subject to any significant foreign
currency risk as the revenue, expenses and borrowings of the Group’s foreign
operating subsidiaries are denominated in the functional currency of those
operations. Any depreciation of the Renminbi would affect the value of any
dividends that the Group pays to the shareholders of the Company outside the
PRC. The Group currently does not engage in any hedging activities designed
or intended to manage foreign exchange rate risk.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
Reporting Period (2019: Nil) to the Company’s shareholders.

USE OF PROCEEDS

The net proceeds from the listing of the Company’s shares on the Main Board
of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (the “Listing”) were approximately
HK$249.0 million. As at the date of this report, the net proceeds from the
Listing were applied as follows:
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USE OF PROCEEDS (Continued)

The use of proceeds has not been applied to the development of Sanya
Phoenix Aqua City South Shore Phase I, as the project is at the preliminary
stage of applying for the construction planning permit. The Company expects
that the proceeds from the sale of the Company’s properties will be able to
provide sufficient cash flow for the development of Sanya Phoenix Aqua City
South Shore Phase ll. The Company has changed the use of proceeds to
include the investment in property development in Hong Kong and USA, and
general working capital of the Group. For further details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 3 June 2019.

As disclosed in the annual report of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2019, the unutilised net proceeds from the Listing amounted to
approximately HK$67.3 million.

The Group has fully utilised the unutilised net proceeds on its property
development project in the USA in July 2020.

As at the date of this report, the net proceeds from the Listing have been fully
utilised.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Zhou Li (A %) (“Ms. Zhou"), aged 39, was appointed as an executive
Director on 12 April 2016, a member of the remuneration committee and
nomination committee of the Company on 22 June 2016 and the chief
executive officer of the Company on 29 March 2017. Ms. Zhou is also a director
of Lian Yun Gang Long Ji Properties Limited GE E BB KX B X GR A 7))
(‘Lian Yun Gang Long Ji Properties”) and the general manager of Sanya Hui
Xin Trading Company Limited (= 2 B ¥ & 5 & [R 2 &]) (‘Sanya Hui Xin
Trading"), and the deputy general manager of Sanya Fenghuang Xincheng
Industry Company Limited (= 2 Bl Bl %7 3 & % & R 2 7]) (‘Sanya
Fenghuang Xincheng"), Sanya Fenghuang Shuiyun Property Development
Company Limited (= 25 Bl Bl 7k 88 5 b E [ 3% B R 2 &) (‘Sanya
Fenghuang Shuiyun’) and Hainan Nanhai Xiang Long Properties
Development Limited (8 f 7 /8 ¥ 58 /5 b & 1 2 & R 2 &) (‘Hainan

Nanhai Xiang Long"), all of which are subsidiaries of the Company.

Ms. Zhou attended a long-distance Graduate Training Program course in
Masters of Business Administration at the Sino-Dutch International Business
Center of Nanjing University from December 2005 to December 2008, and
obtained a Master of Business Administration degree from Maastricht School of
Management, Netherlands in December 2008. She was qualified as an engineer
by the Nanjing Municipal Construction Engineering Intermediate Professional
Technical Qualifications Social Assessment Committee (F 5 i &% T2 4%
BERMTERTE(ELFTEZ D) in December 2010 and was awarded the
practicing qualification for professional construction engineering category by
the Department of Housing and Urban-Rural Development of Jiangsu Province
in 2012.

Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Zhou was appointed as deputy manager in
Zhonghui (Jiangsu) Decoration Park Engineering Co. Ltd. (AP 22 (VT &%) S & E
M I A BR A 7)) from March 2000 to September 2004. Ms. Zhou was the
chairperson of Zhonghui Engineering Group (28 T 12 = ¥ % [#) between
October 2004 to July 2007. Ms. Zhou Li cohabits with Mr. Yeung Man, a
controlling Shareholder, as spouses. For the shareholding interest of Ms. Zhou
Li, please refer to the paragraph headed “Directors’ and chief executive's
interests and short positions in shares and underlying shares or debentures” on
page 59 of the annual report.
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Ms. Fan Wenyi (52 X #%) (“Ms. Fan”), aged 44, was appointed as an executive
Director on 12 April 2016. Ms. Fan has been the chief operation officer and
deputy general manager of the Group since 3 September 2007. Ms. Fan is the
chairman of Sanya Fenghuang Xincheng, Sanya Fenghuang Shuiyun, Sanya
Zhongzekai and Danzhou Shuang Lian Properties Development Company
Limited (1& ) &8t F i EFR B R A7) and the deputy general manager of
Lian Yun Gang Tai Sheng City Development Limited (EEBZRE M T EER
fR/2 7)) (‘Lian Yun Gang Tai Sheng Development’), Lian Yun Gang Long Ji
Properties, Hainan Nanhai Xiang Long and Sanya Hui Xin Trading, all of which are
subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Fan graduated from Shaanxi External Services
Training Academy (BRFE$FMRE T FI1Z2FT) majoring in foreign oriented
secretary (FHNSCRA) in the PRC in 1996. Ms. Fan was accredited as an
intermediate accountant by MOF of the PRC (FF BIBA X &) in May 2005. Prior to
joining the Group, Ms. Fan worked as an assistant to general manager of Hainan
Xinjia Tourism Co., Ltd. (BFE¥TEIRZEH R 2 &) from November 2005 to
February 2007.

Mr. Chen Xiang (FR#¥), aged 37, served as an executive Director from 29 August
2017 to 31 October 2019 and was appointed as an executive Director on 15
October 2020. Mr. Chen Xiang currently serves as a director of both cost
procurement department and engineering design department in Sanya
Fenghuang Xincheng, which is a subsidiary of the Company. From 2006 to
2012, he was also a cost estimator (FEJR% 8 ) in Verdure International Holding
Company Limited (22 5 B B 122 f& 5 FR /2 F]). Mr. Chen Xiang graduated from
the China University of Geosciences with a Bachelor of Civil Engineering degree
in July 2008. He was registered as a first class constructor (— &% 7 & FM) in
housing construction (B & Z £8) and in public utility (F1 LA F); and as a
cost controller (&8 TF2AM).
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Mr. Chen Zhonghua (FR {1 Z) (“Mr. Chen”), aged 43, served as an executive
Director from 26 September 2019 to 15 October 2020. Mr. Chen obtained a
Bachelor of Electrical Engineering degree from the Southeast University, China
in July 1999, a Master of Engineering degree from the Harbin Institute of
Technology in June 2010, and a Doctor of Management degree from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in November 2017. Mr. Chen joined the Group as
an executive president on 1 May 2019. Mr. Chen had over 20 years of
experience in property development. Before joining the Group, he was a
department manager and the director of Shenzhen Zhonghai Property Co,,
Ltd.* GRS EBR A R from July 1999 to March 2010, the deputy
general manager of Zhonghai Investment (Qingdao) Co., Ltd.* (F /1% & (F
£)ABR A7) from March 2010 to May 2013, the deputy general manager of
the development management department of Zhonghai Property Group Co.,
Ltd.* (P E S B AR A &) from May 2013 to March 2014 and the general
manager of Zhonghai Property (Zhengzhou) Co., Ltd.* (FR /& 2 (BN B TR A
8]) from March 2014 to May 2016, whereas all of these companies are the
subsidiaries of China Overseas Land & Investment Ltd., the shares of which are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 688). He was also
the chief operating officer of Shenzhen Dahai Zhidi Property Development and
Management Co., Ltd.* (RIIABE 1 EREELERBR QA from
May 2016 to April 2019.

Mr. Zhang Yu (5&/&) (“Mr. Zhang”), aged 44, was appointed as an executive
Director from 1 June 2020 to 25 October 2020. Mr. Zhang has over 19 years of
experience in information technology. He was a marketing manager of Huawei
Technologies Co,, Ltd* (ZE AT AR A F]) from June 2001 to December
2001. He served as a strategy assistant and higher education industry manager
of Microsoft Research Asia from December 2001 to January 2005. He later
joined Microsoft (China) Co., Ltd in January 2005 and was the education
industry manager and the central government director of Public Sector of
Greater Asia, as well as the strategy assistant of Microsoft Asia-Pacific R & D
Group until August 2015. He was a vice president of SkyOcean Group Holdings
Co,, Ltd.* (KRR 52 B A BR A &) and a director of Beijing SkyOcean COMB-+
Technology Co, Ltd* (JE R RF B BRI G R 2 7)), a fellow subsidiary and a
wholly-owned subsidiary, respectively, of DreamEast Group Limited, the shares
of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 593),
from September 2015 to August 2016. He has been the chief executive officer
of Beijing Mallguang Technology Co., Ltd.* (At RIEERHL AR A A)) since
October 2016. Mr. Zhang graduated from Tsinghua University with a bachelor’s
degree in electrical engineering in June 1998. He also obtained a master’s
degree in electronic and information engineering from Tsinghua University in
June 2001, and a doctorate degree in management from Beijing Institute of
Technology in March 2011.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Yao Yu (#5) (“Ms. Yao”), aged 53, served as a non-executive Director
from 15 March 2018 to 1 June 2020. Ms. Yao was responsible for providing
opinion to the Board.

Ms. Yao obtained a college diploma in economic management from the
Nanjing University (IR AE) in 1991 and then studied a course in
Commercial English at the Nanjing University of Aeronautics and Astronautics
(FAmMZEMARAE). She took a postgraduate course in Management Science
and Engineering at the Nanjing University (F§ A K 22). She has over 20 years of
management experience. Ms. Yao is currently the deputy general manager of
Holiday Inn Nanjing Harbour in Cuiping, Nanjing. Prior to joining the Group, Ms.
Yao had been the manager of various hotels and shopping centers in the PRC.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Yong (Z2E) (“Mr. Li”), aged 47, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director and a member of each of the audit committee, the
remuneration committee, and nomination committee of the Company on 29
September 2017. Mr. Li is currently a general manager of Hainan Wanlong Real
Estate Development & Construction Co,, Ltd. (B & EERZEEREER
A]) and an independent director of Hainan HNA Infrastructure Investment
Group Co,, Ltd. (BR/EMEM LM% E SEAR (DB R A ) (Stock code on
Shanghai Stock Exchange: 600515).

Mr. Li was an assistant to the general manager of China Baoan Group Hainan
Industry Co,, Ltd* (FEIB L& E G EE X B R A F) from March 2003 to
January 2010. From January 2010 to January 2015, he acted as the director,
deputy general manager and secretary of the board of directors of Hai Nan
Yedao (Group) Co, Ltd, (/8 #f & (5 B) iz {9 B R 2 &) (Stock code on
Shanghai Stock Exchange: 600238) and as a general manager of Hainan
Danzhou Baoan Real Estate Investment Co,, Ltd* (BRI 1EINE & B i = f 2
B R A7) from January 2015 to November 2015.

In July 1995 and August 2014, respectively, Mr. Li completed the economic
management diploma course at Xinxiang Municipal Committee Party School
of Henan Province of the Chinese Communist Party (P AR A BT R E
#Z) and the advanced Business Administration program for president at the
Hainan University.

Mr. Li also obtained the qualification certificate as a secretary to the board of
directors and qualification certificate as an independent director issued by the
Shanghai Stock Exchange in 2010 and 2014 respectively. He was awarded the
Intermediate Title of Business Administration by the National Ministry of
Personnel in 2000.
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Mr. E Junyu (3B F) (“Mr. E”), aged 51, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director, the chairman of the remuneration committee, and a
member of the audit committee and nomination committee on 22 June 2016
which Mr. E served until 1 June 2020. Mr. E obtained an Executive Master of
Business Administrative degree from Cheung Kong Graduate School of
Business in the PRC in August 2006. Mr. E was awarded “The Young Leader of
Chinese Property Market” (FF Bl /5 #bZE 5 4 4B 4H) in August 2005 and “The
Meritorious People of Chinese Property Market in 2013-2014" (2013-20144 /&
RS ED D A YD) in January 2014. He was awarded the title of “Chinese
(PEZEZMEET AY) in 2017 and was also
awarded the title of “Innovative Individual in China's Real Estate Industry” (2
b E G FE BT A ¥)), “Pioneer of China’s Real Estate Transformation” (2
HEEEERL 582 A¥) and the “Filial Role Model” (2 £ 1&1%) by the Beijing
Municipal People’s Government in 2018.

Pension Real Estate Leader”

Mr. E worked in Hong Kong Lian Hua Investment Group (B /815 & & E)
as the Beijing representative (3t X 3K) during January 1991 to March 1994
He then worked as assistant to general manager ($84%¥EBHIE) in Everbright
Real Estate Development Limited (FF Bl 3¢ K= HhZE F 25 2 &) during March
1994 to June 2002. From July 2002 to March 2009, he worked for Yeland Group
Co, Ld (B EREBRHBR Q)
Exchange, Stock Code: SZ000616) and took up various positions including

(a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock

deputy manager, director and president. Mr. E has been serving as a chairman
of Beijing Hua Fu Sheng Shi Property Investment & Management Company
Limited JE REFEEEZEIREEIRHR 2R since June 2009. Mr. E was
appointed as the chairman of Beijing Anxin Pension Industry Investment
Limited Jt R L EEEZEZILEBRAT]) in May 2015 and was appointed
as the chairman of Beijing Anxin Tiangong Urban Renewal Construction
Development Limited (3t R&ZEX TH M EHMEIEARERAE]) in 2019.
He also initiated the establishment of Urban Renewal and Existing Building
Reconstruction Branch of the China Real Estate Chamber of Commerce (£
ITAMEERSMT EMERAREIED®)

standing vice president.

and served as the
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Dr. Zhao Guoqing (5 E] ) (“Dr. Zhao"”), aged 41, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director, the chairman of the audit committee,
and a member of the remuneration committee and nomination committee of
the Company on 31 December 2018. Dr. Zhao is currently the national
technical director and partner of Zhonghui Corporation* (FE[E) and he
has extensive working experience in taxation in the PRC.

Dr. Zhao is a qualified certified public accountant in the PRC. Dr. Zhao
graduated from Yangzhou University with a bachelor’'s degree majoring in
taxation in July 2002, obtained a master's degree in Business Administration
from Nanjing University in March 2012 and obtained a doctorate degree in
Business Administration from Nanjing University in December 2018.

Mr. Deng Shaochao (4 )
independent non-executive Director, a member of the audit committee, the

(“Mr. Deng”), aged 63, was appointed as an
nomination committee and the remuneration committee on 1 June 2020.

Mr. Deng completed on-the-job postgraduate programme and is a
professorate senior engineer. Mr. Deng has been engaged in the technical,
operational and management work of Guangxi construction system since
September 1977. He successively held the posts of foreign economic affairs
office of Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region Construction Corporation* (/&
Pt ik B8 R 2 2482 A)), deputy general manager and general engineer
of the management department in Kenya office of Guangxi Zhuang
Autonomous Region Construction Corporation, chairman and legal
representative of Guangxi China Construction Engineering Company* (J& 7/
## T #2 2 7)), and deputy general manager and senior engineer of Guangxi
International Construction Engineering Corporation (J& P oMNEEE T2 N
A])*. Mr. Deng was a member of the Party-organization, executive director,
deputy general manager, and chief economist of Guangxi Construction
Engineering Group* (/& 78 7 L % &) from March 1997 to January 2010. Mr.
Deng served as deputy Party secretary, executive director and general manager
of Guangxi Construction Engineering Group from February 2010 to October
2016, and he also served as chairman and legal representative of Guangxi Dadu
Investment Co,, Ltd.* (BFA A& & H MR A 7)) and Guangxi Dadu Concrete
Group Co, Ltd* (E 70 K &8 )R &t T &£ B B R 2 7)) during the same period.
He has been the chief consultant of Guangxi Yunxiang Digital Architectural
Design Co,, Ltd* (EFREZH TR R ET AR A A) since October 2016.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Jia Bin (EJ&) (“Mr. Jia”), was appointed as the chief financial officer of
the Company from 12 May 2017 to 4 June 2018 and from 14 September 2018
to 6 May 2020, respectively. Mr. Jia obtained a bachelor’s degree in Accounting
from Nanjing Economic College (R R AL E2F) (which is currently known as
Nanjing University of Finance and Economics (F R B A& K E2)) in 1997 and
received his Master of Business Administration degree from the Nanjing
University (F 5 AE2) in 2015. He has been a non-practicing member of the
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants since 2003 and an associate
member of the Association of International Accountants since 2016.

Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Jia had 20 years of experience in the accounting
and financial management. He worked in Jiangsu Easthigh International Group Co.,
Limited* (/T & 3R 18 B B % B B BR 2 8) and served consecutively as an
accountant in Jiangsu Province International Economic and Trading Industrial Head
Corporation* (VL &k & Bl R 42 B & 2 482 7)) from 1997 to 1999, as a financial
manager in Jiangsu Province International Economic and Trade Property
Management Company Limited* (L #k & IR & B BB AR 2 F) from
2000 to 2003, as a general manager of the capital finance department of Jiangsu
Easthigh International Service and Trading Joint Stock Company Limited* (ST &5
BRI AR E 5 A& 5 B BR A R)) from 2003 to 2008, and as an assistant to the
general manager of the capital finance department of Jiangsu Easthigh
International Group Co,, Limited* (7T %k 5218 B B 5= & A R /2 A1) from 2006 to
2008. Subsequently, Mr. Jia worked in the finance department of Golden Eagle
International Group Co, Limited* (& [& B ¥ & B B PR 2 &) as an deputy chief
financial officer from 2008 to 2009, as a chief financial officer from 2009 to 2011, as
an assistant to the president from 2011 to 2015. Subsequently, he also worked in
the finance cost center of Verdure International Holding Company Limited* (2252 &4
B 4% B% 5 BR /A R)) as a general manager from April to September 2015 and in the
financial headquarter of Suning Estate Group Co, Ltd* (BAEE B £ EEBR A A]) as
an assistant to the chief executive officer from October 2015 to March 2017.

*  Foridentification purpose only
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COMPANY SECRETARY AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Mr. Yang Dong John (5 ) (“Mr. Yang”), aged 45, was appointed as the
company secretary and chief financial officer of the Company respectively on 1
April 2019 and 6 May 2020, respectively. Mr. Yang served as the chief financial
officer of Tsui Wah Holdings Limited (“Tsui Wah") (a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1314) from 4 June 2012 to 31
December 2015 and from 22 August 2016 to 31 March 2019 and was
responsible for financial planning and budgeting, overseeing the financial
reporting functions and specific financial projects as well as maintaining
investors' relations. He also assisted in the listing of the shares of Tsui Wah on
the Stock Exchange. Mr. Yang was appointed as the chief executive officer for
the PRC region of Tsui Wah from March 2014 to March 2017, assisting the
company in the management and development of business in the PRC. He
served as the company secretary and an authorised representative of Tsui Wah
from June 2012 to February 2015.

Mr. Yang has been a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants since 2003 and a non-practicing member of the Chinese Institute
of Certified Public Accountants since 2011. Mr. Yang has accumulated over 17
years of experience in auditing, consolidated accounting, financial
management, due diligence investigation, compliance auditing and financial
auditing. Prior to joining Tsui Wah, he was the chief financial officer and
company secretary of Wedding Banquet Specialist (2 JiF & &= % P9 J§). He
spent over ten years at KPMG's Hong Kong and Beijing offices, having engaged
in numerous auditing projects involving listed companies on the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Yang graduated from the City University of Hong Kong in
November 1999 with a bachelor’s degree in Business Administration
(Accountancy) and obtained his Master of Business Administration degree from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong in November 2015.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance with a view to assure the conduct of management of the
Company and protect the interests of all shareholders. The Company are fully
aware that transparency and accountability in corporate governance are
crucially important to the shareholders and the Board considers that sound
corporate governance can maximise the shareholders’ interest.

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) as its own code of conduct of
corporate governance.

During the Reporting Period, the Company has complied with the code
provisions as set out in the CG Code except for the deviation from code
provision A.2.1 of the CG Code as described below.

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules, the roles of chairman and chief executive officer should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual. Under the
current organisation structure of the Group, the function of chief executive
officer is performed by Ms. Zhou Li. The Board is of the opinion that vesting the
roles of both chairman and chief executive officer in Ms. Zhou Li has the benefit
of ensuring consistent leadership within the Group thus enabling more
effective and efficient strategic planning for the Group.

Under this arrangement, the Board also believes that the balance of power and
authority will not be compromised and is adequately ensured by the existing
Board which comprises experienced and competent individuals with more
than one-third of the Board being independent non-executive directors.
Therefore, the Board considers that the deviation from code provision A.2.1 of
the CG Code is appropriate in such circumstances.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions. Having made specific enquiries with all the Directors, each of the
Directors has confirmed that he/she has complied with the Model Code during
the Reporting Period.

The Company has also established written guidelines on terms no less exacting
than the Model Code for securities transactions by employees who are likely to
be in possession of unpublished inside information of the Company. No
incident of non-compliance of the above written guidelines by the relevant
employees was noted by the Company.

In case when the Company is aware of any restricted period for dealings in the
Company’s securities, the Company will notify its Directors and relevant
employees in advance.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises the following
Directors:

Chairman of the Board and Executive Director
Ms. Zhou Li (Chief Executive Officer and Chairman)

Executive Directors

Ms. Fan Wenyi
Mr. Chen Xiang

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Li Yong
Dr. Zhao Guoging
Mr. Deng Shaochao

The biographical information of the Directors are set out in the section headed
"Directors and Senior Management” on pages 22 to 29 of this annual report.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the principles
and code provisions as set out in the CG Code. During the Reporting Period, to
the best knowledge of the Board, the Company has complied with all the
applicable code provisions set out in the Code, except for certain deviations as
specified with considered reasons for such deviations as explained below.

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the chairman and chief
executive officer should be separated and should not be performed by the
same individual.

Since 29 March 2017, the Company has not separated the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer of the Company. Since 29 March 2017, Ms. Zhou has
been the chairman and also the chief executive officer of the Company and is
responsible for overseeing the operations of the Group (For details of the
appointment, please refer to the Company’s announcement on 29 March
2017). In view of the fact that Ms. Zhou has been operating and managing the
Group since 2016, the Board believes that it is in the best interests of the Group
to have Ms. Zhou taking up both roles for effective management and business
development. The Board also believes that vesting the roles of both chairman
and chief executive officer in the same person has the benefit of ensuring the
consistent leadership within the Group and enables more effective and
efficient overall strategic planning for the Group. Although Ms. Zhou performs
both roles of chairman and chief executive officer, the division of
responsibilities between the two roles is clearly established. While the chairman
provides leadership for the Board by ensuring the board works efficiently and
discharges his responsibilities in time, and is responsible for supervising the
functions and performance of the Board, the chief executive officer is
responsible for the management of the Group's business. The Board considers
that the balance of power and authority for the present arrangement will not
be impaired given the appropriate delegation of the power of the Board to the
senior management of the Company for the day-to-day management of the
Group, and the effective functions of the independent non-executive Directors
representing at least one-third of the Board such that no one individual has
unfettered power of decisions. This structure will also enable the Company to
make and implement decisions promptly and effectively. The Board will
continue to review and consider splitting the roles of chairman of the Board
and chief executive officer of the Company at a time when it is appropriate and
suitable by taking into account the circumstances of the Group as a whole.

With the support of executive Directors and the company secretary, the
chairman seeks to ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising
at the Board meetings and receive adequate and reliable information in a
timely manner.
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Independent Non-executive Director

The Board at all times during the Reporting Period met the requirements of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive Directors representing one-third of the Board with one of whom
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

Each of the three independent non-executive Directors has confirmed his
independence and the Company considers each of them to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The chairman of the Board holds meetings with non-executive
Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) without executive
Directors present at least once a year.

Non-executive Directors and Directors’ re-election

Code provision A4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive directors
shall be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election, whereas code
provision A4.2 of the CG Code states that all directors appointed to fill a casual
vacancy shall be subject to election by shareholders at the first general
meeting after appointment and that every director, including those appointed
for a specific term, shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years.

Each of the Directors is appointed for a specific term of three years and is
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. The articles of
association of the Company (the “Articles of Association”) requires that at
each annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being (or,
if the number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less
than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every
three years.

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the Board
and Management

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company and
oversees the Group's businesses, strategic decisions and performance and is
collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company by directing
and supervising its affairs. The Board take decisions objectively in the interests
of the Company.

All Directors, including non-executive Director and independent non-executive
Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning.
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All Directors shall have full and timely access to all the information of the
Company as well as the services and advice from the company secretary and
senior management. The Directors may, upon request, seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances for discharging their duties to
the Company at the Company’s expense. The Board and each Director shall
have a separate and independent access to the Company’s senior
management.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices held by
them and the Board regularly reviews the contribution required from each
Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respective of legal
action against its Directors.

Delegation by the Board

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy matters,
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management, material
transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of Directors and other significant operational
matters of the Company. Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of
the Board, directing and coordinating the daily operation and management of
the Company are delegated to the management. The delegated functions and
responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the Board. Approvals has to be
obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions entered into by
the management.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Directors shall keep abreast of responsibilities as a Director of the Company
and of the conduct, business activities and development of the Company.

Every newly appointed Director will receive formal, comprehensive and tailored
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and full
awareness of Director’s responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules
and relevant statutory requirements.

In accordance with code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code with regards to
continuous professional development, Directors should participate in
appropriate continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. Internally-facilitated briefings for Directors will be
arranged and reading material on relevant topics will be issued to Directors
where appropriate. All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training
courses at the Company’s expenses.
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During the Reporting Period, each individual Director has attended training
courses or workshops or reading materials relevant to his/her professional and/
or duties as Director. The Company has maintained a training record in order to
assist the Directors to record the training that they have undertaken. A
summary is as follows:

RBEHE  SEFELMBEEER HE
EREAENEIRERTIED KBRS -
ARBBREEICENE N ESCRBEEN

2l - BT

Attending in
Reading house training
materials relating to the
regarding ongoing
regulatory compliance
updates and obligations,
corporate governance and
governance other related
matters topics
BEEE 2NEH
EEEMR BESHREE -
TEERSHE B R HEH AR
Name of Directors EENE &R FENREE
Executive Directors HITES
Ms. Zhou Li AR Z =+ v/ v
Ms. Fan Wenyi et v 4
Mr. Chen Zhonghua PR EE S A4
(resigned on 15 October 2020) (FR20204F 10 A 15 HEEE) v v
Mr. Chen Xiang PR ST
(appointed on 15 October 2020) (R2020F 10 A 15 HEZA(F) v 4
Mr. Zhang Yu RIS E
(appointed on 1 June 2020 and resigned (R2020%F 6 H 1 HEZE
on 25 October 2020) KR 20204F 10 A 25 H BEHE) v v
Non-executive Director FHITES
Ms. Yao Yu hFE+
(retired on 1 June 2020) (R2020%F 6 A1 HEM) 4 4
Independent non-executive Directors BAFHITES
Mr. Li Yong FELE 4 v
Mr. E Junyu SPEFEAE
(retired on 1 June 2020) (R2020%F 6 A1 HEM) v 4
Dr. Zhao Guoging HEEE T v/ v
Mr. Deng Shaochao BAtRE A

(appointed on 1 June 2020)

(20204 6 H 1 HEZE(T)
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BOARD MEETING

The Board intends to hold Board meetings regularly at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals. Notices of not less than fourteen days will be
given for all regular Board meetings to provide all Directors with an opportunity
to attend and include matters in the agenda for regular Board meetings.

For other Board meetings, reasonable notice will generally be given. All Board
committee meetings require a notice of at least seven (7) days to be given,
unless such notification is waived by all members of the respective Board
committees. The agenda and accompanying Board papers are dispatched to
the Directors or Board committee members at least three days before the
meetings to ensure that they have sufficient time to review the papers and be
adequately prepared for the meetings. When Directors or Board committee
members are unable to attend a meeting, they will be advised of the matters
to be discussed and given an opportunity to make their views known to the
chairman prior to the meeting.

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board committee meetings are/will be
recorded in sufficient detail to include the matters considered by the Board
and the Board committees and the decisions reached, including any concerns
raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each Board meeting and Board
committee meeting are/will be sent to the Directors for comments within a
reasonable time after the date on which the meeting is held.
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Attendance Records

The following is the attendance record of the Directors at Board and
committee meetings, and general meetings held during the Reporting Period:

H % v 2%

EERNHEHEBTNESTEREZESEHEN
KRR A @ H HFERREn T

Attendance/Number of Meetings in 2020
2020 FHERE EHEAH

Annual
Audit Nomination Remuneration General
Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
Name of Director EEnE Exe ERZEE RREEE FHZEe RREFAS
Ms. Zhou Li A+ 3/4 - 11 /1 1/1
Ms. Fan Wenyi BX#zL 4/4 - - - 11
Mr. Chen Zhonghua (Note 1) BRIMZESLAE (M) 3/4 - - _ "
Mr. Chen Xiang (Note 2) GRS (B3t 2) 1/4 - - - -
Mr. Zhang Yu (Note 3) RIS A (HaE3) 1/4 - - - -
Ms. Yao Yu (Note 4) F Lt (ffiE4) 2/4 - - - 11
Mr.Li Yong ZBELAE 4/4 2/2 N 1/1 1/1
Mr.E Junyu (Note 5) BEFIE (Mt 5) 2/4 12 11 1/1 1/1
Dr. Zhao Guoging HEEEL 4/4 2/2 1/1 1/1 1/1
Mr. Deng Shaochao (Note 6) BARIREL & (M7t 6) 24 12 - -
Note I:  Mr.Chen Zhonghua resigned as an executive Director on 15 October 2020. Bfaty - BRIPELEEFERNITES - B20206F10A15H
HEAERK ©
Note2:  Mr. Chen Xiang was appointed from office as an executive Director on 15 October 2020. HiaF2 . BREEERZERITES - B2020F 1081588

Note3:  Mr. Zhang Yu was appointed an executive director on 1 June 2020 and resigned on 25 K3

October 2020

Note4:  Ms. Yao Yu retired from office as an non-executive Director on 1 June 2020.

Note5: Mr. E Junyu retired as an independent non-executive director on 1 June 2020.

fitet4 -

BiaEs

Note6:  Mr. Deng Shaochao was appointed as an independent non-executive director on 1 June Kiete -

2020.

None of the meetings set out above was attended by any alternate Director.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the audit committee (the
“Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee (the “‘Remuneration
Committee’) and the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”), for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All
Board committees of the Company are established with defined written terms
of reference. The terms of reference of the Board committees are posted on
the Company's website and the Stock Exchange’s website and are available to
shareholders upon request.

The majority of the members of each Board committee are independent non-
executive Directors and the list of the chairman and members of each Board
committee is set out under the section “Corporate Information” on page 2 of
this annual report.

Audit Committee

On 22 June 2016, the Company established the Audit Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and
paragraph C.3 and paragraph D.3 of the CG Code. In the beginning of the
Reporting Period, the Audit Committee consisted of three members, including
Dr. Zhao Guoging, Mr. Li Yong and Mr. E Junyu. Mr. E Junyu retired on 1 June
2020 and was replaced by Mr. Deng Shaochao. All members of the Audit
Committee are independent non-executive Directors. The chairman of the
Audit Committee is Dr. Zhao Guoqing, who holds the appropriate professional
qualifications as required under Rules 3.10(2) and 3.21 of the Listing Rules. The
main duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board in reviewing the
financial information and reporting process, internal control procedures and
risk management system, audit plan and relationship with external auditor, and
arrangements to enable employees of the Company to raise, in confidence,
concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or
other matters of the Company. The Audit Committee will hold at least two
meetings a year.

The Board has also delegated the corporate governance duties to the Audit
Committee for performing the functions set out in the code provision D.3.1 of
the CG Code.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee held two meetings to
review the Group's financial result for the year ended 31 December 2020,
review the internal control and risk management systems of the Group,
oversee the audit process and make recommendation on the re-appointment
of the external auditors, and the interim financial results of the Group for the six
months ended 30 June 2020.
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Nomination Committee

On 22 June 2016, the Company established the Nomination Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with paragraph A.5 of the CG Code. In
the beginning of the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee consisted
of four members, comprising Ms. Zhou Li, Mr. Li Yong, Mr. E Junyu and Dr. Zhao
Guoging. Mr. E Junyu retired on 1 June 2020 and was replaced by Mr. Deng
Shaochao. Besides Ms. Zhou Li who is an executive Director, all other members
of the Nomination Committee are independent non-executive Directors. The
chairman of the Nomination Committee is Ms. Zhou Li. The principal duties of
the Nomination Committee include reviewing the Board composition,
developing and formulating relevant procedures for the nomination and
appointment of Directors, making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and succession planning of Directors, in particular the chairman
and the chief executive and assessing the independence of independent non-
executive Directors.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee would take
into account various aspects set out in the Board Diversity Policy adopted by
the Company (as defined below in the section headed “Board Diversity Policy”),
including but not limited to educational background, professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge and industry experience. The Nomination
Committee would discuss and agree on measurable objectives for achieving
diversity on the Board, where necessary, and recommend them to the Board
for adoption. In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships,
the Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s qualifications,
experience, independence and other relevant criteria necessary to
complement the corporate strategy and achieve Board diversity, where
appropriate, before making recommendations to the Board.

The Nomination Committee will meet at least once a year to review the
structure, size and diversity of the Board and the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors and to consider the qualifications of the
retiring Directors standing for election at annual general meetings.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee held one meeting to
review the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board, the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors and the Company’s Board Diversity Policy and the progress on
achieving the objectives set for implementing the said policy.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 22 June 2016 with
written terms of reference in compliance with paragraph B.1 of the CG Code. In
the beginning of the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee consisted
of four members, comprising Mr. E Junyu, Ms. Zhou Li, Mr. Li Yong and Dr. Zhao
Guoqing. Besides Ms. Zhou Li who is an executive Director, all other members
of the Remuneration Committee are independent non-executive Directors. The
chairman of the Remuneration Committee was Mr. E Junyu. Mr. E Junyu retired
on 1 June 2020 and Mr. Li Yong was appointed as the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee. Mr. Deng Shaochao joined the Remuneration
Committee on 1 June 2020. The primary functions of the Remuneration
Committee include reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management, the remuneration policy and structure for all Directors and
senior management and establishing transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director or any of
his/her close associates will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee will meet at least once a year to review and
make recommendation to the Board on the remuneration policy and structure
of the Company, and the remuneration packages of the executive Directors
and senior management and other related matters.

During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting
to review and make recommendation to the Board regarding the remuneration
of the Directors and senior management.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

On 22 June 2016, the Board adopted the Board Diversity Policy ("“Board
Diversity Policy”). Under the Board Diversity Policy, the Nomination
Committee will monitor the implementation of the Board Diversity Policy and
give adequate consideration to the Board Diversity Policy when identifying
suitably qualified candidates to become members of the Board. The Board will
regularly review the Board Diversity Policy and make appropriate revisions to
ensure the effectiveness of the Board Diversity Policy.
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DIRECTORS” RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the Reporting Period.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and information
as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an informed assessment of
the financial and other information put before them for approval. The
management provides all members of the board with monthly updates on the
Company's performance, positions and prospects.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about its reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 99 to 106 of this annual report.

AUDITORS” REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid or payable to the external auditors of the Company in
respect of audit services for the Reporting Period is as follows:

6 S R Y FAT

EENTEHBRHEAR A RS MEOMBHRERH
BfE-

EEERNEFSRENALER  UEEFS
A SR 2 E A 2 B R B A B RHE L AIE AT
%o BEEEEARNEEEMARBRARAN
=W AR M RIS EREEFHER -

EERABEM AT HARRFRHELERNBENX
BEAREZEMRBERTEZ EREATHE

RATBY ZEMENERIHERERNHES
EZERHNAFEREE9E 106 BB
R ERAM IR o

3 Gl

REHENZBIRE AR AIMBZEEE
MNHEMNBESRENT

Fees paid/payable

gt ENER

RMB'000

Services rendered REN RS ARET T
Audit services ZERFS 1,780
Non-audit services IEZEIRTE 150

For the Reporting Period, the audit services fees paid or payable to Mazars CPA
Limited was RMB1,780,000.

RiEHRE - SN REANPERR(FE) G5t
MMEBHAERRANZBEREESARE
1,780,000 7T °
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT
Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board acknowledge that it is responsible for the risk management and
internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. Such systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has delegated its responsibilities (with relevant authorities) of risk
management and internal control to the Audit Committee, who oversees
management in the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems.

Main features of the risk management and internal control systems

The risk management framework of the Group and main responsibilities of the
members in the framework are described as follows:

Eﬂoard
=y

Auﬂt \Cg:m:rlnégee
Board level EZEES

PRI PR 2 o) % Ja g A B
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General Manager/Senior

Management level Management
YANRTR = A TR [ T of subsidiaries
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Internal Audit department
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Member Main Responsibilities

RE TERE

The Board Set up goals for risk management strategy, assess and determine the nature and extent of risk
4y acceptable to achieve the strategy goals;

Audit Committee
EzEEeE

FURREREKEARE MERETEREKEERIUAZNRREERIZE
Establish and maintain a proper and effective risk management and internal control systems;
and

BYNEEREBRNRRERRAIMESHE &

Review the effectlveness of the risk management and internal control systems annually.

SEEERREERABENFIENERIE

Assist the Board in overseeing the risk level and the design and performance of the risk
management and internal control systems;

19 BhEE 55 & BE B R B 7K T LA R JaR\ e 8 B I PR D2 o 6 B Rt SR B A T

Discuss the risk management and internal control systems with the management, ensure the
management has fulfilled its responsibility of establishing effective systems;

HERE S wmEREIERAEGGE  BREEECBITREEZAUNHE
Ensure that the internal audit function has sufficient resources for operation and has a proper
position, review and supervise its performance;
BRABEABEAERENEREEIEENMA - FEEREEHY

Keep updated of various major risks confronted by the Group and the risk management status,
make decisions for effective risk control;

EHASEREENSASARR RERERANR - ELBREREHERE

Report the risk status of the Group and issues to be concerned or improved to the Board on a
regular basis;

THREFEREAEENRRRAREFR IS TENME

Facilitate risk management and assessment, regularly appoint relevant accountable persons to
implement risk assessment;

fREmEBREE ML - ERZERBAE NETRRTE

Organise and promote the establishment of the risk management system at the group level;
HEEYEEERNRREERAER

Review material risk assessment report and various risk management reports;
ELEEANARFERERSERARERRS

Review major risk management measures, rectify and deal with the decisions made or actions
adopted by relevant organizations or individuals beyond the risk management system;
BEERRAMEIRIE - A 1F RERIEH FE AR Sk AP E B TR 82 (R LA SMNRER A A R
HITED
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Member

K&

Main Responsibilities

IERE

Management of
subsidiaries

M B A aEIE

Internal audit
department
REESE

Engage relevant persons to organise and coordinate various departments and projects to carry
out identification and assessment of significant risks at the group level, summarise and analyse
such information, submit risk assessment and various risk management reports; and
EEEBAEEBBASHMFANIER - HEEEMNBEARBETHR NG - W&
BRAMER  BRRXEARFERZERREERSE &

Carry out risk management for other major issues.

HHMEARBETRRERE -

Ensure that the subsidiaries carry out the risk assessment in compliance with the risk assessment
manual formulated by the Group;

FREAR P 1 )42 BR AN 55 [ 11 52 B9 R\ B 2T T T 1T LB AT A

Review and approve the risk assessment results of the subsidiaries in respect of the business;

25 B0 T/ BT B8 % B SRS O L PR AT A A

Ensure that the subsidiaries implement effective risk management;
BRNB AR ERE NN ERER

Monitor the principal business risks confronted by the subsidiaries and the effectiveness of
relevant risk management measures; and

BB ARERN T EEXBAR MABMEREBERNARE &

Allocate resources such as fund and workforce to the subsidiaries for implementation of the risk
assessment projects.

ANBAREEERERFGEENER WEE ANF-

Report directly to the Audit Committee, analyse and conduct independent assessment on the
adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems.
BEREAEZZESWME  HEARERELAIZESHENFTD EARERIEEL 5T K&
BT o

44 HAILAN HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020



Corporate Governance Report
efoe SER(E ¢t

The process used to identify, assess and management of principal risks

The risk management process of the Group is described as follows:

Risk Identification — identify the current risks confronted

[\ ez 28 ) a8 51 B A e ) R
Risk Analysis —
[\ 3 A WY BREREENAREETRR Y

Risk Response —

R\ e e

Control Measures —

AR - FEREEEARABNER
REENRBERIRFIMAT

conduct analysis on the risk including the impact extent and possibility of occurrence

#r

choose a proper risk response method and develop a risk mitigation strategy

EIBEE R R R E ST A 2 T PR B

H 2R B

propose up-to-date internal control measures and policy and process

2 Fic 930 5 10 PO BB 8 7 R BOR B T2
Risk Control — continuously monitor the risks identified and implement relevant internal control measures to
ensure the effective operation of the risk response strategy
JeR e 2 FHERRIE 35 R ke I B p AR e 8Y R R

Risk Management Report —

action plan
JoE\ B 5 FER R BRI RANEPEET AR - FIE

The process used to review the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems and to resolve material internal control
defects:

The Group establishes a risk management information and communication
channel that is functional within the whole basic risk control procedure,
connects different levels in the reporting system and different departments
and operation units, so as to ensure timely, accurate and complete
communication of information, laying a solid foundation for the monitoring
and improvement of risk management.

Different departments and business units of the Group regularly inspect and
examine their own risk management process in order to locate the
shortcomings and remedy the situation if possible. Their inspection and
examination reports are delivered to the Group’s risk management department
in time.

The internal audit department of the enterprise may regularly or irregularly
carry out supervision and evaluation in relevant departments and business
units to decide if they are capable of performing regular risk management tasks
and their related work performance. Internal control review of operational
cycles is conducted under rotational basis. Reports of supervision and
evaluation are delivered directly to the audit committee established by the
Board of Directors.

e TR R VL B B 4 5 R 9 8 B 1T

summarise results of risk assessment and analysis and internal audit, formulate and report an
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The Board reviewed the effectiveness of risk management and internal control
systems and further considers that (i) there was no material issue relating to the
Group's risk management and internal controls, including financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management functions of the Group and
considers these effective; and (ii) that there were adequate staff with
appropriate and adequate qualifications and experience, resources for
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions, and adequate
training programmes had been provided during the Reporting Period.

Internal audit function

The Group's internal audit function is performed by an internal audit team,
which reports directly to the Audit Committee. The procedures and internal
controls for the handling and dissemination of inside information: The
Company has implemented proper procedures and internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information. The Company has
established a policy with close regard to the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside
Information” issued by the Securities and Futures Commission, to ensure that
all the Group's stakeholders and the public are provided with appropriate
information relating to the Group in a timely and simultaneous manner.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Yang Dong John ("Mr. Yang") has been serving as the company secretary
of the Company since 1 April 2019. Mr. Yang has also been acting as the chief
financial officer of the Company since 6 May 2020. During the Reporting Period,
Mr. Yang has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional trainings as
required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

Details of the biography of Mr. Yang are set out in the section headed
"Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution is
proposed for each substantially separate issue at general meetings, including
the election of individual Directors. All resolutions put forward at general
meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results
will be posted on the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange
after each general meeting.
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Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting (“EGM”) and
Putting Forward Proposals

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles of Association, any one or more
shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the Company, to require
an EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition, and such meeting shall be held within two months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders may send written
enquiries to the Company. The Company will not normally deal with verbal or
anonymous enquiries.

Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above to the
following:
Address:  2/F, No.1 Building Hampton By Hilton

No. 169 Yu Lin Road

Tianya District

Sanya, the Hainan Province

The PRC (For the attention of the Board of Directors/Company
Secretary)

Email: hailankonggu@hailanholdings.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send the original
duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case
may be) to the above address and provide their full name, contact details and
identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be
disclosed as required by law.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with shareholders is
essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding of the
Group's business performance and strategies. The Company makes the best
endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders. In this regard,
the Company established a shareholders’ communication policy and review it
on a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness. The Board is committed in
providing clear and full performance information of the Group to shareholders
through the publication of interim and annual reports. In addition to the
circulars, notices and financial reports sent to shareholders, additional
information of the Group is also available to shareholders on the website of the
Company.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend the annual general meeting for which
at least 20 clear business days’ notice is given. The chairman of the Board and
Directors are available to answer questions on the Group’s business at the
meeting. All resolutions at the general meeting are decided by a poll which is
conducted by the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong
Kong.

The Group values feedbacks from shareholders on its effort to promote
transparency and foster investor relationships. Comments and suggestions are
always welcomed.

The annual general meeting of the Company provides a useful forum for
shareholders to exchange views with the Board. All Directors will make an
effort to attend. External auditor is also available at the annual general meeting
to address shareholders’ queries. In case of any general meeting to approve a
connected transaction or any other transaction that is subject to shareholders’
approval, members of the independent Board committee will also make an
effort to address shareholders’ queries.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There are no changes in the Company’s constitutional documents for the
Reporting Period.
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Report of the Directors
EHEHRE

The Board is pleased to present its report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Reporting Period.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in investment holding, properties development and sales and rental
of developed properties. There were no significant changes in the nature of the
Group's principal activities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the Reporting Period are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on
pages 107 to 108 of this annual report.

The Board did not recommend payment of final dividend to the shareholders
of the Company for the Reporting Period.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group as required pursuant to Schedule 5
to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
comprising analysis of the Group performance during the year, a discussion on
the Group's future business development and a description of the principal
risks and uncertainties facing the Group, are set out in the sections “Chairman’s

i

Statement”, “Management Discussion and Analysis”, from pages 5 to 21 of this
annual report. Discussions on the environmental policies and performance,
compliance by the Group with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group and the account of the key relationships of the
Group with its stakeholders are contained in the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” on pages 69 to 98 of this annual report. These discussions

forms part of this Directors’ Report.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining shareholders who are entitled to attend and
vote at the annual general meeting (the "AGM"), the register of members of
the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 1 June 2021 to Friday, 4 June 2021,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to qualify for attending and voting at the AGM, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates should be lodged
for registration with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 31 May 2021.
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Report of the Directors
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Reporting Period are set out in note 11 to the consolidated financial
statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the investment properties of the Group during the
Reporting Period are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
Reporting Period are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during
the Reporting Period are set out in the note 33(a) to the consolidated financial
statements and the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2020, the Company did not have any distributable reserves
available for distribution to Shareholders.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the single largest supplier and the five largest suppliers for the
Group (exclusive of Danzhou Phase 1) accounted for approximately 35.5% and
72.1% of our total purchases under our supply contracts respectively. The
percentage of revenue attributable to the Group’s single largest customer and
five largest customers accounted for less than 30% of the total revenue of the
Group respectively.

To the best of the knowledge of the Directors, save for Nanjing Huizhi
Construction Installation Engineering Co., Ltd. and Zhonghui (Jiangsu)
Decoration Park Engineering Co. Ltd. which are indirectly held as to 100% by
Mr. Yeung Man, a controlling shareholder of the Company, being one of the
five largest suppliers for the Group, none of the Directors, their respective close
associates or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) have any interest in any
of the Group’'s five largest customers or suppliers.
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Report of the Directors
EHEHRE

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors

Ms. Zhou Li

Ms. Fan Wenyi

Mr. Chen Zhonghua (resigned on 15 October 2020)

Mr. Chen Xiang (appointed on 15 October 2020)

Mr. Zhang Yu (appointed on 1 June 2020 and resigned on
25 October 2020)

Non-executive Director
Ms. Yao Yu (retired on 1 June 2020)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Yong

Mr. E Junyu (retired on 1 June 2020)

Dr. Zhao Guoging

Mr. Deng Shaochao (appointed on 1 June 2020)

In accordance with Article 108 of the Articles of Association, Ms. Zhou Li, Dr.
Zhao Guoging and Mr. Deng Shaochao will retire from their office at the AGM,
being eligible, Ms. Zhou Li and Dr. Zhao Guoging will offer themselves for re-
election at the AGM while Mr. Deng Shaochao will retire as independent non-
executive Director, after the conclusion of the AGM and will not offer himself
for re-election at the AGM.

DIRECTORS” AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management are set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 22 to 29 of this
annual report.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed herein, at no time during the Reporting Period was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares or
debentures of the Group or any other body corporate; and none of the
Directors, or their spouses or children under the age of 18, had any right to
subscribe for the securities of the Group, or had exercised any such right during
the Reporting Period.
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Report of the Directors
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the Annual General Meeting has a
service contract that is not determinable within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Each of the executive Directors is entitled to a basic salary pursuant to their
respective service agreements, which is determined with reference to their
responsibilities, experience, performance and the prevailing market conditions.
In addition, each of them is entitled to a bonus of such amount as the Board
may determine in respect of each complete financial year of the Company.

Each of the non-executive Director and independent non-executive Directors
is entitled to a director’s fee pursuant to their respective letters of appointment,
which is determined with reference to their responsibilities, experience,
performance and the prevailing market conditions. Save for director’s fee, each
of the non-executive Director and independent non-executive Directors is not
expected to receive any other remuneration for holding his/her office as a non-
executive Director or an independent non-executive Director respectively.

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Details of remuneration of the Directors during the Reporting Period are set
out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of remuneration paid to members of the senior management by band
for the Reporting Period is set out below:

ERZIRBEH
EENBRRBFAGEREEZEENER L
ERAATR —FRE LM BAELREECEE
RERIN 2IRIEEH

BEHWITEFTHRREREE B IR B
EAXFE  WHS2ERFZBE & K7
RERTAMERE ° Wi BELEERESR
EAL - FEHEFER AR AT —ETEY R
FEPERE

BN TEFT AN TESTARRERS
FEENZEERDESHES - WHIZERSE
wWEIN - BHEERTESTRBIUFATES
HAEEE D B EIFITE RSB IFATT
BB WEUET A MBS o

o e AR BT I

BRARESHEEETNOFBEENNGE TS
HWEKMIFE10 0

HERE  ASREEEKE XN MIRE
BEoeFBENT

Number of
individual(s)
Remuneration band & AE
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 ZE 7T 1,500,000 7 7T
(equivalent to RMB892,858 to RMB1,339,286) (FBER AR 92858 T2 ARE 1,339,2867T) 3
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 57T 2 2,000,000 7T
(equivalent to RMB1,339,287 to RMB1,785,714) (FHERARKE 1339287 TE AREE 1,785,714 7T) 2
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the three independent non-executive
Directors, a confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent non-executive
Directors to be independent in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

POTENTIAL COMPETING BUSINESS

Set out below are details of certain businesses of Mr. Yeung Man, a controlling
Shareholder and an executive Director (disqualified on 18 December 2017)
which were not included into the Group as at the date of this report. For
further details, please refer to the section headed “Relationship with Controlling
Shareholders — Excluded Businesses” in the Company’s prospectus dated 30
June 2016 (the "Prospectus”).

EXCLUDED HAINAN PROJECTS

As disclosed in the Prospectus, the Excluded Hainan Projects held by the
private group (being companies owned by Mr. Yeung Man apart from
members of our Group which are principally engaged in real estate
development, the “Private Group”) comprised two properties development
projects in Wenchang and Haikou in the Hainan Province, details of which are

WL IR TS 2 WA

ARRIEWBI =2 BIIFATESSBREL
MRAUEIBHRZERAE B A 2
R BB EWRAE3BME RARRR/AE
BYFRITEFHRBIAL

TEAE Bt T+ 2675
TXEHINERBRERATESGHLE (R
2017F 12 18 AKX EER) B TEBFIS -
RARERH - ZEEBURFTAREH - B
BE— S B2HARRIBHA20165F6
AB0BMBRER(BRER]) [EIERARR
BB1R — BRONETS] —6f o

BN R TH H

MANARERPIEE - MAKE (BHHTE
BEML THEAKRAEBKERRNEZRAT
TZNEFHEER  SE [RAKED RS
HkRINEREIER BRUNEREEXE AN
MIEREZRER - BREFBEHN T :

set out below:

Location

2

Description
i

Status as at 31 December 2020
72020512 A31 BHMRR

Wenchang Dongjiao
Coconut Forest

On 8 January 2010, Chung Wai Holding Company Limited
("Chung Wai Holding"), and the People’s Government of
Wenchang entered into a co-operation framework agreement,
pursuant to which the People’s Government of Wenchang
agreed that, among others (i) all expenses and developmental
construction costs for the primary land development of the
land reclamation of 400 mu would be borne by Chung Wai
Holding, (ii) to establish a project company namely, Wenchang
City Construction Investment Company Limited which was
owned as to 40% by the People’s Government of Wenchang
and 60% by Chung Wai Holding (which was owned as to 30%,
40% and 30% by Chung Wai Holding, the People’s Government
of Wenchang and Nanjing Yu Ming Hang respectively as at the
latest practicable date), and (iii) Wenchang City Construction
Investment Company Limited will be invited to participate in
the tendering for and the reclaimed land will be sold via tender,
auction, or listing-for-sale procedures with reference to the
agreed land reclamation cost and would be determined
between Chung Wai Holding and the People’s Government of
Wenchang.

As at 31 December 2020, the People’s
Government of Wenchang had yet to
proceed with the bidding, invitation,
auction and listing for the land use
right of the relevant reclaimed land in
accordance with the co-operation
framework agreement. There is
uncertainty as to when and whether
the reclaimed land could be
obtained.
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Location Description Status as at 31 December 2020
b B Hut 7202012 A 31 BHAMRR
& R ZBHEBAR 7201051 A8 H » REERERAR([HEEZER])EX  M2020F 124310 XEARK

Gui Lin Yang Bin Hai
Tourism Area
in Haikou

RIFE A RIAEME
BB IKE R

EARBIINAFEESEG®  BUENBARBRNRE
(B BFE) G 4oomiﬁ,iimmigiim%@mﬁﬁ*ﬁﬁﬂﬁz&
FIEE AR A A B AR BT AR RS © (WAL TE B RRIX A
MWMERIEEBR AT ”‘Hi’\EIJEEX mARBTF
Ko rp B S R 75 40% K2 60% 4 25 HEEMRAIITH
HRD Rl EIER - X & ﬁAEE&H&Fﬁ?L@%ﬁ%
E30%~40%&30%$§‘ RN EMBMERKES

AEBEB2HEBEZ MESIHEELX2EEHTEN
iﬁﬁtéi/iﬁﬁﬁ ERBHEBREFLE WA RER
HYEMARBINETE °

On 9 March 2007, Haikou Bo Tai Long Property Development
Company Limited ("Haikou Bo Tai Long") entered into a land
grant contract with the relevant competent authority for,
among other matters, acquisition of the land use rights in a
piece of land located in the west of Gui Lin Yang Bin Hai
Tourism Area (FEMF B/ IR EEIR ) with a site area of 642,350
sg.m. (“the land use right of Gui Lin Yang Bin Hai"). On 7
January 2008, Haikou Bo Tai Long obtained the construction
land planning permit (& 5% A #h 3] 2l 7F 7] 78 ) for the said
piece of land. Such permit has expired and Haikou Bo Tai Long
has not filed any renewal application.

R2007F3 B9H - BOBREREMEREERAR (8
AERE ) BEEITEERF LI MEEAR » U(HAP
BIE) WAL A AEMOF B S IR P S0 A — IR B AR A
642,350 *F 5 K 89 1 10 A9 + 1 {F A ([ EEMGEE S L it
A - R2008F 1 A78 OB ERER L+ HES

A AR B FFATRE o ;AﬁTﬁ,ﬁ&EE?ﬁi B OESR
B ARE RN EIEHE

On 19 July 2007, Chung Wai (China) Properties Group Limited
("Chung Wai (China) Properties’) (as transferee), entered
into an agreement (the "equity transfer agreement”) with
the then equity holders of Haikou Bo Tai Long (as transferors),
all being independent third parties, for the acquisition of 60%
interests in Haikou Bo Tai Long at a consideration of
RMB179,210,000.

20077198 - hE(PE) EXEBARAQF ([
B(FE)EX]) (ERAEA) BB DERE SR RE
FEAMEREZAN) (RMHR/BILE=T7)MEREA
FR 179,210,000 7T Y I /8 1 18 2 [2 19 60% 1 25 &1 37 1
((REERE R -
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On 31 December 2020, Haikou Bo Tai
Long appealed to the People’s
Government of Haikou on the
administrative litigation for revoking
the decision on recovery of the land
with a payment. The Supreme
People’s Court made the retrial and
upheld the original judgment,
revoking the Decision on the
Recovery of the State-owned
Construction Land Use Right by the
People’s Government of Haikou (/&
A ARBAWEEAZRAH
ERERES)
202012 A31 8 - BOERE
RHFEOTARBFREEA B K
Bl £ #RFEITHFARMN - E&x
P ARERBERIIRERRA -
REECE Q™ AR BT E A 2
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Location

i 2h

Description
Hat

Status as at 31 December 2020
742020512 A 31 BARR

On 27 October 2017, Haikou Land Bureau issued the Idle Land
Verification (& T #FRE F ) to Haikou Bo Tai Long, and the
idling was caused by government reasons. On 7 November
2017, Haikou Land Bureau issued the Notice on the Availability
of the Cost of Obtaining the Land and Preliminary Reasonable
Investment of Related Materials (28 7 £2 it £ 1tb EX 15 A 2K A1
AT HR & 32 I A AEBE A AL 938 A1) to Haikou Bo Tai Long. On
19 December 2017, Haikou Land Bureau issued the Notice on
the Meeting concerning Recovery of the Land Use Right with a
Payment (AR BRAEBKE L FEAESENBA) ©
Haikou Bo Tai Long.

F20175F10 427 B - A TR L BAE O HRE TEH
ETHREE) RERBNRAEBKHEE - KR20174F 11
A78 B0+ REREAERERECENEMH T HE
SRCAMAT RS BRI AR B R A 7220175 12 4
198 - BREL RS EREFL(ERERAERD
T fE RSB -

On 22 March 2018, Haikou Land Bureau issued the Decision on
the Recovery of the State-owned Construction Land Use Right
by the People’s Government of Haikou (& R T A R BT YL E
BB 3R R {F A #EVRTEZE) to Haikou Bo Tai Long.
2018F3H 2B BOELBERAEOBREZELCEO ™
ARBATWEIEA @R AMERERES) -

On 30 July 2018, Haikou Bo Tai Long filed a lawsuit to the
Haikou Intermediate People’s Court, requesting the
cancellation of the No. 1 Land Recovery Decision (1 5 Y3 R
7F), and the Court accepted the case on the same day.

20187 A30R - BOEREREATHRARERR
REAFRLA » FASKHEH 1 SRUBBIRTE - AR E AL RE IR -

On 25 December 2018, the Haikou Intermediate People’s Court
made the first instance administrative judgment. Both Haikou
Bo Tai Long and the Haikou City Government appealed to the
Higher People’s Court of Hainan Province within the statutory
period. According to the judgment, the People’s Government
of Haikou shall make a land compensation decision within
three months of the effective date of the judgment.

2018 12 4250 - BAMHRRARERIEL —FBITHH
R BAERENEATRMEETHRABMEEE
DARNRERIRE L5 - #DREOTARBFEHIAE
R =ME A AER DI ERTE -

i B A B W
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Location

i 2h

Description
Hiat

Status as at 31 December 2020
742020512 A 31 AR

On 25 March 2019, both Haikou Bo Tai Long and the People’s
Government of Haikou appealed to the Higher People’s Court
of Hainan Province. On 5 May of that year, the appeal was
rejected by the administrative judgment and the original
judgment was upheld.

2019325 ABABREREOTARBRGREEE
BRARZERRE LS - BEFS A5 BITRADREKE £
o MERIRA o

In respect of Bo Tai Long’s administrative litigation on the land
compensation, on 20 October 2019, the Haikou Intermediate
People’s Court supported Bo Tai Long's petition in the first
instance. According to the judgment, the government shall
make a land compensation decision within three months of
the effective date of the judgment. On 17 July 2020, the
Provincial Higher People’s Court upheld the original judgment
in the second instance. It is currently in the process of applying
for execution.

B T ETIGER A - 201910 A20 A8 O —
BEXFHEREQNRFG  FIRBAEARER =R
Y TR EORTE - 20207 A 17 BE Rt B # R
# - BRIERBRITRED

In respect of administrative litigation for revoking the decision
on recovery of the land, the judgement by the Haikou
Intermediate People’s Court was to support the government’s
decision on recovery of the land, and the Provincial Higher
People’s Court upheld the original judgement. On 16 May
2019, Bo Tai Long applied to the Supreme People’s Court for a
retrial. It is currently in the process of retrial.

HEH U ] + 3R FE 1T BCER 74 /8 [ AR B R 32 45 BURF I
WIRTE AR HADRERFR A 2 20195 A 16 HEZR[E
NEARERFEFEDE - BRBERETD -
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NON-TARGET CITIES PROJECTS

As disclosed in the Prospectus, the Private Group had six Non-Target Cities
Projects, further details of which are set out below:

JF HARSR T I H
RMBRERAEE  AAREEEFAR
WMEE - BHFERAOT

Status as at Site area
Project Name Location Description 31 December 2020 Total GFA (sq.m.) (sq.m.)
R2020512 8318 BEEEE HEmE
HEER B HEB B R (F5HXK) (£5XK)
ZiQiYun Gu Nanjing, Jiangsu Residential and Fully completed and part of the 7283329 (including GFA of 7905196
Province commercial land for future development undeveloped land of project
calculating with a 30% plot ratio
for villa and the actual GFA of
which shall be subject to the
government's final approval)
ZRER TEARR EEREE BRERT - Bo Ak 7283329 (2738 B AFIE
RRERS LHHE T A2 BB ) 30% AR
KHEZREEE TEHE
REERERRRNRELE)
Xin Gang Financial Centre  Nanjing, Jiangsu Commercial, office Fully completed 134,7654 245139
Province and guesthouses
FELEAL IHERR B¥ BTEREE BRPRI
Bo En Garden Nanjing, Jiangsu Residential and Partly completed and partly 1,046,040.5 641,7288
Province commercial under development
BRIEE IHEER FEREX BABRT - BHEEF
CuiPing Cheng Yuan Nanjing, Jiangsu Residential and Partly completed and 549,1359 2719925
Province commercial partly under development
REFHR IHERR TEREE BATRT - PHEEF
Tuo Le Jia Nanjing, Jiangsu Residential and Fully completed 7479518 435,199.7
Province commercial
4% IHEER EEH RS ERHRT

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors had any direct or indirect
interest in a business which competed or might compete with the business of
the Group as required to be disclosed under Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules for
the Reporting Period.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

Each of the controlling Shareholders has confirmed to the Company of his/its
compliance with the non-competition undertakings provided to the Company
under the Deed of Non-Competition (as defined in the Prospectus). The
independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the status of compliance
and confirmed that all the undertakings under the Deed of Non-Competition
have been complied with by the controlling Shareholders during the period
commencing from the Deed of Non-Competition and up to 31 December 2020.

B EXAIREES  RBRENE MBEEFE
EEENEAREEBFERF AT E
B RGP A ARE ETRAISE 810 FH

AR -

AN TR

BERBREMAQFER  BERRENER
FRIE(TERBRER) AR RRENTE
FEGE BYUIENTERDRATHEHER
WHERIEAE AR B B R F 2R FIIAE & 2020
F12A31 B EAERTHFRIE TR EEGE ©

WA AT 20204F ) 57



Report of the Directors

IR

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions” in this
report, there was no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted as at
31 December 2020 or at any time during the Reporting Period.

Save as disclosed, there was no contract of significance between the Company
or one of its subsidiaries on the one hand, and a controlling shareholder or any
of its subsidiaries on the other, subsisting during or as at the end of the
Reporting Period.

Save as disclosed, there was also no other contract of significance for the
provision of services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by a controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries during or as at the end of the same period.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director or other officer of the
Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or about the
execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto subject
to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. Such provision was in force during
the Reporting Period and remained in force as at the date of this report. The
Company has also arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance for the Directors and officers of the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the Reporting Period.
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DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

As of 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the Directors and
the chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the "SFO")) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO or as notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code") were as follows:

(A) Interest in Shares of the Company

#wH N EET EJU\EE‘ 5 153 Ko AH B I
& 2 Wt IR
HE2020F12831H ARAIBEEREBT
BABRARAB REFEABEEZE(EEXRFE
FRAEEM((RERBEGKRD D EXVE) 2
EHH%" - HERMDREST  EARENA

REREBEFRBEKRMNEIDEATEE Y

EZRMERREEMETABZETESRSN
%+TE‘JUE+¢E\UJ>§E%D§7TK A R BB
2R EARIT

(A) A2 W) B Jie o 2

Number of Approximate
Shares held/ shareholding

Name of Director Capacity Position (Long/Short) interested in percentage
BB BEER MR
EEnA 54 B (HR/%KR) R B E Bat
Ms. Zhou Li Interest of spouse (Note 1) Long 225,000,000 75%
Shares
e FoiBts (et 1) A 225,000,000
A tn
Notes btax -

M 225,000,000 shares of the Company are held by Zhong Jia (International) Investment
Construction Company Limited (“Zhong Jia (International)’) and Zhong Ze
(International) Investment Limited ("Zhong Ze (International)’) as to 224,325,000
shares and 675,000 shares, respectively. Mr. Yeung Man (“Mr. Yeung") beneficially
owns 100% of the issued share capital of Zhong Jia (International) and Zhong Ze
(International) and is deemed, or taken to be, interested in all the shares held by
Zhong Jia (International) and Zhong Ze (International) for the purposes of the SFO.
Mr. Yeung and Ms. Zhou Li have declared that they are cohabiting as spouse.
Accordingly, Ms. Zhou Li is deemed, or taken to be, interested in the shares in which
Mr. Yeung is interested for the purpose of the SFO.

2) As of the date of this report, the total number of issued shares of the Company was
300,000,000.

m FR(BER)BREESARAR(HE(E
BR) D R (R R ERRAT ([HE(E
&) |) 455 7N A 7] 225,000,000 AL D - —F D
RIFEH 224,325,000 i A% 17 & 675,000 IR AR 153 ©
BEkE((BEE)BExEa+TE (BB R
AOZ (IR ) 100% BB I TR - BURREH
REIEGOIWIE A E ERA P 5= (B &
R (B MATE R % - 58U E R A
Mzt H/BRE GBS - Bt REHFR
HEKRGIME - ANZEHEALEERS
SHERTEANRMD PSS -

@ BEAREAH ARFRCBITROLESL
300,000,000 B °
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(B) Long Position in the Shares of Associated Corporation

(i) Long position in Zhong Jia (International) and Zhong Ze

(B) 7 R gk 7 L P A o B e AT
(i) RPEZ(ER)RPEEER BT

(International) B
Number and
Name of classof  Approximate
Director or Name of associated Position securities held/  shareholding
Chief Executive corporation Capital (Long/Short) interested in percentage
BE/BE
BESHTHR B2 BRNES MR R
BERME HBEEER 5% (& /%R) HERER Batk
Ms. Zhou Li Zhong Jia (International) Interest of spouse Long 1 100%
(Note 1) ordinary share
BFI2Z+ SEAEY) ot (et ) "E 1L AR
Zhong Ze (International) Interest of spouse Long 7,000 100%
(Note 1) ordinary shares
HE (ERR) Aot (Hrat 1) HE 7000 RE R
Note: HiaE
0] Mr. Yeung owns 100% interest in Zhong Jia (International) and Zhong Ze 0] BRAERERTE(BEER) kHZE(=H
(International). Mr. Yeung and Ms. Zhou Li have declared that they are BX)100% B HE %5 o 1558 4 R AR 2+
cohabiting as spouse. Accordingly, Ms. Zhou Li is deemed, or taken to be, WAEFRE MRS - Bt - BB HFR
interested in the Shares of Zhong Jia (International) and Zhong Ze BEBAImE - AFRZ TR A
(International) in which Mr. Yeung is interested for the purpose of the SFO. EERG AR EESNT = (BEER)
R (BIBR) BRID P A fE ek o
Save as disclosed above, as of 31 December 2020, none of the Directors and & iX?}}ZEx FHN FR2020F12A31H AR
chief executive of the Company and their respective close associates had any FIEE ERTHABNESE G EHHE A

interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.
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INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL
OF THE COMPANY

So far as the Directors are aware as of 31 December 2020, the following persons
(other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company) had interests or
short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the
SFO:

B BR AR A E A B
B,/ BIRAE

MEEHM BZE220F12A8318 L TA
T (R RREEFHETTHRABRIN RIREE
HREE G ZE 3361& BB AR AR AERLM
AE) S A B AR 17 2k AR B8 IR 1) A B A 25 ook

E .

Number

and class of Approximate

Name of Substantial Position securities held/ shareholding

Shareholder Nature of interest (Long/Short) interested in percentage
¥E/®E

EENES MR

TERRER EmME B (R RR) HARER BO

Zhong Jia Beneficial owner Long 224,325,000 74.78%
(International) Shares
5= (BRR) BEREAA HE 224,325,000
S A A7)

Mr. Yeung Interest of a controlled Long 224,325,000 74.78%
corporation (Note) Shares
BEE Ry EE R (M) HE 224,325,000
A 17

ot it :

224,325,000 shares of the Company are held by Zhong Jia (International). Mr. Yeung beneficially owns
100% of the issued share capital of Zhong Jia (International) and is deemed, or taken to be, interested
in all the shares held by Zhong Jia (International) for the purposes of the SFO. Mr. Yeung is the sole
director of Zhong Jia (International).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, the Directors are not aware
of any person who had an interest or short position in the shares and the
underlying shares of the Company which would require to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Connected Transactions and
Continuing Connected Transactions”, related party transactions of our Group
that did not constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules made during the Reporting
Period were set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

a2 (BB 358 AN A F1224,325000 815 » A A B
A5 (BERR) 100% BB EITIRA - BURIRE F RS &6
WRABNKEFEEER R (BB MMERNDEZ - BLER
P (ER)HE—E% -

B EXIEEI - R2020F 128318 BEE
AR B IRIEES R EEFIEXVIBE2 X
3D EMEXARA R TR ESE BARRIRE
FH R EIEGE 336 AR ENELMA
AR B () MBI () P B R OA R K
AL -

B 7 28 5
BIREXZRBERERS] —BAREE
Sh  AREBERHERBEL B TEX TR
FUABR THNEERSAFEMBEI SN
BARZFENEA M BERERMEES
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING B8 5 R s )

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Reporting Period, our Group had the following connected RIREHAIRE @ KREBBUTHER S - 5515
transactions, details of which are disclosed in compliance with the  J3iRiE F T3R8 14A SR TIHE -

requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Renewal of Construction Cooperation Framework Agreement A T T A EELSR =
The transaction amount of the continuing connected transactions of the  ANEERREEAMIFEBEL SN 5 S EEE
Group for the Reporting Period is set out below: FgnR
Transaction
Amount for Year
ended
Connected Person Nature of Transaction 31 December 2020
Bz
202012 A31H
BEAL REME LtFERSE
RMB'000
AREETTT
Non-exempt continuing connected transactions
HBRIFEBEERS
Nanjing Huizhi Construction Installation Engineering Construction Cooperation 64,751
Co., Ltd. (Note 1) Framework Agreement
MRREERELTRTIRAERAR(MF1) TR I AEER
Zhonghui (Jiangsu) Decoration Park Engineering Co., Ltd. Construction Cooperation 31,305
(Note 2) Framework Agreement
REOIE) MR TREER AR (MiF2) TR IEEERTZ
96,056
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Notes:

Nanjing Huizhi Construction Installation Engineering Company Limited (5 RS LR 5
T2 AP A]) (‘Nanjing Huizhi’), a company established in the PRC with limited liability
which is indirectly held as to 100% by Mr. Yeung Man, a controlling shareholder of the
Company.

On 8 April 2016, Nanjing Huizhi entered into a framework construction services agreement
(the "Construction Cooperation Framework Agreement”’) with the Company and its
subsidiaries, Sanya Fenghuang Xincheng, Sanya Fenghuang Shuiyun, Hainan Nanhai Xiang
Long and Danzhou Shuang Lian (the “Relevant Parties’) effective from the Listing Date up
to 31 December 2018.

Under the Construction Cooperation Framework Agreement, Nanjing Huizhi has agreed,
where it is selected following the relevant tender processes, to provide the construction
services to the Group according to the construction contracts entered into between Nanjing
Huizhi and the Group from time to time. The construction fee would be specified in the
construction contracts to be entered into between Nanjing Huizhi and the Group from time
to time. The Construction Cooperation Framework Agreement has expired on 31 December

2018.

On 25 January 2019, the Relevant Parties have agreed to continue with the arrangement
under the Construction Cooperation Framework Agreement after the expiry of its term upon
similar terms and/or covering similar scope of services as in the Construction Cooperation
Framework Agreement by entering into of the new construction cooperation framework
agreement entered into among the Relevant Parties (2019 Renewal Framework
Agreement”), of which it extends the Construction Cooperation Framework Agreement for
three financial years commencing from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2021.

The annual caps for the transactions under the 2019 Renewal Framework Agreement for each
of the three years ending 31 December 2019, 2020 and 2021 will be approximately
RMB279,351,000, RMB279,889,000 and RMB260,814,000, respectively. For details of these
transactions, please refer to the announcement and circular of the Company dated 25
January 2019 and 26 March 2019, respectively.

On 28 October 2020, Zhonghui (Jiangsu) Decoration Park Engineering Co,, Ltd. (FF 2 (JT &)
4 & B AR T 12 4 R 2 7)) (‘Zhonghui (Jiangsu)’) and Nanjing Zhonghui Construction
Engineering Co, Ltd. (FA R BEZE T 25 R 7)) ('Nanjing Zhonghui Construction”),
both companies established in the PRC with limited liability which are indirectly held as to
100% by Mr. Yeung Man, a controlling shareholder of the Company, entered into the
supplemental agreement (the "Supplemental Framework Agreement’) to the 2019
Renewal Framework Agreement with Nanjing Huizhi and the Relevant Parties. Under the 2019
Renewal Framework Agreement (as amended by the Supplemental Framework Agreement),
Zhonghui (Jiangsu) and Nanjing Zhonghui Construction have agreed to replace Nanjing
Huizhi to provide construction services to the Group according to the construction contracts
entered into between Zhonghui (Jiangsu) and Nanjing Zhonghui Construction and the
Group from time to time. The construction fee would be specified in the construction
contracts to be entered into between Zhonghui (Jiangsu) or Nanjing Zhonghui Construction
and the Group from time to time. The 2019 Renewal Framework Agreement (as amended by
the Supplemental Framework Agreement) is effective from 28 October 2020 and will expire
on 31 December 2021. The annual caps for the transactions under the Supplemental
Framework Agreement for each of the three years ending 31 December 2019, 2020 and 2021
will be approximately RMB279,351,000, RMB279,889,000 and RMB260,814,000, respectively.
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Corporate Governance Relating to the 2019 Renewal Framework
Agreement with Nanjing Huizhi

Summaries of corporate governance mechanisms in place in the Reporting
Period regarding the non-exempt continuing connected transaction with
Nanjing Huizhi under the 2019 Renewal Framework Agreement are as follows:

(i) Independence in Selection Process

The Group has adopted an independent mechanism with the following
features to govern and monitor the selection process for our potential
bidders:

(@)  thelnternal Tender Review Committee, which comprises members
appointed by the independent non-executive Directors and
accountable to the independent non-executive Directors, is
responsible for reviewing the terms and conditions of tenders and
screen out unsuitable tenders, which shall also comply with the
requirements of the relevant laws and regulations. The members
of the Internal Tender Review Committee include the heads of our
Group's tender department and the relevant project general
managers of our Group. The appointment of the members of the
Internal Tender Review Committee by the independent non-
executive Directors is based on nominations by the executive
Directors and relevant senior management of our Group. Ms. Zhou
Li shall abstain from such nomination process;

(b)  objective criteria for identifying potential bidders, such as the
price, quality of construction work, size of the project, construction
schedule and other required services, is prescribed by the Internal
Tender Review Committee in relation to each of our projects and
each criterion must be approved by the Internal Tender Review
Committee;

() the relevant project company will contact qualified potential
bidders and require them to provide information regarding their
qualifications, industry experience and the size and composition
of their management teams; and
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(ii)

(d)  the relevant project company will be responsible for compiling a
list of qualified potential bidders in accordance with the
prescribed criteria laid down by the Internal Tender Review
Committee and the relevant project company will issue tender
application documents to three to five qualified bidders. In the
event that Nanjing Huizhi, Zhonghui (Jiangsu) or Nanjing
Zhonghui Construction is chosen as one of the potential
construction companies after the selection process described
above and it submits a completed tender application document
to the relevant project company, the relevant project company
will submit Nanjing Huizhi’s, Zhonghui (Jiangsu)’s or Nanjing
Zhonghui Construction’s tender application document to the
Internal Tender Review Committee for review and approval. The
Internal Tender Review Committee will only approve Nanjing
Huizhi's, Zhonghui (Jiangsu)'s or Nanjing Zhonghui Construction’s
application if Nanjing Huizhi, Zhonghui (Jiangsu) or Nanjing
Zhonghui Construction is considered to have a competitive
advantage in the relevant market in which the relevant project will
be situated.

Shortlisted qualified bidders shall submit tender documents to us or the
tendering agency appointed by us. The assessment committee established
by us is responsible for reviewing tenders and selecting a tender for
acceptance according to applicable laws and regulations. According to the
Measures on the Tender and Commencement of Construction Projects (L
278 B 2R b T HRIZISIZENIE), the selected industry expert(s) will be
disqualified if he/she is found to have a conflict of interest. After the
assessment committee has selected a tender for acceptance, we will award
the constructions contract to the successful bidder.

Independent Review of Construction Services Provided by
Nanjing Huizhi, Zhonghui (Jiangsu) and Nanjing Zhonghui
Construction

In addition, we have also put in place the following procedures with a
view to monitoring the quality of construction work carried out by
Nanjing Huizhi, Zhonghui (Jiangsu) or Nanjing Zhonghui Construction if
it is selected to provide construction services to the Group after the
above tender and selection procedures:

(@  monthly reports regarding the construction progress and the
quality of construction services prepared by independent qualified
engineering supervisory companies will be provided to the
independent non-executive Directors, and the views and
recommendations of the independent non-executive Directors
will be adopted by the Company; and
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(b)  written approval from the Internal Tender Review Committee is
required if Nanjing Huizhi, Zhonghui (Jiangsu) or Nanjing
Zhonghui Construction seeks to modify the scope of work,
construction schedule or other relevant information as provided
in the construction contract.

The Directors believe that the above selection and review mechanism
will ensure that the terms of the 2019 Renewal Agreement are
conducted on normal commercial terms and are in the best interests of
our Company and our independent shareholders as a whole. In the
Reporting Period, the mechanisms have been effective and operated
accordingly.

Confirmation from Independent Non-Executive Directors

All the independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions and confirmed that those transactions had
been entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company and the
Group (where appropriate);

(2)  either on normal commercial terms or better; and
(3) according to the relevant agreements governing the relevant
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of

the Shareholders as a whole.

Confirmations from the Company’s Independent Auditors

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board has engaged the auditor
of the Company to perform review procedures on the aforesaid continuing
connected transactions. Based on the work performed, the auditor of the
Company had provided a letter to the Board confirming that the aforesaid
continuing connected transactions:

(i) have been approved by the Directors;

(i) were entered into in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group;

(i) were entered into in accordance with the terms of the relevant
agreements governing such transactions; and

(iv)  did not exceed the annual cap amounts.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

A Remuneration Committee was set up to make recommendations on the
Company’s emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the
Directors and senior management of the Group on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

None of the Directors waived any emoluments during the Reporting Period.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association
or the laws of Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and to the
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient public
float as required under the Listing Rules for the Reporting Period.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the Reporting Period, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

MATERIAL EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Acquisition of land use rights in Baimajing Town, Danzhou,
Hainan Province

In December 2020, Danzhou Shuanglian, an indirect subsidiary of the
Company, Hailan Shiye, and Hunan Jinzhong Property Investment Group Co.,
Lid* (R EB XL EEE G A F]) (‘Hunan Jinzhong') won the bid
in respect of the land parcel situated at “Merry Home" Resettlement Area,
Binhai New District, Baimajing Town, Danzhou, Hainan Province, the PRC (7
HEEAENTESHEZEEFE ER/RE" ZXER) at the auction at a
consideration of RMB1,080 million. On 6 January 2021, Danzhou Shuanglian
has received the confirmation notification from the auction company in
relation to the land acquisition (the “Land Acquisition”). The asset transfer
agreement in respect of the Land Acquisition was entered into on 7 January
2021 between Danzhou Binhai New District Management Committee (f&1/&
g ¥ B E 32 & 8 &), Danzhou Shuanglian and Hailan Shiye and Hunan
Jinzhong. Further, on 2 February 2021, Danzhou Shuanglian, Hailan Shiye and
Hunan Jinzhong entered into the joint venture agreement for the purpose of
the Land Acquisition.

For more details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 6
January 2021 and 10 February 2021.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The annual results and the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the Reporting Period have been reviewed by the Audit Committee
of the Company. Information on the work of the Audit Committee and its
composition are set out in section headed “Corporate Governance Report” on
page 38 of this annual report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having made specific enquiries
with all the Directors, each of the Directors has confirmed that he/she has
complied with the Model Code for the Reporting Period.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in the
section headed “Corporate Governance Report” in this annual report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the Reporting Period have been
audited by Mazars CPA Limited who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM. A resolution will be
proposed at the AGM to re-appoint Mazars CPA Limited as the auditor of the
Company for the ensuing year.

On behalf of the Board

Zhou Li
Chairperson

Hong Kong, 24 March 2021
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BREE -~ A KB R

ABOUT THIS REPORT

Hailan Holdings Limited (the “Company”), together with its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”), is pleased to present this Environmental, Social and
Governance Report (the “Report”) to provide an overview of the Group’s
management on significant issues affecting the operation, and the
performance of the Group in terms of environmental and social aspects.

Preparation Basis and Scope

This Report is prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) —
Governance Reporting Guide” and has complied with “comply or explain”

"Environmental, Social and
provision in the Listing Rules.

This Report summarises the performance of the Group in respect of corporate
social responsibility, covering its operating activities which are considered as
material by the Group — property development, sale and rental of developed
properties in the Hainan Province of People’s Republic of China (“PRC").

With the aim to optimise and improve the disclosure requirements in the
Report, the Group has taken initiative to formulate policies, record relevant
data, implement and monitor measures.

Reporting Period

This Report demonstrates our sustainability initiatives during the reporting
period from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020.

Contact Information

The Group welcomes your feedback on this Report for our sustainability
initiatives. Please contact us by email to hailankonggu@hailanholdings.com.
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INTRODUCTION

As one of the world’s leading property developer located in Hainan
Province with primarily activities in property development and property
investment, the Group is principally engaged in the business of residential
property in Hainan Province. Its projects include commodity residential
properties, commercial properties and hotels. Property investment projects
of the Group include residential property leasing and parking lots located
in tourist destinations like Sanya, Haikou and Danzhou and targets at mid-
and high-income vacationers from all over the country who spend their
holidays in Hainan Province.

The Group is rooted in the international tourism island of Hainan, focusing
on the development of high-end properties in tourist areas. The Group
upholds four principle values — “Standardisation, Innovation, Mutual
Success and Excellence” and strives to become a comprehensive developer
and operator for creating a better living environment. At the same time,
the Group recognises the importance of operating in a responsible manner
for the environment and community. We strive to achieve sustainable
development for affordable capital and long-term competitiveness by
integrating environmental and social factors into the management
considerations. Sustainability strategy is based on the compliance with the
legal requirements in the area where we operate and the opinions from
stakeholders. The Group has established and implemented various policies
to manage and monitor the risks related to environment, employment,
operating practices and community. Details of the management
approaches to sustainable development of different areas are illustrated in
this Report.

STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY
ASSESSMENT

The Group understands the success of the Group’s business depends on
the support from its key stakeholders, who (a) have invested or will invest
in the Group; (b) have the ability to influence the outcomes within the
Group; and () are interested in or affected by or have the potential to be
affected by the impact of the Group’s activities, products, services and
relationships. It allows the Group to understand risks and opportunities.
The Group will continue to ensure effective communication and maintain
good relationship with each of its key stakeholders.

Stakeholders are prioritised from time to time in view of the Group’s roles
and duties, strategic plan and business initiatives. The Group engages with
its stakeholders to develop mutually beneficial relationships and to seek
their views on its business proposals and initiatives as well as to promote
sustainability in the marketplace, workplace, community and environment.
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The Group acknowledges the importance of intelligence gained from the
stakeholders’ insights, inquiries and continuous interest in the Group's business
activities. The Group has identified key stakeholders that are important to our
business and established various channels for communication. The following
table provides an overview of the Group's key stakeholders, and various
platforms and methods of communication are used to reach, listen and

respond.

Stakeholders
&

Government

B

Expectations

e

Compliance with the laws and regulations
BTIERRER

Proper tax payment

FOEMA

Promote regional economic development
and employment

HEBEHEEERRE

AEEHRETHEENEHAEEXRE RPN
R EHMBERIZELAEE - ARED
BEHRMNEBMEBEZNEERNSE
YERYZEBBERE - TREMAEENE
ERNERSEREE REMLQENTE LS
BT o

Engagement channels

SHRE

— On-site inspections and checks
BEMBERERE

— Research and discussion through work
conferences, work reports preparation and
submission for approval in the PRC
FRIESH  TERSEREINPE
RRXBYFRMA T MW

— Annual and interim reports
FENPHHRE

— Company website

NGIFEN

Shareholders and Investors

BRRREREE

Low risk

L B

Return on the investment

% & B3

Information disclosure and transparency
BT ERE

Protection of interests and fair treatment of
shareholders

IRESRCR s RN 8 f5r

— Annual general meeting and other
shareholder meetings
BRRBFRERAMBKRRAS

— Annual report and announcements
FERERAE

— Newsletter
#ER

— Meeting with investors
R EESH

— Company website and The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited
NEREEREBBMEXHER AR
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Stakeholders Expectations Engagement channels
& ML SHERE
Employees — Safeguard the rights and interests of — Meetings and conferences
(=1 employees ERERE
RIGE SN KR — Training, seminars and briefing sessions
— Working environment Fl - g kG e
TEIRIR — Entertainment
— Career development opportunities B EE
EXERES — Intranet, emails, circulars and manuals
— Self-actualisation WEEAE ~ BEL - 8 R FH
BRER
— Occupational health and safety
BERERZD
Customers — Safe and high-quality products — Company website, brochures and annual
=B ZEREBEEM report
— Stable relationship NElAE EEMEEERS
1B E AR — Email and customer service hotline

Information transparency
BABERE

Integrity

B

Business ethics

[EEZEE:

B R EFRSELG
— Feedback forms
REEFRE
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Stakeholders
BHrE

Suppliers/Partners
HER,SERH

Expectations

i)

Long-term partnership
REIRH IR

Honest cooperation
HBAEE

Fair and open

NSCUNGE

Information resources sharing
BMBERA=E

Risk reduction

Engagement channels
sEEE

Business meetings, supplier conferences,
phone calls and interviews

XBe%  HERSE  EEKED
Review and assessment

B R APA

Ve
Peers/Industry Associations — Experience sharing — Industry conference
CEPEES - RBIZF OE3-4
— Fair competition — Site visit
NS BISRR
Financial Institutions — Compliance with the laws and regulations ~— Consulting
SRKE BFERER EAE)
— Information disclosure — Information disclosure
BEBEE BB EE
— Reports
W&
— Communication through relationship
manager
BREFKIEER
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Stakeholders Expectations Engagement channels
& ML SHERE
Media — Transparent information — Company website
e BB NSIE
— Communication with media — Media conference
B RIR A RmERETE
Public and Communities — Career opportunities — Volunteering
DPBATRHE TEfs =T
— Community involvement — Charity and social investment
el RERTERE
— Environmental responsibilities — Annual reports and announcements
REERME FERERRE
— Social responsibilities
HEeEE

Through general communication with stakeholders, the Group understands
the expectations and concerns from stakeholders. The feedbacks obtained
allow the Group to make more informed decisions, and to better assess and
manage the resulting impact.

The Group has adopted the principle of materiality in the ESG reporting by
understanding the key ESG issues that are important to the business of the
Group. All the key ESG issues and key performance indicators (KPIs) are
reported in the Report according to recommendations of the ESG Reporting
Guide (Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules) and the GRI Guidelines.
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The Group has evaluated the materiality and importance in ESG aspects
through the following steps:

Step 1: Identification — Industry Benchmarking

Relevant ESG areas were identified through the review of relevant ESG
reports of the local and international industry peers.

The materiality of each ESG area was determined based on the
importance of each ESG area to the Group through internal discussion of
the management and the recommendation of ESG Reporting Guide
(Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules).

Step 2: Prioritisation — Stakeholder Engagement

The Group discussed with key stakeholders on key ESG area identified
above to ensure all the key aspects to be covered.

Step 3: Validation — Determining Material Issues

Based on the discussion with key stakeholders and internal discussion
among the management, the Group’s management ensured all the key
and material ESG areas, which were important to the business
development, were reported and in compliance with ESG Reporting
Guide.

As a result of this process carried out in 2020, those important ESG areas to the
Group were discussed in this Report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS

As one of the world's leading property developer, the Group recognises
that it has an obligation to reduce the impact of our operations on the
environment and be accountable for the resources and materials that
are used in our daily operations. Throughout the year, the Group fully
complied with all of the relevant environmental laws and regulations in
the PRC and Hong Kong, such as the Environmental Protection Law of
the People’s Republic of China in the PRC and the Air Pollution Control
Ordinance (Cap. 311) in Hong Kong. Besides, no concluded case
regarding environmental issues was brought against us or our
employees. The Group also regularly updates itself with the latest
development of the applicable laws and regulations on environmental
protection.

Apart from complying with the environmental protection rules and
standards, the Group emphasises environmental protection and seeks to
enhance efficiency in the use of natural resources and reduce the
environmental impact of its business operation. The Group takes the
initiative to implement the Environmental Protection Management
System since 2017. Upholding the principles of “prevention first,
preventive control, comprehensive solution”, the Group has formulated
a series of management guidelines covering environmental monitoring,
daily environmental management, specific project environmental
management and environmental incident management. The Group also
issues an environmental protection proposal to staff of the subsidiaries
of the Group, suppliers and business partners so as to improve the
environment as a team. We enhance employees’ awareness of
environmental protection by education and staff training.

To reduce the environment pressure caused by its operation, the Group
fully switched to a solar power heating system, replacing diesel stove for
supplying domestic hot water, and reduced the use of fuels since 2017.
Moreover, the Group considers taking further steps in air emission
management and adoption of renewable energy. To improve the air
quality, the Group fully complies with the environmental monitoring
initiatives conducted by government departments. We strive for
environmentally friendly operation through mitigating emissions,
improving resources efficiency and reducing significant impacts on the
environment.

HAILAN HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

BREE i 1
ERERBLNBEHEZERBZ — K
SEEAEBEREERERFPESHRE
MEE THARKMAEZENER
EMHEE REBEFE AEEEH
BTHEREEN —IRBERRERER
ER - Pl E e (P E AR K MBEIRE
E) REBBOCERFRE SR (F
311E) © o WEB ARENAKE
BREREBARRHBENRY - AEHE
71T A S T A B I E BB IR IROA R
RIER

BRESTIRIRRARIEEIN - KEBITE
BRERE  BHEARMERRRE
R WR DR EEHRBEXNNTE
& AEER2017F EXETORER
HEBRGE) UNIAHRE  Bak
& HeRE] /BRA BIET —FRIE
BiES RRBRERBREANIE - BE
RIBEEE HHHERABNREEE
NRRF)SREHERE - AEEIRFEA
SEMBARET  HEBLAIERH
ZHRRERES  ARRNERFEEE
EHB N - AEEEBHE KB T
R iEBHRRER -

ABREEEYIRBEKNES  A5H
B2017FREE2EEAKGENBRS
B AR S m 18 L i AEDE 20K - R A R A
Ko lbih REBEZERBARE—FTE
BEERRFEBAIBLERR - AR
EEREE A5SEZHEESBUTERM
HIIRIE BRI TAE - BB BB EHEN -
REERBIERBLVERENEATE
BN ERIRRES -



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
R A ERHRE

Al.

Emissions

As a property developer, the Group recognises that it has ethical
duties to reduce emissions. Given that all construction work is
provided by external service providers, the Group's business bears
low impact on air and carbon emissions. In the meantime, the
Group fully complies with all of the relevant environmental laws
and regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong where we operate.
These include the Atmospheric Pollution Prevention and Control
Law of the People’s Republic of China (2015) in the PRC, the Motor
Vehicle Idling (Fixed Penalty) Ordinance (Cap. 611) and the Road
Traffic Ordinance (Cap. 374) in Hong Kong. Besides, no concluded
case regarding emissions brought against the Group or its
employees during the year.

Air Pollutants Emission

Air pollutants emission control is essential to mitigate
environmental impacts and to protect employees’ health. For our
property development projects, the Group constantly encourages
its contractors to adopt responsible construction practices to
reduce air pollutants emission. For example, continuous sprinkling
is adopted in construction sites to mitigate the spread of dust.
Sealed containers are used for volatile gas to prevent the gas
leakage.

As our property development projects are subcontracted to
construction contractors, we do not have direct ownership or
control on the construction projects. However, we have a
construction department to closely monitor the construction
process carried out by our subcontractors to mitigate the air
pollutants emission. During the year, the air pollutants emission
was mainly generated from towngas consumption for cooking in
the canteen of a newly established PRC subsidiary during the year.

The air pollutants emission of the Group during the reporting
period is as follows:

Type of Air Pollutants

Al.

P

EREHERRR - AEERANK
FIERLBEREEREET - ER
PR R TR hIMNERBHER
Rt - REBE MRS =R RARE
MEZER ) - B AEE2E
BT FIEEMETEREEHN
FIEMRBERRERIER - HFE
EHREO(REARKMBARS
APaE» (2015%) ~ FEMOTE
SIE=E(ERIF)EH) (Fe11
B) RCBBHIGEOI(F74F) -
SEAN - ERREE A RREE R & E
AEEIHREERENEGRM -

ZRIBRIBER

IR PR B SR IR B R R
BEREEMER - £MEMRER
B AEEFESEFERRA
BEENBTIIERD ZERTRY
BERR © Plan - IR iRSEM BB IF AR
OB BBIRIERS - (E AT H A as
HiERMERBUAN IEREBRRE -

HREMAZHEZRRBEBCINAT
A EE - MM EERIER
SHEREEAR - A - HFIR

R PITYE RN 2 RET
RER RS ZERTRBEN - F
N ZRSARMFBREERAFA
AR BB AR EERERK

RBEHRE - AEBEHNZERISEY
HERANT -

ERTRNER

Nitrogen oxides (NOx) kg 1.77 -
REALH (NOY) T

Sulfur dioxide (SO2) kg 0.02 -
— &b (SO T

Particulate matter (PM) kg 0.01 -
FRIZ TR (PM) TR
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Greenhouse Gas (“GHG"”) Emission

Climate change is gradually concerned by the community. The
Group recognises that climate change poses a risk to its business
and it is committed to mitigating the effects of climate change.
GHG is considered as one of the major contributors of the climate
change.

Regarding GHG emissions of the Group, scope 1 direct emissions,
scope 2 indirect emissions and scope 3 indirect emissions are
mainly resulted from towngas, purchased electricity and business
travel respectively. Giving the majority of the GHG emissions of the
Group come from energy consumption, the Group tackles the
GHG emission by lowering the energy consumption in our
business operations. Policies and procedures as described in the
section “Use of Resources” to encourage energy saving have been
incorporated throughout the operations in order to reduce the
carbon footprint. The decrease in GHG emission in 2020 was
mainly attributable to effective implementation of energy saving
policy during the year.

The GHG emission of the Group during the reporting period is as

BERR(REERE ) K

R B SR RIRECREE - K&
Bl B R IR 2L 5 E X E AR
B WENEBRRIRBECNTE -
BRERBRASETRREBLCEIER

Hz—-

FARAEENREREHN - &#E
—EER - BE _REEERRES
B =MZEHERO B EZRERSR -
SNBE ) R FFIRTT © ANEREKE
7 m =R EEHEOR B REREE - AN
SEFEBFREXRBEETHEEIRHA
FERRRERBYNERE - NEE
BEBRETHERKLIZF (HL
(BRG] —8npral) s B & K96
IR LU A IREEIR © 102020 F R E
REHFMERDDETEANFAR
WE e BE R PTEL ©

HREHAREE R ERBY RN
B

follows:
GHG Emission' Unit 2020 2019
BERBHN B 2020 20196
Scope 1? tonnes of CO-e 0.16 =
&E—? BoaliE s
Scope 2° tonnes of CO,-e 92.03 106.83*
EE—S M_altiREE
Scope 3° tonnes of CO,-e 6.65 245
#HE=" M-_ftiEE
Total GHG emission tonnes of CO,-e 98.84 109.28*
RERBHNEE M ikE S
GHG emission intensity tonnes of CO2-e/m? 0.09 0.13*

BERBHREE M-_ftiHEE

/EHK

HERE T RA SRR B (DR E R R S A -

Scope 1: Direct emission from sources that are owned or controlled by the Group.

KB AR B A IR RO MR 2 BB

Scope 2: Indirect emissions from the purchased electricity consumed by the Group.

REAKEINEE ) 2 HHEBE -

B EHEEHMERATE - 2019FBIECIEEF] - LABELE -

Scope 3: Indirect emissions from business travel by employees.

BE= : RBABIRT Z RN -
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The calculation of the greenhouse gas emission is based on the “Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard” from Greenhouse Gas Protocol.

The data of 2019 has been restated for comparative purpose for adoption of the latest emission model for electricity consumption in China.
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Waste Management

The Group recognises the importance of waste reduction. Waste
management measures have been introduced to minimise the
amount of waste generated and reduce impact of our operation
on the environment. Due to our business operation nature, no
hazardous waste was generated during the reporting period.

Due to the nature of office operation, the non-hazardous waste
mainly consists of domestic waste and paper waste which are
collected by the property management company for landfill or
incineration. In the future, the Group plans to implement waste
sorting, promote recycling in the office and provide clearer sorting
guidance for staff, as well as encourage them to reduce waste at
source. Besides, the Group takes initiative to reduce the paper
waste amount by encouraging its employees to use double-sided
printing.

For the property development projects, the Group has
implemented “paperless policy” and published the Notice on the
Regulation of Waste Discharge of Construction Projects, requiring
all business units to strictly comply with the relevant laws and
regulations of China in terms of waste discharge, drainage design
and construction. The director, who is responsible for the design
and engineering, assesses the design and construction plans and
monitors the entire construction process according to the project
management policies and guidelines of the Group. Therefore, we
can avoid deviation from waste discharge standard due to design
failures or delay in construction. The Group also requires its
contractors to sort, classify and recycle (if applicable) the
construction and demolition waste produced. Construction and
demolition waste that cannot be recycled is delivered to landfills
by qualified wastes management companies and recyclable waste
is processed by recycling companies. During the reporting period,
daily office operation was the main source of commercial waste.
The increase in non-hazardous wastes amount in 2020 was mainly
attributable to more frequent cleaning work for coping with
outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic during the year.
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The waste generated by the Group during the reporting period is

AEBERHREMNELNERZY N

as follows: T
EH G Unit 2020 2019
BERY B 2020 2019 F
Non-hazardous waste generated tonnes 0.17 0.12
FEEBEREZEY A
Non-hazardous waste generated intensity tonnes/m? 0.0001 0.0001
MELBREREYERE WE,F 75 oK

A2. Use of Resources BN
The Group considers environmental protection as an essential AEERRBEREAVZEREE
component of a sustainable and responsible business. The Group AEENEBAXNDBD - AEEY

has an in-depth understanding of the importance of safeguarding
sustainable development of the environment and this to attach
importance to efficient utilisation of resources by introducing
various measures in daily business operations. It understands that
staff participation is the key to achieve such goals. The Group
strives to build up a working environment that emphasises the
"Green office” and “Low Carbon” policy such as a set of guidelines
to improve the efficient use of resources for long-term
sustainability. The Group has also adopted policies such as “Energy
Resource Control Procedure” to improve the efficient use of
energy, water and other materials.

Energy

The Group promotes the concept of energy saving and emission
reduction into the entire process of its development and
operation. In the meantime, the Group puts effort to promote
energy saving awareness among its staff by posting related
reminders or messages through emails, recommending them to
switch off all the lights, computers and printers by the end of the
work day. The Group encourages all of its employees to set their
computers to sleep-mode automatically when left idle for a
certain period of time. Printers and copiers are also set to sleep-
mode automatically for the computers.
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In order to keep pace with the market trends, the Group regularly
upgrades its existing facilities such as replacing outdated
computers, phones and other electrical appliances to meet the
needs of our customers and enhance operational efficiency. The
Group adheres to environmental protection and waste reduction
principles for its upgrading processes, and reuses existing facilities
and materials wherever possible, so as to reduce waste.
Meanwhile, it also actively uses eco-friendly equipment for any
replacement. With these measures, not only can the energy
consumption be saved, but also the GHG emission can be
reduced.

In relation to office operation, the Group’s lighting system has fully
adopted LED energy-saving light tubes to increase energy
efficiency. Office daily operation involves a significant number of
documents. Through the information management system, the
Group aims at creating a paperless environment. Staff could
reduce paper consumption by conducting internal document
approval and downloading training materials through the system.
The decrease in energy consumption in 2020 was mainly
attributable to effective implementation of energy saving policy
during the year.

The energy consumption of the Group during the reporting
period is as follows:
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Energy Consumption

BEIFUHFE

Purchased electricity MWh 110.46 128.01
SNEE ) JEFL B

Towngas MWh 0.89 -
R, JEF R

Total energy consumption MWh 111.35 128.01
HBRLR R JEE B

Energy consumption intensity MWh/m? 0.100 0.156
RERHREEE KEEE TR
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Water

Water is an important natural resource. For water consumption in
Hong Kong office, the water supply is solely controlled and
centrally managed by the property management company of the
building, it is not feasible for the Group to provide water
consumption data as there is no separate meter for each individual
office unit on water usage record. However, we still actively seek
ways to mitigate water consumption. For example, the Group
encourages water recycling by connecting the washbasin outlet
pipe to a water storage tank to use wastewater for toilet flushing.
Besides, the Group conducts regular inspection of each operation
stage to minimise leakage and wastage as well as posts posters in
office to encourage employees to save water. The increase in
water consumption in 2020 was mainly attributable to more
frequent cleaning work for coping with outbreak of COVID-19
pandemic during the year.

During the reporting period, the water consumption is as follows:
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Water Consumption Unit 2020

RkE 2020 F

Water consumption m? 3,116 1,114
FAXkE SR

Water consumption intensity m?3/m? 2.79 1.70
AkEE SR FIK
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The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group understands that implementing environmental
protection can reduce operational risk and increase business
opportunities. Regarding the business nature of the Group, we do
not aware of any significant impact of our business activities on
the environment and natural resources. Despite this, we
endeavour to consistently improve our environmental
performance by implementing aforementioned waste reduction
measures and resources saving initiatives. We will continue to seek
opportunities to further reduce emission and resources
consumption with the aim to reduce the impacts on environment
and natural resources to minimal.

B. SOCIAL ASPECTS
EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

B1.

Employment

The Group believes people are our most important asset to the
continuing development and success of our Group. As such, we
aim to attract and motivate talents, maintain a safe and equal
working environment and promote health and well-being of our
employees. We pay special attention to its employees’ rights and
strictly complies with the Employment Ordinance, the Minimum
Wage Ordinance in Hong Kong, the Labour Law of the People’s
Republic of China and other relevant regulations. The staff
handbook covers our Group’s standard in respect of
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination
and other benefits and welfare.

The Group strives to construct a diverse and inclusive workplace
where all our employees are treated with dignity and respect. We
strongly oppose to all discriminatory behaviours against any
individual on their gender, age, nationality, race, colour, disability,
creed, religion, sexual orientation, marital status or family status.
The principle of equal opportunities is applied in all employment
practices, including but not limited to recruitment, promotion and
transfer, work allocation, benefits and training and development.
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The Group has formulated competitive remuneration packages to
retain and motivate employees in achieving key goals of our
Group. We provide remuneration for its employees according to
their qualifications, experience, performance, job duties and
service years as well as to the market benchmark. We perform
salary review on an annual basis to ensure its remuneration
practices are competitive and aligned with market rate. In addition
to salary, we provide mandatory provident fund, allowances,
required social security benefits, medical benefits and variable
incentive-based remuneration such as discretionary bonus to our
employees. Employees are also entitled to various types of leave
including annual leave, sick leave, maternity leave and paternity
leave.

The Group acknowledges the importance of work-life balance and
strives to maintain a supportive and relaxing working environment
for our employees. We organise activities such as annual dinner for
employees to relax and to strengthen their sense of belongings. In
addition to those specified in the Employment Ordinance, we
provide paid or partially paid leaves and support services or
activities for our employees to handle urgent personal and family
matters. We also provide family care and supports to our
employees and/or their family members to bring a positive impact
on their family life. We are committed to building a pleasant
working environment to enhance the happiness of our employees.
During the reporting period, there was no aware of any non-
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that had
significant impact on our Group relating to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination and other benefits
and welfare. Any changes of employment terms will be notified to
staff and agreed in writing to protect the lawful rights and
interests of all employees.
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As at 31 December 2020, the employee compositions (in R2020F 128318 @ RMERI - &
percentage) by gender, age group, geographical region, RIE - IRE - EEER XER
employment category and employment mode are as follows: EXEDHESRMINT -
2020 2019
Employee compositions EESHK 2020 & 2019 5
By gender R R 82
Male - Bi 61% 59%
Female - it 39% 41%
By age group BRFEREE D
Age 30 or below - 30mEUAT 34% 33%
Age 31-40 . 31-40B% 43% 33%
Age 41-50 . 41-50B% 21% 29%
Age 51 or above . S51BRBLA L 2% 5%
By geographical region Rt ENEE S
Hong Kong . BB 4% 1%
PRC - B 94% 89%
USA - XH 2% N/AS
E R ©
By employment category RERERE D
Senior management - AREEE 21% 36%
Middle management . FREEE 25% 31%
General . —RIEE 54% 33%
By employment mode REBEXE S
Full-time - 2R 100% N/A®
NE e
Contract/short term . A#) e H = N/A®
B 6

©  The data for year 2019 was not available.

RIS 2019 F HUE -
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The employee turnover rates by gender, age group and RI|EEAR - LR - FEEE Kty
geographical region during the reporting period are as follow: ERIGEDHEEREARNAT :
2020 2019
Employee turnover rate EERAE 2020 & 2019 5
By gender R R85
— Male — 51 20% 2%
— Female — & 1% 7%
By age group REREE D
— 30 or below —30B% KA T 19% 8%
— 31-40 years old — 31-40B% 1% -
— 41-50 years old — 41-50 5% 15% 5%
— 51 years old and above — ST ML 67% =
By geographical region BBV EE D
— The PRC — 14% 5%
— Hong Kong — &8 449% -
— USA — X 22% N/A7
TER7
Overall B 16% 4%

7 The data for year 2019 was not available.

RIS 2019 F HUE -
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Health and Safety

The Group regards occupational health and safety as its most
important aspect of corporate risk management. The Group
strictly complies with Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance
and Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Treatment of
Occupational Diseases. In this year, there were no cases of non-
compliance in relation to health and safety or work-related injury
within the Group.

The Group not only strictly implements relevant laws and
regulations but also proactively formulates internal policies and
standards related to specific business departments of the Group.
The Group’s Staff Handbook emphasises safety disciplines
including the execution of safety system, the 5s management
(organisation, rectification, clearing, cleaning and personal
qualities) of workplace, protection and operation standards of
construction safety, etc. Staff should abide by the Production
Safety Law and the Group's safety management regulations and
follows the relevant requirements of safety system certifications.
The Group arranges health checks for staff with over one year of
service annually to ensure they have good physical health. The
Group also provides them with a Work Safety Handbook to
enhance their safety awareness.

The Group has established an internal policy on safety
management and has assigned different safety compliance duties
to different teams in order to reduce potential risk with clear
division of labour. For construction sites, the engineering
management department of the Group is responsible for security
management and prevention of construction site accidents while
the safety management team is in charge of the monitoring of the
entire construction process of the project to protect safety of staff.

B2.
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B3.

Development and Training

The Group is committed to providing continuous training and
learning opportunities to employees to develop their talents and
to expand the Group’s business. The Group has provided
numerous development opportunities throughout the year to
employees at all levels. These include induction training, firm-wide
training and department-specific training. All employees have
equal access to training and development opportunities. We have
established an employee self-education subsidy programme with
the aim to encourage employee to continue self-development.
We also operate a new staff mentoring scheme, aiming to equip
new members of the staff with necessary knowledge and skills to
help them adjust to their new positions.

In future, the Group will continue to provide a wider range of job-
related training programmes to our employees. Besides, we will
consider to enhance employee self-education subsidy programme
to encourage more employees to participate in the training
programmes. We will also consider and establish a staff training
profile to identify the training need of each employee.

The detailed breakdown of the percentage of employees trained
and the average training hours completed per employee by
gender and employee category is as follows:

B3.

R RIE

AEEY N AREBRMEINEE
M S AR RIBAREE
X AEE  AKECRAMAR
LHRERBREAZERRKE 21
SIALEI - 2B R AP ES
il o FEREHE R FAFI K
EHE BPKZTRESXIEE
APt EERBREERES T
BRE- RPTERHTE TERE
3 EESCHEIZELENAE
K IXRE - B PIE FEFTRAL -

Big AEBEKEEREBRHIE
B2 TR FIET ) - tboh -
BASEBEAEREEEIEEED
HE SBEZBE T2 MG
g - ZMIMEEEALHIEER THII
BME - UREERERENFIFE -

RIER KR BERE D W EBR X
Bt kB4 EE X
SERAIT

Average training hours

(hours/employee) Percentage of
19 5 5| Rr 8 employee trained
Training 33 (I EE) EEZI B
2020 2019 2020 2019
2020 F 2019 2020 F 20194
By gender &R B 5
— Male — 5 0.2 0.9% 46% 67%°
— Female — 03 0.6° 54% 33%°
By employment category RIEEERE D
— Senior management —RREEE 05 148 8% 73%*
— Middle management —RREEE 13 0.98 23% 27%"
— General ——REE 03 = 69% -

The data of 2019 has been restated for comparative purpose for adoption of the latest methodology for the computation of average training hours and percentage of
employee trained.

AERAFEFHZISEREEZNEDLLNRIIDEME » 2019FBERECEY - UEHLBZA -
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Labour Standards

The Group is committed to protecting human rights in workplace
and has zero tolerance to the use of child or forced labour during
our operation. The Group understands that child labour and
forced labour violate fundamental human rights and international
labour conventions and may constitute threat to the social and
economic sustainability. According to the Staff Handbook, the
Group strictly complies with the law in its recruitment process to
prohibit the hiring of individuals aged under 16 and any form of
forced labour or involuntary labour. The Group will review the
actual age of new hires by checking their identity documents and
making detailed records. Under the overtime work management
system of the Group, staff can receive rest periods or overtime
subsidy based on the nature of overtime work to avoid involuntary
overtime work. The Group respects staff's right of association and
collective bargaining via legal and peaceful means.

The Group strictly complies with the Provisions on the Prohibition
of Using Child Labor issued by the State Council of the People’s
Republic of China. According to the “Prohibition of Child Labour
Control Procedure” of the Group, person under aged 16 is not
allowed to work in the Group. The Group respects the right and
freedom of employees as stipulated in “Prohibition of forced
labour control procedure”. During the reporting period, the Group
did not have any case related to child labour or forced labour.

OPERATING PRACTICES

B5.

Supply Chain Management

As a property developer, the Group actively cooperates with
contractors for property construction services. The Group
recognises contractors and other suppliers as valuable
stakeholders within the supply chain. Their responsible business
behaviours are crucial in contributing to quality excellence of the
property, operational efficiency and good reputation of the Group.
In pursuit of this goal, the Group has formulated the Supplier
Management Practice Guide to regulate management of
construction projects and suppliers of services. The Guide defines
the main duties of relevant departments of the Group and
provides clear guidance with regard to procedures such as the
ranking and categorisation management of suppliers,
qualifications management, selection and assessment, relationship
maintenance and conflict management and handling of non-
compliance.
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B6.

The Group encourages contractors and subcontractors to use
more environmental friendly equipment and facilities and to
adopt more environmental friendly new technologies. When
contracts are signed with external subcontractors, the Group will
make sure that both parties understand the environmental
requirements and regulations. Construction units responsible for
environmental facilities must hold relevant certificates from their
seniors or government departmental heads. Construction units
must avoid pollution at all costs during their work. In case of
vegetation damage, the construction units must adopt recovery
measures to reduce the negative impact on the environment.

The Group equally values the social performance of its supply
chain. In this year, the Group issued an open letter to remind all
business partner units to refrain from offering gifts or benefits of
any kind to staff of the Group. Company name will be removed
from the Group's directory of partners for non-compliance. The
Group encourages business partners to lodge complaints against
or report on staff who request for benefits. Both the Group and its
business partners have to sign the Anti-Corruption Agreement
and abide by laws and regulations of the PRC and the Group in
relation to anti-corruption. At the same time, the Group also
requires construction contractors to assume responsibility for
protecting its workers’ safety on the construction sites and
purchase insurance for them. During the year, we had 105
suppliers (2019: 33 suppliers) in the PRC.

Product Responsibility

The Group recognises that achieving high quality standard of
property development projects and delivering quality product
and services to our customers are crucial to sustainable growth of
the Group. Hence, the Group has stringent control of property
development projects and data protection policy to protect the
interest of our customers. The Group is in strict compliance with
the applicable laws and regulations related to product
responsibility, including Product Quality Law of the PRC and
Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance. During the reporting period,
the Group was not aware of any material non-compliance on
product responsibility issues.
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The Group has also formulated a quality control procedure to
conduct regular monitoring through the internal team and an
independent monitoring company to ensure that all projects
comply with relevant regulations and the standards of the Group
in every stage so that quality and safe buildings can be provided
for the public. Before delivering the property to the buyer, the
customer service management department and the quality
monitoring company conduct a final check to ensure the quality
of the property meets the prescribed standard.

In addition, the Group complies with laws and regulations related
to advertising and labelling by stating in detail the maintenance
period, definition of maintenance liability and maintenance
boundary in the commodity property sales contract, the
residential building user guide and residential property quality
warranties. In case of any construction problems, clients can reach
the Group by visiting the property centre, making a phone
appointment or complaining in the WeChat group. Then, the
Group will schedule repair work accordingly.

Apart from formulating quality control and building maintenance
procedures, the real estate advertisement of the Group complies
with the law and refrain from disseminating any misleading
information. To protect clients’ information, the Group has
included related confidentiality requirements in the Staff
Handbook. To protect clients’ interest, staff must keep the Group’s
confidential documents and internal information safe; these
include contracts, agreements, statement of intention, feasibility
report and all demand and supply information and client profiles.
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B7.

Anti-Corruption

The Group is committed to operating with a high standard of
integrity and accountability. The Group strives to prevent illegal
behaviour such as corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.

The Staff Handbook of the Group regulates the code of conduct
and work ethics of staff. Staff cannot request or accept
remuneration from related business contacts. In case gifts or
commissions are received in external business dealings, it should
be handed in to the Group according to the Gift Management
System. The staff should not use company resources to obtain
personal benefits. The Group has formulated the Hailan Holdings
Whistleblowing System to encourage clients, staff, shareholders
and business partners to report fraudulent behaviour. The Group
keeps the identity of the whistle-blower strictly confidential. The
whistle-blower can report to the audit and legal departments
anonymously. The Group also awards staff who report non-
compliance or offer hints. In this year, there was no reported case,
litigation and case of non-compliance related to corruption within
the Group. During the year, all directors and staff of the Group
received anti-corruption training for 2 hours.
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COMMUNITY

B8.

Community Investment

The real estate business is closely connected to community
building. The Group endeavours to understand the needs of the
community where it operates. The Group has formulated the
Corporate Social Responsibility Work Management Mechanism to
include social responsibility efforts in the daily management work
planning. When selecting business partners, the Group gives
priority to suppliers located in Hainan in order to strengthen the
relationship between the Group and the local community.

By helping our society to build a healthy and energetic
community, the Group contributes to sustainable development in
the community. Between April and September every year, the
Group will organise a large-scale community campaign in Sanya
Phoenix Water City. To promote community interaction, the Group
has initiated diverse community networking activities which
include interest groups, health activities and cultural and festival
activities. Besides, residents can use a sports mobile app to
accumulate personal mileage in exchange for gifts. Residents can
also choose to donate their mileages on complementary facilities
in the city.

Apart from developing community networking activities, the
Group liaised with charitable organisations around the area to
conduct fund raising activities through an online platform. The
Group organised the “Read for the Blind” campaign by utilizing the
WeChat platform to allow users donate their voice. Each
participating resident can donate one minute of reading through
their cell phones for the blind.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORTING INDEX

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)
THEE - €K —REERERERER (BRERESR)

A. Environmental

BREL - Aw RE RS R

Section
=6/

AR
A1: Emissions
Al BER)
General Disclosure “Emissions” 77
—MRBEE [HER
KPI'AT.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data “Emissions — Air Pollutants 77
BRENIEER | SRR AR BER IR Emission”
Al [HERY) — Z= 05 R MHER
KPI'A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and, where appropriate, “Emissions — Greenhouse Gas 78
RASRAEIEIZ | intensity Emission”
A12 RERBAERER(WER)EE [BERY — R = REEH
KPIA1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and, where appropriate, Not applicable to the Group’s N/A
FSRERIER | intensity business. T EA
A13 FELEEEERER WER)TE TERRAEENFRT -
KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and, where “Emissions — Waste 80
RASERIBIZ | appropriate, intensity Management”
Al4 FELREEEEYRER (WER)EE [HERY) — BEEZEYEIR
KPI'A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results “Emissions — Greenhouse Gas 78
RASRAEMIEIR | achieved Emission”
A15 RO RBERE BV e S TS AR [BE — R EREEHR
KPI'A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are | “Emissions — Waste 79
RASEAEIEIZ | handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved Management”
A16 MAREAENEERZEYNT L RIEELEENER | B —EEDERE]

KFrSARR
A2: Use of Resources
A2 - BIRERA
General Disclosure “Use of Resources” 80
—ARBEE [ERERA]
KPI'A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total “Use of Resources — Energy” 81
RASEIEIZ | and intensity [EIRERA — LR
A2.1 REREDNEE R SRERREREREE
KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity “Use of Resources — Water” 82
BRERIER | RRKEREE [ERER — K]
A22
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Section
THREE - Sk —REERERERER(BRERIEE) E=1:]
KPI'A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results “Use of Resources — Energy” 80-81
BASEAERUIERR | achieved [EIREA — 8RR
A23 H I BE IR SE PR s s T B T 1S AR
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water “Use of Resources — Water” 82
RASREIEBIZ | thatis fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results [&REER — K]
A24 achieved
i 3SR B R 2R AT B R RERE - LA R Ak Bamqt
EHIPSEIREIES
KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products and, if Not applicable to the Group’s N/A
RASEIEIZ | applicable, with reference to per unit produced business. T EA
A2.5 LEGEEBMEENRNDFAAREMBMNAE (N | TERARANEBRER
HA)
A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
A3 IRIBRARAER
General Disclosure “The Environment and Natural 83
—RRIREE Resources”
[RITRARANEIR]
KPI'A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the “The Environment and Natural 83
REE4EIEIZ | environment and natural resources and the actions takento | Resources”
A3.1 manage them [IRIBRAAER]
MBS IRBERRRERNEAZZEREHRE
BEBYENITE
B. Social
B.#E
Employment and Labour Practices
BEREIER
B1: Employment
Bl : {EfE
General Disclosure “Employment” 83-84
— MR [
KPIB1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and | “Employment” 85
RASRAEIEIZE | geographical region [MEfE]
B1.1 ZIER - EBEER - FREMMIBMLEEI D HES B
KPIB1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and “Employment” 86
RASEIEIZ | geographical region [M21E)]
B1.2 BRI - FEERMIBAZE D AEBRKE

i B A B W
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Section

IRHE  #F  —REERFERERIER (BREMER) 0]

B2: Health and safety
B2: EFRELE

General Disclosure “Health and Safety” 87

— MR [MRRER

KPIB2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities No work-related fatalities were -

RRESUER | EIL{ERBEMLTH ABRLL X noted during the reporting period.

B2.1 R¥EERE - REBERETE
BEmMLTAEZE -

KPIB2.2 Lost days due to work injury No work-related injuries were =

BREYIER | ELBEAXIERH noted during the reporting period.

B2.2 RREHE - RAEREIIE
BEmMTTAEZE -

KPIB2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures “Health and Safety” 87

RASEIEIZ | adopted, how they are implemented and monitored [ 2

B2.3 H IR P ER AN A BB R R RR B 2 ¥ B - DA B R TT I Bn

BIE

B3: Development and Training

B3 : BERE K157

General Disclosure “Development and Training” 88
—RR IR [2 R kiG]

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employee trained and employee category | “Development and Training” 88
BRERUER | XIEEA L RIESER [ 2R KRiEFI]

B3.1

KPIB3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by “Development and Training” 88
RASRAEIEIZ | gender and employee category [3 R KRiEF ]

B3.2 ZMRIREERERE S - BEEETKE A TFIIRE

B4: Labour Standards

B4 : 5T #R|

General Disclosure “Labour Standards” 89
—MRHE [45 T %8| |

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to “Labour Standards” 89
BASEAEBUERR | avoid child and forced labour [ T8 |

B4.1 Fa g s R B I Y FE b LA SR B T Je o8 i 85 T
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Section
THREE - Sk —REERERERER(BRERIEE) E=1:]
KPIB4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when “Labour Standards” 89
RASRAEIEIE | discovered [4 T g |
B4.2 R IR R R B AR ER B BB PSR A5 R
Operating Practices
& EEH
B5: Supply Chain Management
5 fEHER
General Disclosure “Supply Chain Management” 89
—MRHEE [fpEsEE s |
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region “Supply Chain Management” 90
RRESIEE | R EIs M HEREE [ RS E IR |
B5.1
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, “Supply Chain Management” 89-90
RASREIEIZ | number of suppliers where the practices are being [ e e 22 |
B5.2 implemented, how they are implemented and monitored
fa il A BARE A FER A B B - mEINITA BB HIRHEE
PEE - ARBEENNITRERTE
B6: Product Responsibility
B6 : EmAT
General Disclosure “Product Responsibility” 90
— MR EE [EmaE]
KPIB6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to No products sold or shipped -
RABEAEIBIZ | recalls for safety and health reasons subject to recalls for safety and
B6.1 PESREZFERBEFPAL2HEERERMAERYA | health reasons were noted during
Bkt the reporting period.
R¥E R  REBRHREL R
Mg amAKErE Sk
EHEE®R
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received No products and service related =
BASEAEIEIZ | and how they are dealt with complaints were received during
B6.2 FEARNEDRRBHIRFEE AR ER TG the reporting period.
R EHE  REZEERR
AR TS AR RAIR FF
KPI B6.3 Description and practices relating to observing and “Product Responsibility” 91
RASRAEIEIZ | protecting intellectual property rights [EmEE]
B6.3 B B AR IS KN E A e 1B
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall “Product Responsibility” 91
RABEAEIRIZ | procedures [ESEE]
B6.4 S SRR REMBIKET

i B A B W
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BRI whg BRI

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Section
THREE - Sk —REERERERER(BRERIEE) E=1:]
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, | “Product Responsibility” 91
RASREIBIZ | how they are implemented and monitored [EmET]
B6.5 HUE B E A RHRIE RILBECR - ARAEENITRER
FE
B7: Anti-corruption
B7 : R&ES
General Disclosure “ Anti-corruption” 92
—MRHEE =yl
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices | No concluded legal cases were -
BASRAEMIEIE | brought against the issuer or its employees during the noted during the reporting period.
B7.1 reporting period and the outcomes of the case RMEIR - REBRBER
RBEEHRNEBTANEERIRLYEBENESHA | BEERN -
RUOHE MFAER
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing “ Anti-corruption” 92
RASRAEIEIZ | procedures, how they are implemented and monitored [R&ESF]
B7.2 HEIR T 55 b R R EAR T - A RABARIT REE S A
KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors “ Anti-corruption” 92
RASRAEIETR | and staff [RE5]
B7.3 fimEERE TREMNRESE
Community
HE
B8: Community Investment
BS : fLEIKE
General Disclosure “Community Investment” 93
—MRBEE [tRIRE ]
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental “Community Investment” 93
RASREIEIZ | concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport) [#LEIEE
B8.1 IEREE(NHE RIREH  LIFR BR-
Xk - 885)
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area “Community Investment” 93
FRERUER | TR FHBABAER (e ERERE) [ttEREE ]
B8.2
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Independent Auditor’s Report

P ST AZ B

mazZars
B H R K

To the shareholders of Hailan Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hailan Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the "Group”) set out on
pages 107 to 239, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the "Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Mazars CPA LIMITED
W2 IR (U ) ot imde s s s )

42nd Floor, Central Plaza,

18 Harbour Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong
T WS VAT U V0 189

R 340

Tel & : (852) 2909 5555

Faxf# £ : (852) 2810 0032

Email 8% : info@mazars.hk
Website 441k : www.mazars.hk

BUBEERABRATZKE
(REEHSFME I BFR L A])
BPEFAVNEHNRE 1072 230H HFEER
ERAR(EAR]) KRENBRAR (HBIE
S8 ) WA TBRE  ZSRAUBRERE
FER 2020 12 A 31 H ARG B FS AR i 3% EL &,
EZALFENGFA B MEMEERER -
RAEREHRNGEARERER  UEEA
BISREMT BRI ESHIEME -

BMRE  ZEGREUBRREBRES S
fine((EBSTHAE]) BHhOEEBR
SRR ([BEBUBREEYN D EEMP SR
BT FEER2020F12A31 BN KR
MEEZZALFENVBRRELASRE - I
DEREBAMENNEES KL BRE -

p=SZNIb 2
BACREBEGMASRONEEETE
A(TEBEER ) ETET - RPIEXFE
AT AENEECEARRE [ZHE B F 47
EMBEBREAENEL] —HPEE—FH
o RIBEB G ASEMNEXSIENB
BRI AD - ZBLR BEEE - AR
ETRIBTEMBREE - HMBE - B
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

B S 7 3 I

PR ESt F AR PIRIEZ X HE R R EH T
AERAMBRENBETRREENTIA &
LEHEAERMBABERGAMBHRER LA
BREETRIEN  HMATSHELFHREH
BEREMER -

Valuation of properties under development and completed properties held for sale

BEPYERIFEHECERY RN EE

Refer to Notes 17 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements

AR E M RRM T 17 %18

The Key Audit Matter
HARESEE

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s properties under
development and completed properties held for sale were
stated at RMB4,625 million and RMB375 million respectively. As
disclosed in Note 2.4 to the consolidated financial statements,
the properties under development and completed properties
held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value ("NRV").

R2020F 12 A31H - EXREERTYERFEHERR
KEDRNETNABARBISHEETRAREISEE
TC o BINERE SRR T 245 - HRPWEREHE
HECERKMERKARAER FE(TERFED L
RIEEZD -

NRV is the estimated selling prices of properties in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and

the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The cost of

residential properties and carparks of the Group may not be
recoverable if their selling prices have declined, or if their
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs to be
incurred to make the sale have increased.

AR RERAEEREBETMENGTEE - BUEKH
HET AR SEITHE AT B ERAR  WEEB K » S
SRRV ET AN RS E FTE R E RGN - Bl BER
EIEMERFBELAKAT—FEmHKD o
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

BB NAREZEER

Our key audit procedures to assess the NRV of the Group's
properties under development and completed properties held
for sale included the following:

st EEEZBERDYERBFEHESERDENAE
WHENET R BREATER#ER

conducting site visits to property development sites, on
sample basis, and discussing with management the
progress and development budgets reflected in the NRV
calculations and the latest forecasts for each property
development project;
HYMERERBBETHERSREE  THEEREN
i R Al B R EF E R IR B EEMERKCATE
HUARZWEERARNRAEA

obtaining and inspecting the NRV calculations prepared
by the management and assessing the qualifications and
experience of those individuals who prepared the

calculations;
DERREREEEGENTERFEFER I

AHEERERE A EROALTHER MER -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

R e w2 TH (AH)

Valuation of properties under development and completed properties held for sale (Continued)

BEPYERIFEHECERYFE R 141E (F)

Refer to Notes 17 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)

AL E M BIREME 17 %18 (48)

The Key Audit Matter (Continued)
REETEE(E)

The calculation of the NRV of each property development
project at the financial reporting date is performed by the
Group’s management. The NRV of certain completed properties
held for sale were assessed with reference to valuations carried
out by an independent qualified professional valuer (the
“Valuer”). The estimation of NRV of properties under
development and completed properties held for sale involves
significant management judgement and estimation in
preparing and updating project feasibility studies and
estimations of the costs to complete each property
development project as well as in assessing the expected future
selling prices for each property and the estimated future selling
costs. The estimation of NRV of certain completed properties
held for sale involves significant judgement on the valuation
basis and methodology used and the assumption applied by
the Valuer. The assumptions adopted in the estimation and
valuation are affected by the expectation of future market or
economics conditions.

FEYEFERBEANMBERE AHHAERFENTE
B EEEEERE#ET BTHIEHENEZEXYENT
B FENBEBLSERERMEEM ([ HERM ) ET
R EMHE - BRPYXELFEHED ER YR AIEER
FEMNES R ERE R RE N EHIAR AT AT
BXE W3 RIE B AR A E A R TE IR R BB 3
B E B R ALt AR RS E AT HIE L BV E R A B A L5 -
ETHRHEHENE ZRR Y EN AT BB AT R ERD
EAMMEREERTENRERNRKZNOEAHE o PIERK
Bt RIEERR G INARRTISHEERANZE -

How the matter was addressed in our audit (Continued)

ERWESFOMEREZER (H)

assessing the appropriateness of the estimated selling
prices of the properties for sale used by the management,
on sample basis, with reference to the latest market prices
achieved in the same projects or by comparable
properties, including an evaluation of the appropriateness
of the comparable properties used by the management
of the Group based on our knowledge of the Group's
business and the PRC real estate industry;

SDER-ABNAI B R ERENZHTE - R
BEHME SEREEBRTBEEMETENRE
B EEREMERNFIFHEYENEAEE
AR BEMNE EEEEREEMEAMNAIE
HBYERRERE

evaluating management’s budgets, by reconciling the
significant cost elements to signed construction
contracts, benchmarking the percentage of cost
component, and evaluating the reasonableness of the
estimated cost to completion of the properties under
development and completed properties held for sale, on
a sample basis, by comparing the cost to actual
development cost of similar completed properties and
comparing the adjustments made by the management
to current market data and assessing if they are updated
on a timely basis to reflect any changes in implementation
of management’s plans;

RBBEAKAER HEORERESRETRE N
FHEEREEE - SHERAEKE S B E DK F
SR B AN R OUE R E N BERBERAE -
DA K He B T2 T S ERIR B T 35 B RHE 0 #IET - PA
FHEERD YR LFHEHE DB RAEX MG
RARBAENEERERE RS ERE AR
BB IR ERT BT TR MR 2
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

R w2 TH (AH)

Valuation of properties under development and completed properties held for sale (Continued)

BEFPYERIFEHECERYFE A 141E (F)

Refer to Notes 17 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)

ARG A BREN T 17 K18 ()

The Key Audit Matter (Continued)
REETEE(E)

We identified the assessment of NRV of the Group's properties
under development and completed properties held for sale as a
key audit matter because of the inherent risks involved in
estimating the costs to complete each property development
project and the future selling prices for each property
development project, particularly in light of the current
economic circumstances in the People’s Republic of China (the
"PRC").
BFEBEN BEEEBERTVENFEHED ERYEN
AR FENEARRESFE  RERMAT TRZIME
ERIABMKANEYREREBOARREEMMS LA E
BRER  FRIRENRPEARKLNE(HE]) B RIHLHE
AR
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How the matter was addressed in our audit (Continued)

ERWESFTONMEEZER (H)

re-performing the calculations made by the management

in arriving at the year end assessments of NRV on a

sample basis;

ﬂﬁ“éﬁFﬁ%&ﬂ’]ii"[“iﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂmﬁﬁi
EITENE

reviewing the valuation from the Valuer and discussing
with the management and the Valuer to understand the
valuation basis and methodology used, and underlying
assumptions;
ERAEMNEETLEERERMEEMNR AT
FRATE AR EREERTTE - U RBBRE

evaluating the objectivity, capabilities and competence
of the Valuer; and
FHEHERMMEEMN  EIRBEE &
performing sensitivity analysis to determine the extent of
changes in those estimates and assumptions which,
either individually or collectively, would be required for a
significant change of estimate of the properties under
development and completed properties held for sale and
considering the likelihood of such a movement in those
key estimates arising.
L‘ﬁ@ﬁ(ﬂzﬁ”ﬁ NEFTERERTYENIFEH
ERMERREAGAESATNZELER
TE““(TE@%HIE‘WEL) WEBIRE  WERZS
TEHEHREBREBN RN -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included in the 2020 annual
report of the Company but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting
process.

HAfE B
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exits. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicated with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe those matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 24 March 2021

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is:

Chan Chi Wai

Practising Certificate number: P05708
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and

Other Comprehensive Income

?&T\ ﬁﬂ]\@q&ﬁrﬁé

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F 12831 HIEFE

2020 2019
2020 F 20194
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5T AR¥T R AREFT
Revenue g 4 720,670 354,688
Cost of sales 5 E BN (394,585) (229,386)
Gross profit EF 326,085 125,302
Other income EH AU A 5 12,050 2,234
Changes in fair value of investment properties & & 92 A EEH) 13 (1,824) (22,670)
Realised gain arising from financial assets BRATVEFABRNEREEN
at FVPL, net 2R = IFE 7,292 26,139
Share of results of associates Sak(E) /NS (3,505) -
Selling and distribution expenses HE RO HMAX (43,342) (15,434)
Impairment loss on deposits paid BT L iR R ERE
for acquisition of land 21 - (14,041)
(Provision for) Reversal of credit loss on (Ve %ol H fih fE Y 308
other receivables EEBEEE 20 (1,547) 3457
Administrative expenses FTHHX (96,778) (116,732)
Operating profit (loss) ReEHF (BE) 198,431 (11,745)
Finance income BRI A 5,461 4335
Finance costs EURCID RN (18,458) (1,730)
Finance (costs) income, net B S (RRAR) A B 5 6 (12,997) 2,605
Profit (Loss) before taxation II?T%EIJ A (E5E) 185,434 (9,140)
Income tax expenses FTiS%: 2 7 (153,478) (47,497)
Profit (Loss) for the year FREAN (EHR) 8 31,956 (56,637)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F 12831 AIEFE

2020 2019
2020 20194F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
ks AR%T R ARKETT

Other comprehensive (loss) income: Hit 2w (FE) WA -
Items that may be reclassified subsequently HEREEET T EE

to profit or loss: EammEE -
Exchange differences on translation of REMBHRERIINEEN

financial statements to presentation PE 5 =R

currency (11,446) 5,025
Other comprehensive (loss) income BREZFRAEMEE (BB A

for the year, net of tax (11,446) 5,025
Total comprehensive income (loss) FRAEZEWA (FE) 258

for the year 20,510 (51,612)
Profit (Loss) for the year attributable to: LU & 18 fE45 & 3R (&18) -
Owners of the Company PAN/NETEZ SN 64,034 (18,897)
Non-controlling interests SRR = (32,078) (37,740)

31,956 (56,637)

Total comprehensive income (loss) UTHEEEZEBA (BR)

attributable to: e
Owners of the Company ViN/NETEZ SN 53,649 (14,105)
Non-controlling interests eI (33,139) (37,507)
Total comprehensive income (loss) FREZEMEA (E8) %458

for the year 20,510 (51,612)
Earnings (Losses) per share attributable 72 B#EE AELZEREF

to owners of the Company (BE) (SR ARKEEIR)

(expressed in RMB per share)
— Basic and diluted — HEARNEE 9 0.21 (0.06)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

AR e BB IR LR

As at 31 December 2020
R2020F 12 A31 H

2020 2019
2020 F 20194
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B &E AR¥T R AREFT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WE NRE 11 37,127 39,212
Right-of-use assets FEREEE 12 957 4,231
Investment properties WEME 13 105,155 106,979
Intangible assets mEE 14 239 391
Interests in associates i /N O 15 109,020 104,996
Trade and other receivables 25N E MW EOR 20 206,513 16,497
Deferred tax assets IEEFRIBEE 26 34,969 39,968
493,980 312,274
Current assets REEE
Properties under development BRAPYE 17 4,625,077 2,882,675
Completed properties held for sale FHEHE D BRI 18 374,873 666,137
Contract costs & KK 19 55,161 15,300
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E 0 U GRIE 20 266,321 174,369
Deposits paid for acquisition of U EE L R E L MG S
land and properties 21 680,000 -
Current tax assets BIEATR IR & B2 26 10,679 11,615
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFABRNESREE
profit or loss 16 5,654 3,573
Restricted cash IR HIR e 22(a) 304,042 125,391
Cash and cash equivalents ReNRREEEY 22(b) 727,489 752,080
7,049,296 4,631,140
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables 2 5 REMERFRIE 23 1,556,320 1,315,145
Contract liabilities BHBE 24 1,684,632 568,928
Bank and other borrowings RIT R EMER 25 703,154 127,953
Lease liabilities HEAE 12 1,049 1,713
Current tax liabilities BNEAFRIE B (& 26 124,105 93,536
4,069,260 2,107,275
Net current assets REEEFEE 2,980,036 2,523,865
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBEE 3,474,016 2,836,139
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

AR e MBIk LR

As at 31 December 2020
#2020 12 A31 H

2020 2019
2020 20194F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
ks AR¥T T ARKETT
Non-current liabilities FREEGF
Bank and other borrowings IRITREMER 25 1,050,532 204,032
Lease liabilities HE&®E 12 - 2,578
Deferred tax liabilities REEFRIEEE 26 509,526 512,344
1,560,058 718954
NET ASSETS BEFE 1,913,958 2,117,185
Capital and reserves BERK#E
Share capital A% A 27 2,585 2,585
Reserves G 27(c) 1,481,968 1,849,857
Equity attributable to owners KABHEEAELER
of the Company 1,484,553 1,852,442
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR R = 34 429,405 264,743
TOTAL EQUITY BRER 1,913,958 2,117,185

These consolidated financial statements on pages 107 to 239 were approved 107 B Z2 $239B MW Z 5 & B % 3R i'*jz EA
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 March 2021 and 2021463 A 24 B REE &t RIFRET) %

signed on its behalf by AATATRERESE
Zhou Li Fan Wenyi

EE] DR

Director Director

EF EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Sre Wi 2B R

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE2020F12A31BILEEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

Gz N
Transactions
withnon- (Accumulated
controlling Statutory losses) Non-
Share Share Other interests surplus Retained Bichange Total controlling Total
capital premium resene Tesenve resenve profts resene resenves Sub-total interests equity
LR £ (23t58)
e RieE Bl BERSEE BRGE REEF EXGE k=1 gt FiEE s
RMB000 RMB1000 RMB1000 RMB1000 RMBI000 RMB1000 RMB1000 RMB1000 RMBI000 RMB1000 RMB1000
ARBFL ARETT ARETL AREFL ARBTT ARETL ARETFL AREFRT ARBTT ARETT ARETFT
(Note 27(b)) (Note 27(c)(i) (Note 27(c)(i) (note 27(c)ii) (Note 27(c)(iv)) (Note 27(c)tv))
(o) (Waogo)  (REozom)  (MEaoa) (o) (2700
Balanceasat1January2019 201941 1 RiES 2585 86791 1391582 - 182986 (4700) 2013 1808672 1811257 38167 214944
Loss for the year EREE - - - - - (18897) - (18897) (18897) (37,740) (56637)
Other comprehensiveincome S RE MR EMA :
forthe year:
Exchange differences on BEABRRAZIIEE
tranglaton of financial HELZE
statements o presentation
currency - - - - - - 4792 4792 479 233 5025
Total comprehensive FR2E(EE)
(loss|income fortheyear WA - - - - - (18897 479 (14105) (14105 (7507 F1612)
Transactions with owners: EEEARTNRS
Contrbutions and distrbutions HERDE
Share option [apsed BRMEBRE - - - - - 814 - T8I 7814 7814 -
Changes in ownership interests EEREZED
Contrbutions from FERERNLE
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - 7883 1843
Changesinownershipinterests &I EREER VRN
inasubsidarywithout change ~ ATEHEERLED
in control - - - 47476 - - - 47476 47476 (55.946) 8470)
- - - 47476 - 7814 - 55290 55290 (35917) 19373
Balance as at #20195 128318
31 December 2019:and 202051518658
1January 2020
Profit (Loss) for the year EREFI(B)
Other comprehensive loss FRELZEMSE:
forthe year:
Exchange differences on BENBRRAZIES
tranglaton of inancial HENZE
Staternents to presentation
curency
Total comprehensive FR2ERA
income (loss) for the year (B8 88
Transactions with owners: EEEARTNRS
Changesinownershipinterests AR EE
Contributions from FERERNLE
non-controling inerests (I3 34000)
(Note 34 (xx))
Changes in ownership interests BB S I
inasubsidarywithoutchange A AFHEEEED
in control (Note 34(2) (Wit 34)

Non-controlling interests arising from Y(E& B A B £
acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 35) - 3FH2 148 M3k 35)

Balance asat
31 December 2020

H202051283104
]

WEIA AR 20204
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

»\/]';/\Iﬁ;_:rz{ lb%%

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE2020F 1231 HILFE

2020 2019
2020 20194F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
ks AR%T R ARKETT
Cash flows used in operating activities RETFBANRESR
Cash used in operations BETANES 32(a) (872,150) (638,631)
Interest paid BFE (40,720) (3,115)
Income tax paid EREH (121,833) (610,774)
Net cash used in operating activities AT B R % R EE (1,034,703) (1,252,520)
Cash flow (used in) from investing RETH(FTA)EENESR
activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE  BENMRE (758) (64)
Purchase of financial assets at fair value HEEAFEFAEREN
through profit or loss SREE (3,776,000) (3,686,599)
Proceeds from sale of financial assets at HEZ AT EFAEBEN
fair value through profit or loss SREEMSIR 3,781,092 4,517,632
Interest received B FILE 5,461 4335
Loan to associates ML N RER (65,681) (104,996)
Repayment from an associate Bt N AR 78,445 -
Advance to associates M E A 7@& (20,293) -
Advance to a joint venture AEEDER (75,672) -
Loan to non-controlling shareholders BE=2 Hxﬂiﬁﬁw)\ - (3,689)
Advance to a non-controlling shareholder MFEFE R AR R B (44,414) -
Loan to a related party mEE T E R (500) -
Loan to third parties ME=ZFER (16,128) -
Net cash (used in) from investing activities REEE) (BT ) EERH 2 F5E (134,448) 726,619
Cash flow from financing activities BETHEENEESR
New bank borrowings raised HIBIRITER 32(b) 770,000 190,000
New other borrowings raised g H AL fE R 32(b) 1,607,710 141,259
Repayment of bank borrowings EBIRITEN 32(b) (4,666) -
Repayment of other borrowings EBEEMER 32(b) (1,151,060) -
Capital contributions from non-controlling JEERREEALE
interests 34(xx) 69,302 27,843
Payment for acquisition of non-controlling U B SR AR B 2 O ST 3R
interests 34(a) (179,938) (8,470)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEEHEBE 32(b) (1,864) (1,098)
Advance from non-controlling shareholders FEVE AR AR S EA N 32(b) 72,415 251,729
Repayment to non-controlling shareholders M) SRR AR AR R A2 X 32(b) (64,999) -
Advance from a former AT FEVEAR AR BR 22 5K
non-controlling shareholder 32(b) 1,963 -
Advance from related parties RaHs 5 B 32(b) 32,666 896
Repayment to related parties Bl gt 32(b) - (13,131)
Net cash from financing activities B E B E LR R D) FRE 1,151,529 589,028
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

EEHRSRER

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE2020F 12831 BILFE

2020 2019
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Net (decrease) increase in cash and ReRELEEY
cash equivalents (RA) B nFEE (17,622) 63,127
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of REVINRE MRS EEY
the year 752,080 683,197
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HINE RSB (6,969) 5,756
Cash and cash equivalents at end of REREEREER
the year, represented by cash and RITHEBZEREER
bank balances BHEZEEY 727,489 752,080
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F 12831 AIEFE

1.

2.1.

114

GENERAL INFORMATION

Hailan Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in the
Cayman Islands on 31 August 2015 as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Company Law Chapter 22, (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The Company’s shares
are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The address of registered office of the
Company is PO Box 1350, Clifton House, 75 Fort Street. Grand Cayman
KY1-1108, the Cayman Islands. The principal places of business of the
Company in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") and Hong Kong
are 2/F, No. 1 Building Hampton by Hilton, No. 169 Yu Lin Road, Tianya
District, Sanya, the Hainan Province, the PRC and Room 2212, 22/F, The
Center, 99 Queen'’s Road Central, Central, Hong Kong respectively.

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in investment holding, properties development, sale
and rental of developed properties. The Company and its subsidiaries are
collectively referred to as the “Group”.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs"),
which include all HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards ("HKASs")
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the "HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements is historical cost convention, except for investment
properties and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (‘FVPL")
which have been measured at fair value as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi

("RMB") and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise indicated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A AR M
For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE2020E 128318 IEEE

2.1.

2.2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a basis
consistent with the accounting policies adopted in the 2019
consolidated financial statements except for the adoption of the new/
revised HKFRSs that are relevant to the Group and effective from the
current year as detailed in Note 2.2 to the consolidated financial
statements. A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted by
the Group is set out in Note 2.4 to the consolidated financial statements.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Group has applied, for the first time, the following new/revised
HKFRSs that are relevant to the Group:

Amendments to HKASs 1 and 8 Definition of Material

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKASs 1 and 8: Definition of Material

The amendments clarify the definition of material and align the
definition used across HKFRSs.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant impact
on the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3: Definition of a Business

The amendments, among others, revise the definition of a business and
include new guidance to evaluate whether an acquired process is
substantive.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant impact
on the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE200F 1231 BLLFE

2.3. ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued the following new/revised HKFRSs that are not yet
effective for the current year, which the Group has not early adopted.

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
Amendments to HKAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKFRSs 4, 7,9 and 16 — Phase 2@
Amendments to HKAS 16 Proceeds before Intended Use ©
Amendments to HKAS 37 Cost of Fulfilling a Contract ©
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework ©
Annual Improvements to 2018-2020 Cycle ©
HKFRSs
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current @
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts @

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and  Sale or Contribution of Assets between
HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture ©

m Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020

@ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
@ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022
@ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
© The effective date to be determined

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of these

new standards and amendments will have no material impact on the
Group's results and financial position in the future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB R M T

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE2020F 1231 HILFE

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4, FEEFHEORMEE

POLICIES
Basis for consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries. The financial statements of the
subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year as the Company,
using consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests are presented, separately from owners of the
Company, in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and within equity in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The non-controlling interests in the acquiree, that
are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets in event of liquidation,
are measured initially either at fair value or at the present ownership
instruments’ proportionate share in the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. This choice of measurement basis is
made on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Other types of non-
controlling interests are initially measured at fair value, unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control described below. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction. The carrying amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to the owners of the Company.
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2.4.

118

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Basis for consolidation (Continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets
(including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, and (ii) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and recognises (i) the fair value
of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The
Group's share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or accumulated
profits/losses, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Any
investment retained in the former subsidiary and any amounts owed by
or to the former subsidiary are accounted for as a financial asset,
associate, joint venture or others as appropriate from the date when
control is lost.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity, directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e. existing
rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the
voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an
investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

In the Company'’s statement of financial position which is presented
within these notes, an investment in subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses. The carrying amount of the investment is reduced to
its recoverable amount on an individual basis, if it is higher than the
recoverable amount. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable.
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2.4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control of those policies.

The Group's investments in associates are accounted for under the
equity method of accounting, except when the investment or a portion
thereof is classified as held for sale. Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recorded at cost and adjusted thereafter for the
post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the investee's net assets
and any impairment loss relating to the investment. Except to the extent
that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the investee, the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses when the Group's share of losses of the
investee equals or exceeds the carrying amount of its interest in the
investee, which includes any long term interests that, in substance, form
part of the Group's net investment in the investee.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the investees, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and financial assets at
FVPL at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. Fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the
asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act
in their economic best interest.

Fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a
market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the
asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data is available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the consolidated financial statements are categorised within the fair
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level T —  based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 —  based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 —  based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level

input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers
have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations
where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment
are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts
as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4, FEEFIEUORMEE (4)

POLICIES (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over
its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose
are as follows:

Vehicles 25%
Electronic devices 33.33%
Machines, furniture, office equipment and others 20%
Buildings 5%

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes;
or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties are
measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which
reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting period. The fair
value reflects, among other things, rental income from current leases
and other assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
investment property under current market conditions and is adjusted for
separately recognised assets or liabilities to avoid double-counting assets
or liabilities.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in profit or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in profit or loss in the year of the retirement or
disposal.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

Completed properties held for sale and properties under development
would be transferred to investment properties when, and only when,
there is a change in use, evidenced by the following criteria: (a) the
properties meet the definition of investment properties; (b) the Group
has prepared a business plan that reflects the future rental income
generated by the property and this is supported with evidence that
there is demand for rental space; (c) the Group can demonstrate that it
has the resources, including the necessary financing or capital, to hold
and manage the investment property; (d) the change in use is legally
permissible; (e) if the property must be further developed for the change
in use, the development has commenced and (f) change in use is
approved by the board of directors.

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value (‘NRV") and comprise land use rights, aggregate cost of
development, materials and supplies, wages and other direct expenses,
an appropriate proportion of overheads and borrowing cost. NRV
represents the estimated selling price less estimated costs of completion
and costs to be incurred in selling the property.

Properties under development are classified as current assets unless the
construction period of the relevant property development project is
expected to complete beyond the normal operating cycle. On
completion, the properties are transferred to completed properties held
for sale or investment properties if appropriate.

The land held for future development represents parcels of land owned
by the Group for the purpose of development of properties for sale. The
land is initially stated at lower of cost and NRV and is not depreciated.

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and
NRV. Cost is determined by an apportionment of the total development
costs for that development project, attributable to unsold properties.
The NRV is determined by reference to the estimated selling prices of
properties sold in the ordinary course of business less selling expenses.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4, FEEFIEUORMEE (4)

POLICIES (Continued)
Intangible assets

Acquired intangible assets are recognised initially at cost. After initial
recognition, intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided on
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. Amortisation
commences when the intangible assets are available for use. The
following useful lives are applied:

Software 10 years

The amortisation methods and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each reporting date.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset, including property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets, interests in associates and intangible assets, is required, the
asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount
is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its
fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in
which it arises in those expense categories consistent with the function
of the impaired asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset is reversed only if there has been a change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of
such an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the period in
which it arises.

Financial instruments
Financial assets
Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets are recognised when and only when the Group becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments and on a trade
date basis.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only when (i) the Group's
contractual rights to future cash flows from the financial asset expire or
(i) the Group transfers the financial asset and either (a) it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset,
or (b) it neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset but it does not retain control of the
financial asset.

Classification and measurement

Financial assets (except for trade receivables without a significant
financing component) are initially recognised at their fair value plus, in
the case of financial assets not carried at FVPL, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets. Such trade
receivables are initially measured at their transaction price.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as (i) measured at
amortised cost; (i) debt investment measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“Mandatory FVOCI"); (iii) equity investment
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(‘Designated FVOCI"); or (iv) measured at FVPL.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and measurement (Continued)

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the

Group’s business model for managing the financial assets and the

financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics. Financial assets are

not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Group

changes its business model for managing them, in which case all

affected financial assets are reclassified on the first day of the first annual
reporting period following the change in the business model.

Derivatives embedded in a hybrid contract in which a host is an asset

within the scope of HKFRS 9 are not separated from the host. Instead,

the entire hybrid contract is assessed for classification.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of
the following conditions and is not designated as at FVPL:

(i) it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows;
and

(i) its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to impairment.
Gains and losses arising from impairment, derecognition or
through the amortisation process are recognised in profit or loss.

The Group's financial assets at amortised cost include trade and
other receivables, restricted cash and cash and cash equivalents.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Classification and measurement (Continued)

(2)  Financial assets at FVPL

These investments include financial assets that are not measured
at amortised cost or FVOCI, including financial assets held for
trading, financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at
FVPL, financial assets resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 applies
and financial assets that are otherwise required to be measured at
FVPL. They are carried at fair value, with any resultant gain and loss
recognised in profit or loss, which does not include any dividend
or interest earned on the financial assets. Dividend or interest
income is presented separately from fair value gain or loss.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it is:

(M) acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term;

(i) part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are
managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking on initial recognition; or

(i) a derivative that is not a financial guarantee contract or not a
designated and effective hedging instrument.

Financial assets are designated at initial recognition as at FVPL only if
doing so eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise from measuring
assets or liabilities or recognising the gains or losses on them on different
bases.

The Group's financial assets measured at FVPL include unlisted equity
securities and structured deposits.
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2.4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities
Recognition and derecognition

Financial liabilities are recognised when and only when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

A financial liability is derecognised when and only when the liability is
extinguished, that is, when the obligation specified in the relevant
contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at their fair value plus, in the
case of financial liabilities not carried at FVPL, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the issue of the financial liabilities.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, lease
liabilities and bank and other borrowings. All financial liabilities are
recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method, unless the effect of
discounting would be insignificant, in which case they are stated at cost.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts
that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder of the
contract for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a
payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as a liability at its fair
value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
issuance of the guarantee.

Subsequently, the financial guarantee is measured at the higher of (i) the
amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative
amount of income recognised in accordance with HKFRS 15 and (ii) the
amount of the loss allowance determined in accordance with the
expected credit loss ("ECL") model under HKFRS 9, unless the financial
guarantee is measured at FVPL or arises from a transfer of a financial
asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items under
HKFRS 9

The Group recognises loss allowances for ECL on financial assets that are
measured at amortised cost issued to which the impairment
requirements apply in accordance with HKFRS 9. Except for the specific
treatments as detailed below, at each reporting date, the Group
measures a loss allowance for a financial asset at an amount equal to the
lifetime ECL if the credit risk on that financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial asset
has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
measures the loss allowance for that financial asset at an amount equal
to 12-month ECL.

Measurement of ECL

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses (i.e. the present
value of all cash shortfalls) over the expected life of the financial
instrument.

For financial assets, a credit loss is the present value of the difference
between the contractual cash flows that are due to an entity under the
contract and the cash flows that the entity expects to receive.

For a financial guarantee contract, the entity is required to make
payments only in the event of a default by the debtor in accordance
with the terms of the instrument that is guaranteed. Accordingly, cash
shortfalls are the expected payments to reimburse the holder for a credit
loss that it incurs less any amounts that the entity expects to receive
from the holder, the debtor or any other party. If the asset is fully
guaranteed, the estimation of cash shortfalls for a financial guarantee
contract would be consistent with the estimations of cash shortfalls for
the asset subject to the guarantee.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial instrument while 12-month
ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items under
HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Measurement of ECL (Continued)

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis, the financial instruments
are grouped based on the following one or more shared credit risk
characteristics:

(i) past due information

(i) nature of instrument

(i) nature of collateral

(iv)  industry of debtors

(v)  geographical location of debtors
(vi)  external credit risk ratings

Loss allowance is remeasured at each reporting date to reflect changes
in the financial instrument’s credit risk and loss since initial recognition.
The resulting changes in the loss allowance are recognised as an
impairment gain or loss in profit or loss with a corresponding adjustment
to the carrying amount of the financial instrument, except in the case of
Mandatory FVOCI, the loss allowance is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the fair value reserve
(recycling).

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event of default for
internal credit risk management purposes as historical experience
indicates that the Group may not receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full if the financial instrument that meets any of the following
criteria.

(i) information developed internally or obtained from external
sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into account any
collaterals held by the Group); or

(i) thereis a breach of financial covenants by the counterparty.
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2.4.

130

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items under
HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Definition of default (Continued)

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that default has
occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate that
a more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at
the date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account in the
assessment:

the debtor’s failure to make payments of principal or interest on
the due dates;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external or internal credit rating (if available);

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor; and

actual or expected changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have or may have a
significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its
obligation to the Group.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments are
more than 30 days past due.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4, FEEFIEUORMEE (4)

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items under
HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that the Group becomes a
party to the irrevocable commitment is considered to be the date of
initial recognition for the purposes of assessing the financial instrument
for impairment. For financial guarantee contracts, the Group considers
the changes in the risk that the specified debtor will default on the
contract.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk
on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition if the financial instrument is determined to have low credit
risk at the reporting date.

Low credit risk

A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if:

(i) it has a low risk of default;

(i) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term; and

(i) adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the
borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

As detailed in Note 28 to the consolidated financial statements, loan to/
amounts due from a related party and non-controlling shareholders are
determined to have low credit risk.

Simplified approach of ECL

For trade receivables without a significant financing components or
otherwise for which the Group applies the practical expedient not to
account for the significant financing components, the Group applies a
simplified approach in calculating ECL. The Group recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date and has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors
and the economic environment.
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2.4.

132

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items under
HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Credit-impaired financial asset

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
include observable data about the following events:

(@)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower.

(b)  abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event.

(c)  thelender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider.

(d) itis becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation.

(e)  the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

() the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a deep discount
that reflects the incurred credit losses.

Write-off

The Group writes off a financial asset when the Group has no reasonable
expectations of recovering the contractual cash flows on a financial asset
in its entirety or a portion thereof. The Group expects no significant
recovery from the amount written off. However, financial assets that are
written off could still be subject to enforcement activities under the
Group's procedures for recovery of amounts due, taking into account
legal advice if appropriate. Any subsequent recovery is recognised in
profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
equivalents represent short-term highly liquid investments which are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, net of bank overdrafts.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4, FEEFIEUORMEE (4)

POLICIES (Continued)
Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that
a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Expenditures for which a provision has been recognised are
charged against the related provision in the year in which the
expenditures are incurred. Provisions are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a
provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the
passage of time is included in finance costs.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations
and practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.
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2.4.

134

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused tax
losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised, to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries deferred tax assets are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

HAILAN HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

2.4, FEEFIHORME (A1)

Fin 53 B¢ (#8)
BERBRENRAEEANERZER
MR - M T IR RERID -

EENIRB BT EE R IEES
BHZRIFIREABEREE
SBEMEE  BRZIHATE
L5Ha NSRS N REE
54

SERMEBATR  BERRRAGE
CEZREABZERNERER
mE - ERERBEDEESAE
# - BRFERERNA RAGRA
e ERE -

ERRBEEELAAE MR E =
o ABARBERRMEAARHHRIE
BRZEEBMER - BLEIAEE NG
BRERBEMAB A Al M LR E5E
ABARBERMARSBREARBER 2
BUEHHAR - ETIIERERIN

HERMBRE R ZREA M REHR A
BEDRE-BIFEHEH X
STV EREERBBEMES -
ARSI IFESTEN ME
AR NI SETIR ¢ K

SERMB AR ZREBRBZATH
MEREZENS  BEHBEERE
RERE RN A B A5 5K A Al e [l
VAR 5 8 FERR Bt g 1) LA B P B B 22
BUAMES 2B T - 77 THER -

RERSHREMRLEHRBEE ZFE
8- WHENBAER B SRR F A
AR OELETAEER - HE
MRZEEE - KREERZETEHEE
EENEREMRENFE - LA RE
B R IR & A LAY [0 2 ED sk B 3 IR
FERE IR B R T LARERR o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B R M R
For the year ended 31 December 2020

HE2020E 128318 IEEE

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4, FEEFIEUORMEE (4)

POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the
same taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Rental income under operating leases is recognised when the properties
are let out and on the straight-line basis over the lease term.

Dividend income from financial assets is recognised when the Group’s
rights to receive dividend is established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the
amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Interest income from financial assets is recognised using the effective
interest method. For financial assets measured at amortised cost or
Mandatory FVOCI that are not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate
is applied to the gross carrying amount of the assets while it is applied to
the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount net of loss allowance)
in case of credit-impaired financial assets.

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15

Nature of goods

The nature of the goods provided by the Group is sales of properties.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(Continued)

Identification of performance obligations

At contract inception, the Group assesses the goods promised in a
contract with a customer and identifies as a performance obligation

each promise to transfer to the customer either:

(@)  agood (orabundle of goods) that is distinct; or

(b)  a series of distinct goods that are substantially the same and that

have the same pattern of transfer to the customer.

A good that is promised to a customer is distinct if both of the following

Criteria are met:

(@)  the customer can benefit from the good either on its own or
together with other resources that are readily available to the

customer (i.e. the good is capable of being distinct); and

(b)  the Group's promise to transfer the good to the customer is
separately identifiable from other promises in the contract (i.e. the
promise to transfer the good is distinct within the context of the

contract).

Timing of revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when (or as) the Group satisfies a performance
obligation by transferring a promised good (i.e. an asset) to a customer.
An asset is transferred when (or as) the customer obtains control of that

asset.

The Group transfers control of a good over time and, therefore, satisfies a
performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of the

following criteria is met:

(@)  the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group's performance as the Group performs;

(b)  the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset (for
example, work in progress) that the customer controls as the asset

is created or enhanced; or
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4, FEEFIEUORMEE (4)

POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(Continued)

Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

(c) the Group's performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to date.

If a performance obligation is not satisfied over time, the Group satisfies
the performance obligation at a point in time when the customer
obtains control of the promised asset. In determining when the transfer
of control occurs, the Group considers the concept of control and such
indicators as legal title, physical possession, right to payment, significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset, and customer acceptance.

Sale of properties is recognised at a point in time at which the customer
obtains the control of the promised asset, which generally coincides
with the time when the goods are delivered to customers and the title is
passed.

Transaction price: significant financing components

When the contract contains a significant financing component (i.e. the
customer or the Group is provided with a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer), in determining the
transaction price, the Group adjusts the promised consideration for the
effects of the time value of money. The effect of the significant financing
component is recognised as an interest income or interest expense
separately from revenue from contracts with customers in profit or loss.

The Group determines the interest rate that is commensurate with the
rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and its customer at contract inception by reference to, where
appropriate, the interest rate implicit in the contract (i.e. the interest rate
that discounts the cash selling price of the goods to the amount paid in
advance or arrears), the prevailing market interest rates, the Group’s
borrowing rates and other relevant creditworthiness information of the
customer of the Group.

The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph 63 of HKFRS
15 and does not adjust the consideration for the effect of the significant
financing component if the period of financing is one year or less.
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2.4.

138

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Contract assets and contract liabilities

If the Group performs by transferring goods to a customer before the
customer pays consideration or before payment is due, the contract is
presented as a contract asset, excluding any amounts presented as a
receivable. Conversely, if a customer pays consideration, or the Group
has a right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional, before
the Group transfers a good to the customer, the contract is presented as
a contract liability when the payment is made or the payment is due
(whichever is earlier). A receivable is the Group's right to consideration
that is unconditional or only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due.

For a single contract or a single set of related contracts, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented. Contract assets and
contract liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented on a net
basis.

For the sale of properties, it is common for the Group to receive from the
customer the whole or some of the contractual payments before the
services are completed or when the goods are delivered (i.e. the timing
of revenue recognition for such transactions). The Group recognises a
contract liability until it is recognised as revenue. During that period, any
significant financing components, if applicable, will be included in the
contract liability and will be expensed as accrued unless the interest
expense is eligible for capitalisation.

Contract costs

Contract costs are either incremental costs of obtaining or costs (other
than those that are accounted for as inventories, property, plant and
equipment, or intangible assets) to fulfil contracts with customers.
Capitalised contract costs are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses.

The costs to obtain contracts are capitalised if they are incremental and
recoverable. The capitalised costs are amortised over the term of the
specific existing and anticipated contracts to which the costs relate. The
Group applies the practical expedient in HKFRS 15 and recognises the
incremental costs as an expense when incurred if the amortisation
period of the asset that the Group otherwise would have recognised is
within the same annual reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE2020F 1231 HILFE

2.4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Contract costs (Continued)

The costs to fulfil contracts are capitalised if the costs relate directly to an
existing contract or to a specifically identifiable anticipated contract,
generate or enhance resources that will be used to provide goods in the
future, and are expected to be recovered. Other costs of fulfilling a
contract, which are not capitalised as inventory, property, plant and
equipment or intangible assets, are expensed as incurred. The costs are
amortised on a systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer to the
customer of the goods under the specific existing and anticipated
contracts to which the costs relate.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset exceeds (a) the remaining amount of
consideration that the Group expects to receive in exchange for the
goods to which the asset relates; less (b) the costs that relate directly to
providing those goods and that have not been recognised as expenses.
A reversal of impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when the
impairment conditions no longer exist or have improved provided the
increased carrying amount of the asset shall not exceed the amount that
would have been determined if no impairment loss had been
recognised previously.

Employee benefits
Short term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees.

Defined contribution plans

The Group joins in a defined contribution retirement benefit scheme
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (the "MPF
Scheme”) for all of its employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of
the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered fund. The Group's
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in the PRC are
required to participate in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute
certain percentage of their payroll costs to the central pension scheme.
The contributions are charged to profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.
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HZE20200E 12 A31 BIEEE

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4, FEEFEURMEE (4)

POLICIES (Continued)
Leases

The Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease at
inception of the contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

As lessee

The Group applies the recognition exemption to short-term leases and
low-value asset leases. Lease payments associated with these leases are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group has elected not to separate non-lease components from
lease components, and accounts for each lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single lease component.

The Group accounts for each lease component within a lease contract as
a lease separately. The Group allocates the consideration in the contract
to each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price
of the lease component.

Amounts payable by the Group that do not give rise to a separate
component are considered to be part of the total consideration that is

allocated to the separately identified components of the contract.

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the
commencement date of the lease.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises:

(@)  the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

(b)  any lease payments made at or before the commencement date,
less any lease incentives received;

(c)  anyinitial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

(d)  an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in dismantling
and removing the underlying asset, restoring the site on which it
is located or restoring the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions of the lease, unless those
costs are incurred to produce inventories.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE2020F 1231 HILFE

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
As lessee (Continued)

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost less any
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses and
adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. Depreciation is
provided on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and
the estimated useful lives of the right-of-use asset (unless the lease
transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the Group by the end of
the lease term or if the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the
Group will exercise a purchase option — in which case depreciation is
provided over the estimated useful life of the underlying asset) as
follows:

Office premises 3 years

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease
payments that are not paid at the commencement date of the contract.

The lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability
comprise the following payments for the right to use the underlying
asset during the lease term that are not paid at the commencement
date:

(@)  fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any
lease incentives receivable;

(b)  variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate;

(c)  amounts expected to be payable under residual value guarantees;

(d)  exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably
certain to exercise that option; and

(e)  payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term
reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate the lease.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease, or where it is not readily determinable, the incremental borrowing
rate of the lessee.

Subsequently, the lease liability is measured by increasing the carrying
amount to reflect interest on the lease liability and by reducing the
carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made.
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2.4.

142

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
As lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is remeasured using a revised discount rate when there
are changes to the lease payments arising from a change in the lease
term or the reassessment of whether the Group will be reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase option.

The lease liability is remeasured by using the original discount rate when
there is a change in the residual value guarantee, the in-substance fixed
lease payments or the future lease payments resulting from a change in
an index or a rate (other than floating interest rate). In case of a change
in future lease payments resulting from a change in floating interest
rates, the Group remeasures the lease liability using a revised discount
rate.

The Group recognises the amount of the remeasurement of the lease
liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset. If the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero and there is a further
reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Group recognises
any remaining amount of the remeasurement in profit or loss.

A lease modification is accounted for as a separate lease if:

(@)  the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the
right to use one or more underlying assets; and

(b) the consideration for the lease increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in
scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone price

to reflect the circumstances of the particular contract.

When a lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, at the
effective date of the lease modification,

(@)  the Group allocates the consideration in the modified contract on
the basis of relative stand-alone price as described above.

(b)  the Group determines the lease term of the modified contract.
(c)  the Group remeasures the lease liability by discounting the revised

lease payments using a revised discount rate over the revised
lease term.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE2020F 1231 HILFE

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4, FEEFIEUORMEE (4)

POLICIES (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
As lessee (Continued)

(d)  for lease modifications that decrease the scope of the lease, the
Group accounts for the remeasurement of the lease liability by
decreasing the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset to reflect
the partial or full termination of the lease and recognising any gain
or loss relating to the partial or full termination of the lease in
profit or loss.

(e)  for all other lease modifications, the Group accounts for the
remeasurement of the lease liability by making a corresponding
adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

As lessor

The Group classifies each of its leases as either a finance lease or an
operating lease at the inception date of the lease. A lease is classified as
a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of the underlying asset. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group accounts for each lease component within a lease contract as
a lease separately from non-lease components of the contract. The
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on a relative stand-alone price basis.

As lessor — operating lease

The Group applies the derecognition and impairment requirements in
HKFRS 9 to the operating lease receivables.

A modification to an operating lease is accounted for as a new lease
from the effective date of the modification, considering any prepaid or
accrued lease payments relating to the original lease as part of the lease
payments for the new lease.
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2.4.

144

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Foreign currency transaction

The Company's functional currency is Hong Kong Dollars (‘HKD”) and
majority of its subsidiaries have RMB as their functional currency. The
Company’s consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB
because management considers that a substantial majority of the group
companies are in the PRC and the Group primarily generates and
expends cash in RMB. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial statements of
each entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of
the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation
of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e,
translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).
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2.4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currency transaction (Continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are currencies
other than RMB. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and
liabilities of these entities are translated into RMB at the exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their statements of
profit or loss are translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange reserve. On
disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into RMB at the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported
in the consolidated financial statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group's chief operating decision
maker i.e. the Group's most senior executive management for the
purpose of allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of,
the Group's various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individual material operating segments are not aggregated for financial
reporting purposes unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products or provide the
services, and the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.
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2.4.

146

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group when:

(@)  the partyis a person or a close member of that person’s family and
that person:
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group.

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

i

) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
(or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  theentity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the

entity or is a member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity); or

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group.
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HE2020E 128318 IEEE

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4, FEEFIHORME ()
POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties (Continued) Wk 5 (78)
Close members of the family of a person are those family members who 1!/\ TR EKBIEBHAIRE - X
may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their %u%.j\%%mﬁ/\ux IR INRE
dealings with the entity and include: P8 - WELE
(@  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner; @ BBALZFREREBHRE
(b)  children of that person'’s spouse or domestic partner; and ) ZEALZEBIRBZ F2: K
(¢ dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or domestic (@ EZ%)\:’:EEEZ% AT Z BB

partner. BN

In the definition of a related party, an associate includes subsidiaries of # é‘ﬁHZE%EP? AWNCIEOR R
the associate and a joint venture includes subsidiaries of the joint ERAIZHER **Qﬁj@%/ﬁ\
venture. VN TZW%@? °
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets and

»‘/T\

3

148

liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of

contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in

the future.

3.1. Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources

of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below.

(@

Fair value of investment properties

The investment properties of the Group are measured at fair
value, which were valued based on the appraised market
value by the directors. Such valuation is made based on
certain assumptions, which are subject to uncertainties and
might materially differ from actual results. In making the
estimation, reasonable consideration has been given to the
underlying assumptions that are mainly based on market
conditions existing at the end of the reporting period i.e. by
reference to market evidence of transaction prices and
monthly rental for similar properties in the surrounding
areas.

The carrying amount of investment properties as at 31
December 2020 was RMB105,155,000 (2019:
RMB106,979,000). Further details, including the key
assumptions used for fair value measurement, are stated in
Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

HAILAN HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

3.

EvN gl |

RAEAEE 2 EEMBWEE - BEE
AELAE - AFF RBRR - MEFHE
ZYs FAX BENRBBZEHER
NEBBENNSIABBZIRE - %%
RE LA 2 T EEE AR ERFEY
AKREBEELXABEZRAEEHEARE

3.1, fHEFASHE 2 1
T AERRERREARKZEE
RN EMEBEET TR E -
ESRERTETREFEHEER
BERAAEFEHEAARZEAR
B o

() WEWMERZDVE
AEBzREMEERTE
AR MAFEDNREES
EITZHEMEETHER
He BRAMEDERE TR

- MBBR &Qrvi?'JT\ﬁ&

IE.%?/E. /\,\/T\
,\\u%*ﬁéﬁ%;ﬁ\ Ef”EWE
AR BEEEERFEARN

BEMAFEZM SRR
HERR W2ZFEwR
BUMENRZZEREEA
HEeEMmHEE -

R2020F 12 4318 &Y
¥ 2FEEABARE
105,155,000 7C (20194 + A R
#106,9790007C) ° B B FFIE
(BIEREAFEFEZEE
%) BN bR A I T R M 7
130



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ~ R
Ara s R Y 5 E
For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE2020F 1231 HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

3.1. Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

3.

(ii)

Net realisable value of properties under development
and completed properties held for sale

Properties under development and completed properties
held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Based on the Group's recent experience and the
nature of the subject property, the Group makes estimates
of the selling price, the costs of completion in case for
properties under development, and the costs to be incurred
in selling the properties.

Total budgeted costs for properties under development
comprise costs for land use rights, aggregate cost of
development, materials and supplies, wages and other
direct expenses, an appropriate proportion of overheads
and borrowing cost. In estimating the total budgeted costs,
management makes reference to information such as (i)
current offers from contractors and suppliers; (ii) recent
offers agreed with contractors and suppliers; and (iii)
professional estimation on construction and material costs.

If there is an increase in costs to completion or a decrease in
net sales value, provision for completed properties held for
sale and properties under development may be resulted.
Such provision requires the use of judgment and estimates.
Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, the carrying value and provision for properties in
the periods in which such estimate is made will be adjusted
accordingly.

Given the volatility of the PRC property market and the
distinctive nature of individual properties, the actual
outcomes in terms of costs and revenue may be higher or
lower than estimated at the end of the reporting period.
Any increase or decrease in the provision would affect profit
or loss in future years.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

3.1. Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

3
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(iii)

(iv)

PRC Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT")

LAT in the PRC is levied at progressive rates ranging from
30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value, being the
proceeds from the sales of the properties less deductible
expenditures including land cost, borrowing cost, other
property development expenditures.

When calculating the LAT, the Group needs to estimate the
deductible expenditures and makes judgement on the
relevant tax rate on an individual property basis under the
relevant applicable tax laws and regulations. Given the
uncertainties of the calculative basis of LAT to be
interpreted by the local tax bureau, the actual outcomes
may be higher or lower than that estimated at the end of
the reporting period. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the balances at the end of each
reporting period, such differences will impact the LAT
expense and LAT provision in the period in which the
differences are realised.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for certain temporary
differences and unused tax losses to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred
tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies. The carrying value of deferred
tax assets relating to recognised tax losses at 31 December
2020 was RMB24,384,000 (2019: RMB31,188,000). The
amount of unrecognised tax losses at 31 December 2020
was RMB16,004,000 (2019: RMB31,604,000). Further details
are contained in Note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.

HAILAN HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

3.

R aH b EE B ()

3.1, Mk A igEsE v (41)

(iii)

(iv)

RE LR ER (L RE
Bt 1)

B b 3 E B R T IR (A
(BN BB IER A
W BRELHAA B
BERAREMYFEERS L)
BA 24 B K 30% = 60% U e

REtE L MIRENE - K&
BB GRS - WAR
EHREBERREAEERR
EER M EEEZABRE
TR HE - EREWRED
BRZ B ENRAEEE
ANEEE  REHRHPK
ERERTEES N HERE
AHER - WRFFHZIEK
M /EREZREHRNG
BAR MBEEESERY
EERZRARZz TEE
MR s Je LI IR BT A

EESEEE

BEEFIEEEETBIRY
R ER B IR A AN E
FTERUEEERARBATIE
EEE - T ERZEEEE
PR TETAERANIE
ERBBEESHAR  T1EE
JE R IR R TR FE R B8 A T Ak
B B ] R 7K S 3 R R 2R B IR
MBI (EREZE HE -
R2020F12 A31H @ EE RE
R EBERNELERE
EEMNEEBEAARE
243840007T (20194 © A R #&
31,1880007T ) ° FA20204F 12 A
318 - RERBBEEEAR
¥ 16,0040007C (20194 © AR
#31,604,0007T ) © #E—FHIFF
BEER A B TRERMI 5 26 ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ~ R
Ara s R Y 5 E
For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE2020F 1231 HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

3.1. Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

3.

(v)

(vi)

Loss allowance for ECL

The Group's management estimates the loss allowance for
trade and other receivables and amount due from/loan to
associates by using various inputs and assumptions
including risk of a default and expected loss rate. The
estimation involves high degree of uncertainty which is
based on the Group's historical information, existing market
conditions as well as forward-looking estimates at the end
of each reporting period. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, such difference will impact the
carrying amount of amount due from/loan to associates.
Details of the key assumption and inputs used in estimating
ECL are set out in Note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Allocation of construction cost on properties under
development

When developing properties, the Group typically divides the
development projects into phases. Costs directly related to
the development of a phase are recorded as the cost of
such phase. Costs that are common to several phases are
allocated to each phase based on the saleable floor area of
each phase as a percentage of the total saleable floor area
of the entire project.

3.2. Critical Accounting Judgements

(i)

Classification of operating lease — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases for
properties in its investment property portfolio. The Group
has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and
conditions of the leases, that it retains all the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of these properties which are
leased out as operating leases.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

3.2. Critical Accounting Judgements (Continued)

3
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(ii)

Lease terms of contracts with extension and/or
termination options — as lessor and lessee

Lease terms are determined as the non-cancellable period
of a lease, including periods covered by an option to extend
if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the extension
option, and periods covered by an option to terminate if the
lessee is reasonably certain not to exercise the termination
option.

The Group has lease contracts that include extension and/
or termination options. In assessing whether the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease,
or not to exercise an option to terminate a lease, the Group
applies judgement and considers all relevant facts and
circumstances that create an economic incentive to extend
or terminate the leases.

After the commencement date, the Group reassesses the
lease term upon the occurrence of a significant event or a
significant change in circumstances that is within the
control of the lessee and affects whether the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise an extension option or not to
exercise a termination option.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE2020F 1231 HILFE

3.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

3.2. Critical Accounting Judgements (Continued)

(iii) Classification between investment properties and

properties held for sale

The Group develops properties held for sale and properties
held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation.
Judgement is made by management on determining
whether a property is designated as an investment property
or a property held for sale. The Group considers its intention
for holding the properties at the early development stage of
the related properties. During the course of construction,
the related properties under construction are accounted for
as properties under development included in current assets

if the properties are intended for sale after completion,
whereas, the properties are accounted for as investment
properties under construction included in non-current
assets if the properties are intended to be held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation. Upon completion of
the properties, the properties held for sale are transferred to
completed properties held for sale and are stated at the
lower of cost and NRVY, while the properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation are transferred to
completed investment properties and are subject to
revaluation at the end of each reporting period.

(iv) Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities have not been provided for the
withholding tax that would be payable on the undistributed
earnings of certain entities of the Group in the PRC as those
earnings are not expected to be distributable in the
foreseeable future. Details of deferred tax liabilities are
disclosed in Note 26 to the consolidated financial

statements.
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

4.1. Revenue

The principal activities of the Group are development, sales and

lease of properties in the PRC.

Revenue mainly represented income from sales and rental of

properties, net of sales related taxes, and was after deduction of

any trade discounts.

The amount of each significant category of revenue is as follows:

W i Je 73 V0 R
4.1. W

AEENTEXHGANPEME -

HERHEHEDE -

BaFRERAHERHEDE -
A0 FNER $H & AR BA B TR AL R (T &

SITHEUA -

EXRWEBRSBWT ¢

2020 2019
2020 20196
RMB’000 RMB00O
AR¥ TR AREETTT
Sales of properties: MFIHE -
— Development projects — #&EIAHE
(excluding Danzhou Phase 1) (‘MEEEMN—E) 715,126 349,700
Rental income from investment properties: & & WM EWA -
— Development projects — RIEH
(excluding Danzhou Phase I) (TEFEEIN—HR) 4,329 4214
— Danzhou Phase | — =M —HA 1,215 774
720,670 354,688
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HE2020F 1231 HILFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

4.

4.1.

4.2.

Revenue 4.1. W
Disaggregation of revenue W5
2020 2019
2020 20194F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRE ARETET
Other sources of revenue: E A Y a0 -
Rental income from investment properties & & M EU A 5,544 4,988
Under the scope of HKFRS 15, Revenue REBH B MEERIE 155
from contracts with customers: HEANTPE W
Timing of revenue recognition WAt 2 B R ) R i)
— Atapoint in time — RAE 2 715,126 349,700
720,670 354,688
The amount of revenue recognised for the year ended 31 HE00FENRANBILEEEND
December 2020 that was included in the contract liabilities at the BRAWRLECTAENELE
beginning of the year is RMB437,716,000 (2019: RMB297,073,000). & B AR 4377160007 (2019
F : AR¥297,073,0007T) °
Segment Reporting 4.2. Ay
Business segments E3 Sk
In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting system, RIS AREB MR T RE X5 -
the Group has chosen business segment information as the NEBIRIEEED B EHEA A E

reporting format for the purposes of these consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

No geographical segment information is separately presented as
the Group's business segments are mainly managed and operated
in the PRC. The major market of the Group’s business segments is
the PRC.

B FRA M BHREROREHE -

EEEAZJXEIE’Jii‘%“*BIEEEP e
BENEE - A WEET 25
In:n’\*ﬁﬁﬂ REBMEBRH>HBHE
EMSERFH -
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)
4.2. Segment Reporting (Continued)

Business segments (Continued)

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on the line of reporting, and has two reportable

operating segments as follows:

I, Development projects (excluded Danzhou Phase | but including

Danzhou Phase l)

The Company’s executive directors consider that the
Group's development projects refer to the development
and sales of residential property units mainly in the PRC.

I1. Danzhou Phase |

Danzhou Phase | project (‘Danzhou Phase I") refers to the
development and sales of residential property units under
phase | developed by Danzhou Shuanglian Property
Development Company Limited (‘Danzhou Shuanglian’)
in Hainan Province, the PRC (Note 34 to the consolidated

financial statements).

The executive directors of the Company, being the chief operating
decision makers, monitor the operating results of its business units
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource

allocation and performance assessment.

Income taxes are managed on a group basis and are not allocated

to operating segments.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

Segment assets and liabilities include all assets and liabilities of the

Group, which are managed directly by the segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments
with reference to sales generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments or which otherwise arise
from the depreciation or amortisation of assets attributable to

those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit (loss) is “adjusted
EBIT" i.e. “adjusted earnings before interest and taxes”, where
“interest” is regarded as including investment income. To arrive at
adjusted EBIT the Group's earnings (losses) are further adjusted for

items not specifically attributed to individual segments.
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HZE2020E 12 A31BIFEE

4.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. It R (48)
(Continued)
4.2. Segment Reporting (Continued) 4.2. 4y EBHE (4)
Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) PHEE  BEERAEE)
Information regarding the Group's reportable segments for the HZ2020F K 2019F 12 A31HIEF
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 is set out below. EREBAERATRE D IBELEH
FLATR ©
Development Projects Danzhou Phase | Total
BRER M- @zt
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
2020 219F  2020F 09 2020%F W9%
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
For the year ended 31 December BENANALEE ARETL ARETT ARETR ARETn ARETR ARBTR
Revenue from external customers MR MG 719,455 353914 1,215 774 720,670 354,688
Inter-segment revenue A EEE - - - - - -
Reportable segment revenue BYREIBUE 719,455 353914 1,215 774 720,670 354,688
Reportable segment gross profit ioss) BTRENDERN(BE) 325,099 129,004 986 (3702 326,085 125302
Reportable segment profit loss) BT dEt (BB
(adjusted EBIT) (A=) 179,388 (35.441) (299) (4677) 179,089 (40,18)
As at 31 December M12A318
Reportable segment assets LAHEE 7445324 470979 97,952 33618 7,583276 4943414
Including: af
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBLEEN 724,987 749778 2,502 2302 727,489 752,080
Properties under development EEANE 4,625,077 2882675 = - 4,625,077 2882675
Completed properties held for sale FERECERNE 283,889 575,237 90,984 90900 374,873 666,137
Investment properties REME 103,485 104,860 1,670 2119 105,155 106,979
Reportable segment liabilites AFREAHEE 5617750 275316 11,568 69913 | 5629318 286209
Including: af -
Trade and other payzbles BAREMENTE 1505131 1304234 11,189 10911 1556320 1315145
Contract iabiltes aHERE 1,684,632 568,928 - - 1,684,632 568,928
Other segment information EfyatpEs
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH 2,990 299 5 5 2,995 3000
Depreciation of ight-of-use assets FREEERE 1,735 1021 = - 1,735 1021
Income tax expenses (credi) SEHRS (B2) 153,590 36,039 (112) 11458 153,478 47497
Impairment loss on deposits paid BftlE LIRS
for acquisition of land RESR - 14041 - - - 14041
Provision for (Reversal of) credii oss fEit (B m) £t el
on other receivables JREEERRE 1,547 - - (3457) 1,547 (3457)
Write-down of properties under development  HUFEET % - 1135 - - - 1135
Losses on changes in fair value of RENENATE
investment properties 25 1,375 20697 449 1973 1,824 2670
Additions to property, plant and equipment BN % « BE R 758 64 - - 758 o4
Transfer from investrent properties BRANFEN - (409) - - - (409)
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. Weak Koy iE R (88)
(Continued)
4.2. Segment Reporting (Continued) 4.2. 4y ke (4)
Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) DEEE - BEEREG(E)
Information about major customers FEEFMEH
There was no sale to a single customer which accounted for 10% A 220209 K2019%F12A318 1E
or more of the Group's revenue for the years ended 31 December FE - BERGAER KT 10%K
2020 and 20719. AENE—-ZFEHRHE
Reconciliation of reportable segment profit or loss BT IRE DB A AR
2020 2019
2020 20194F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRE ARETT

Reportable segment profit (loss) BT RED A (EE)

(adjusted EBIT) (4 FAELERIT) 179,089 (40,118)
Elimination of inter-segment profits ks bl sl = -
Reportable segment profit (loss) derived EEAREEINBEFHAT

from the Group's external customers WMEDE BT (EI8) 179,089 (40,118)
Other income HAn g A 12,050 2,234
Realised gain arising from financial BAVEFABENESREE

assets at FVPL, net BB # R e 55 7,292 26,139
Finance (costs) income, net B (BN ) W A58 (12,997) 2,605
Consolidated profit (Ioss) before taxation MREATAR & m A (B518) 185,434 (9,140)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE2020F 1231 HILFE

5. OTHER INCOME HAbA
2020 2019
2020 20196
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT ARETT
Exchange gain, net b 5 Wz 558 = 724
Forfeiture of customers’ deposits received BB W RFES - 400
Forfeiture of sale agents’ deposits received RINE WE R S E R IBIL S - 345
Gain on step acquisition of a subsidiary a2 A NS e 8,953 -
Corporate management fee income NEEBBEIWA 1,394 536
Others Hi 1,703 229
12,050 2,234
6. FINANCE (COSTS) INCOME, NET AHS (LA ) W AT 38
2020 2019
2020 £ 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T ARETTT
Finance income E PN
Bank interest income IRITFIBUA 5,461 4335
Finance costs B R A
Interest on bank and other borrowings R1T M E AL 1E T B 51,224 4,694
Interest on financing component of BHEERESLHFIE
contract liabilities 29,564 8,995
Interest on lease liabilities HEBGEMNE 166 137
Others Efb 427 7
Less: Capitalised interest expenses B BEMEFERX (62,923) (12,103)
18,458 1,730
Finance (costs) income, net B S (RRAR) AR ER (12,997) 2,605

The capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs

eligible for capitalisation is ranging from 4.65% to 13.4% (2019: from

4.65% to 7.9%).

AUEFTEERERNEMNEERAEE
HB AL L RN F-4.65%ZF 134%(2019%F
465% % 7.9%) °
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HZE2020F12831BIEEFEE

7
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INCOME TAX EXPENSES

IRES N
2020 2019
2020 &£ 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TRE ARBTET

PRC Corporate Income Tax (“CIT") RSN ([EEmRBH]) 44,536 (164,171)
LAT ifmi@m 106,761 63,748
Deferred income tax (Note) IEIEFTSFL (BI5E) 2,181 147,920

153,478 47 497

Note:  During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group had paid the LAT amounting to
RMB596,980,000 which are deductible under CIT when they were paid. As a result, CIT
payable of RMB149,245,000 recognised in prior years were derecognised and the
respective temporary differences arising from LAT provision of RMB144,212,000 was
charged to profit or loss during 2019.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Company Law of Cayman
Islands and, accordingly, is exempted from payment of Cayman Islands
income tax. The Group companies in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI")
were incorporated under the International Business Companies Act of
the British Virgin Islands and, accordingly, exempted from BVI income
tax.

Hong Kong profits tax

No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019 as the Group's entities had no assessable
profits arising in or derived from Hong Kong for the years.

HAILAN HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

MisE - BE2019F 12 A3 BILFE  AEBMBX
/) £ i I8 E R A A R % 596,980,000 7T + AT
BN IRIR D EFTSRHMG - At - BAEF
[ HE SR 9 B A5F 1B 3 AT 15 B A R 5 149,245,000
TEHIEHER M S ER B EELENA
B =5 AR 144,212,000 7T E A 2019 4F
MG BN -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE2020F 1231 HILFE

7.

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)

CIT

CIT has been provided on the estimated assessable profits of subsidiaries

operating in the PRC at 25% (2019: 25%).

LAT

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales of properties less
deductible expenditures including cost of land use rights and all

property development expenditures.

The income tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the enacted tax rate of the tax

jurisdiction of the group entities as follows:

JIT A5 B 3 (48)

A€ P 3 Bt

BT B ERNE R R /G ER
Tt i 192 25% (2019 4F © 25%) B9 F R AEH
IEEFTSRIRE -

- Mo 3% 4 B

T IR ER A L E (B EEE TS
FRIERL AT 0B B S (B 38 L 3 AR AR
LEEMERERT)) 1 30%E 60%H)
RER R -

A% BIRR BT 15 25 A1 g A ) BT 15 35 22
SEERRERIERERNHXE
MIRREEEREIINT

2020 2019
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREFT
Profit (Loss) before taxation BRE AR R (&) 185,434 (9,140)
Calculated at CIT tax rate of 25% (2019: 25%) R EPSBHIE 25%
(20194F : 25%) ST HHTIA 46,359 (2,285)
Tax effect of income not subject to tax BARBRANT G & (5,386) (4,106)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses NAHIH AT B2 8,448 5,788
Tax effect of non-deductible land cost RIH0FE + AR AN R EE Y
adjustments M E 11,541 18,486
LAT T IR(ER 106,761 63,748
Tax effect on LAT THOIRER OB E (26,690) (36,645)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERTEBEENH G E 8,010 2,806
Others Hh 4,435 (295)
Income tax expenses FrS#if X 153,478 47497

MR A RAT 20204
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE20200F 12 A3 ALFE

8. PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

Profit (Loss) for the year is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

8. AN (E1R)

Fraf(BR) ENG,(GtA) TIl%

I8 :

2020 2019
2020 20196
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREFT

Total staff costs (including directors’ emoluments): 488 TR\ A (B FEZZH) ¢
— Salaries, wages and other benefits —5& ITEREMEF 44,149 23,268

— Contribution to defined contribution — RERFORIRET B R
retirement plan* 887 1,049
45,036 24,317
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 1,735 1,021
Deprecation of property, plant and equipment ~ ¥1% « E R REITE 2,843 2,887

Amortisation of intangible assets (included in BV EEEHEGEATERAX)

administrative expenses) 152 113
Auditors' remuneration ZEET 2 2,010 1937
Legal and professional fees (including FEREERY (BIEEEFLE)

expenditures on legal proceeding) GTATTEAR)

(included in administrative expenses) 2,574 35,517
Cost of properties sold S W FER AR 394,585 229,386
Write-down of properties under development U Z R T ¥ % = 1,135
Lease payments under short-term leases on MAEYERBHEENHEENK

office premises 2,573 1,102
* Ministry of Human Resources and Social Security of the PRC has announced on 20 * FEANERMEGRERE 2020562 A

February 2020 to waive employer obligations on social security insurance (“SSI")
contributions during February 2020 to June 2020 and further announced on 22 June
2020 to extend the exemption period of SSI contributions to December 2020 to ease
the burden of enterprises under the impact of COVID-19.

9. EARNINGS (LOSSES) PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings (losses) per share is based on the profit
(loss) attributable to owners of the Company and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

20 A S R %8 20202 A 202056
A eRBE(HEERBE]HX
% WH2020F6 A2 BE—FEMERT

CoE:=

SREEBOHEHRZE2020F 12 8 + BURE

COVID-1

9. &M (ER)

IEFHEGETE

IFETHRRERE-

BEREREN (BR) HRERNRRHEE
AN (BR) RFRERHTERR

2020 2019
2020 F 20194F
Profit (Loss) attributable to owners of KANEEA ANEMG G (EE)
the Company (RMB) (AR®) 64,034,000 (18,897,000)
Weighted average number of ordinary BT E BRI T
shares in issue 300,000,000 300,000,000
Basic earnings (losses) per share (RMB) BIREREF (FE)(ARE) 0.21 (0.06)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE2020F 12831 BILFE

9. EARNINGS (LOSSES) PER SHARE (Continued) 9. BREM (EH) (/&)
There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares during the years ended RELE2020F K 2019F 12 A31 B IEFE -
31 December 2020 and 2019, therefore, the diluted earnings (losses) per WEEF S E T EmE WERBEEER
share were the same as the basic earnings (losses) per share. (E18) B EARET (EE) R -
10. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE 10. #&F K T4 S 3 AN L5
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(@) Directors’ emoluments (@ HEFEM&E
The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid and payable to the NERNKEB S NKENANATIE
directors of the Company by the Group during the year are as ERNNE eI T
follows:

Year ended 31 December 2020

HZ2020F12831ALEE
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and benefits  Termination Discretionary scheme
Fees in kinds benefits bonuses contributions Total
e 2R BAER
BEEHd BNRE BREA HETA HE e b

RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARMTR ARETR ARBTR ARMTR AR%Tn

Executive Directors HITEE

ZhoulLi Bk - 1,236 - - 38 1,274
Fan Wenyi BXH - 595 - - 15 610
Chen Xiang (note a) B (Fi3Ea) - 114 - - 3 17
Chen Zhonghua (note b) BRimzE (FitztD) - 1,319 - - 7 1,326
Zhang Yu note ¢) K& (3Ec) - 96 - - - 96
Non-Executive Director FHIEE

Yao Yu (note &) o (firste) - 33 - - 4 37

Independent Non-Evecutive Directors ~ BB TEE

Li Yong 3 192 - - - - 192
EJunYu(note ) DeF (Fiske) 76 o 5 - - 76
Deng Shaochao (note f Et (Ef) 116 - - - - 116
Zhao Guoging HEE 192 = - - - 192
Total o 576 3,393 - - 67 4,036
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HZE20200E 12 A31 BIEEE

10. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE

164

10. #E85 R T4 R N L ()

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued)

(@

HAILAN HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

(@ FEFME ()

Year ended 31 December 2019
BE019E12 A3 AILERE

Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and benefits ~ Termination  Discretionary scheme
Fees inkinds benefits bonuses  contributions Total
He 2R RN
BEE ENils BREN B sHEIR ey

RMBI000 RMBI000 RMBI000 RMBI000 RMBI000 RMBI000
AREBTR  ARETT ARETT ARBTRL ARETR ARETR

Executive Directors HTEE

Zhou Li Bk - 1241 - - 01 1302

Fan Wenyi BXH - 561 - - 2% 587

Chen Xiang (note 2) ERAURT) - 199 - - 2% 25

Chan Si Yu (note d) B (st a) - 561 78 45 15 699

Chen Zhonghua (note b) FRifE (Hiztb) - 913 - - 5 918

Non-Executive Director FHITEE

Yao Yu (note e) thF (Fizte) - 28 - - 4 30

Independent Non-Frecutive Directors B E#{TEE

LiYong EX 150 - - - - 150

EJun Yu (note e) SEF(Mizte) 200 - - - - 200

Zhao Guoging HEE 200 - - - - 200

Total @it 550 3757 78 45 176 4606

Notes: ffsE -

@ Retired on 31 October 2019 and appointed on 15 October 2020. @ 2019410 A 31 B iR T & 720204
1015 AERF -

(b) Appointed on 26 September 2019 and resigned on 15 October 2020. (b) 201949 A 26 B EZ AT F 72 2020 F
10415 BHE °

(© Appointed on 1 June 2020 and resigned on 25 October 2020. (© 2020 6 A1 A #EZF R 20205

(d) Retired on 31 October 2019.

(e) Retired on 1 June 2020.

(f) Appointed on 1 June 2020.

10 A 25 BT -
(d) 2019410 A 31 BRIE -
(e) 202066 A1 HERE -

(6] R 20205 6 A1 AERT -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE2020F 1231 HILFE

10. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued)

(@)

(b)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to any directors as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office.

There were no arrangements under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2019: Nil).

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year included 2 (2019: 2) directors whose
emoluments are reflected in note (a) above. The emoluments for
the remaining 3 (2019: 3) individuals are as follows:

10. HEH KA R H A LH (48)

(@)

(b)

=M ()

#H E20209F K%2019%12 8318 Ik
FE AKERERTAESZH
A€ 1E A& I AR E B s i AR
SEENREIIERBEREE -

FR- RESERELARBRELT
S M 2B (20194 : £E) o

hammHE AL
FAREBRERSHFATH LS
(019F 2R )BEE EMER
EXMFE@FP R - 82T 345(2019
F3Z)ERALOMENT

2020 2019
2020 F 20194F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETF T
Salaries and other emoluments SHe& NEMES 4,024 3,210
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIKEFIFTEI R 33 129
4,057 3,339
The emoluments fell within the following bands: BEEBEMT -
2020 2019
2020 F 20194F
Number of Number of
employees employees
EEAE =N
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 (equivalent to 1,000,001 78 T2 1,500,000 78 7T
RMB892,858 to RMB1,339,286) (FEER AR 892858 TR
ANE#1,339,2867T) 1 3
HK$ 1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 (equivalent to 1,500,001 7 7T & 2,000,000 7 JT,
RMB1,339,287 to RMB1,785,714) (HEENARM1,339287 TR
AR#1,78571470) -
3

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, none of the
above individuals has received any emoluments from the Group
as an inducement to join or leave the Group or compensation for
loss of office; none of the above individuals has waived or has
agreed to waive any emoluments.

HZE 20205 K 2019F 12831815
& BE E I ERA LRI AER
ERBE - fEAMMASEBEFRALER
HIZE) S E AR mE - i@z
At TR AR EE ok [R) B AR EE A AT

MR A RAT 20204
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE20200F 12 A3 ALFE

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 11. Y2~ W5 Kt
Machines,
furniture,
office
Electronic equipment
Vehicles devices and others Buildings Total
B KR
WARE
"E BETRHE KAt BF #at
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000

ARETT  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR

Reconciliation of carryingamount—  BRE{E 2 ¥ —

Year ended 31 December 2019 BZ2019%12A31R
LEE

Asat 1 January 2019 M2019%1A1H 377 3% 48 477 42058
Additions NE - 64 - 64
Disposals HE 23) - - - (23)
Depreciation il (50) (58) (37) (2,742) (2,887)
As at 31 December 2019 R2019%128318 304 362 11 38535 39212
Reconciliation of carryingamount—  REEZ ¥k —

Year ended 31 December 2020 BZ2020F12831H

LFE

Asat T January 2020 R200%E1 818 304 362 1 38,535 39,212
Additions RE 647 89 22 - 758
Depreciation e (41) (42) (18) (2,742) (2,843)
As at 31 December 2020 12020512431 R 910 409 15 35,793 37,127
At 31 December 2020 R20205128318
Cost KA 2,871 2,514 4,042 57,729 67,156
Accumulated depreciation ZiE (1,961) (2,105) (4,027) (21,936) (30,029)
Net carrying amount REFE 910 409 15 35,793 37,127
At31December 2019 R2019%128318
Cost KA 2004 2405 4020 57,729 66,398
Accumulated depreciation ZHE (1920) (2,063) (4009) (19,194) (27,186)
Net carrying amount REFE 304 362 il 38535 39212
The buildings are situated on lands in the PRC with lease terms of 62 EBFUREERAFNFRH LM - 1
years, the remaining lease term of the buildings as at 31 December 2020 2020F 12 A3 HEFHRIBHEER A7 F
is 57 years (2019: 58 years). (20194 : 584F) »

]66 HAILAN HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE20200F 12 A3 BIFE

12. LEASES

Right of use assets

12. HE

55 R

Office premises

WMAEYE
RMB’000
ARET R
Reconciliation of carrying amount IREENHER

— year ended 31 December 2019 —BZE2019F12A31HLFE
At beginning of the year REH]

— upon adoption of HKFRS 16 — RIERMBE BV R EERE 165018 =
Additions NE 5,252
Depreciation e (1,021)
As at 31 December 2019 R2019512H31H 4,231
Reconciliation of carrying amount IREENE R

— year ended 31 December 2020 —EHZE2020F12A31BLEFE
At 1 January 2020 202051 H1H 4,231
Lease modification HEENR (1,356)
Depreciation e (1,735)
Exchange realignment TE R (183)
As at 31 December 2020 72020512 H31H 957
At 31 December 2020 7202012831 H
Cost AN 3,543
Accumulated depreciation 2T E (2,586)
Net carrying amount BREFE 957
At 31 December 2019 20195 12H31H
Cost AN 5,252
Accumulated depreciation 2T E (1,021)
Net carrying amount BRMEFE 4,231

The Group leases an office premise for its daily operation with the lease

term of 3 years.

AEBHERREMREETEEZ
A HEMA3IE -
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12

168

LEASES (Continued)
Right of use assets (Continued)
Extension and termination options

The lease contract contains an extension option to renew the lease
before the end of the current lease term and the renewed lease terms
shall not be longer than 3 years. Besides, the lease contract also contains
a termination option that the Group could terminate the lease contract
after the first year of lease term by serving not less than 2 months’
written notice or by paying 2 months’ rent. At the end of the reporting
period, the potential undiscounted future lease payments relating to
periods following the exercise dates of extension option not included in
lease liabilities is approximate RMB3,218,000 (2019: RMB6,264,000).

Restrictions or covenants

Most of the leases impose a restriction that, unless the approval is
obtained from the lessor, the right-of-use asset can only be used by the
Group and the Group is prohibited from selling or pledging the
underlying assets.

For leases of properties, the Group is required to keep those properties
in a good state of repair and return the properties in their original
condition at the end of the lease.

12. HHE ()

55 M % (48)
3PS EIlage 3=
HEANMRTEHEZREUNRBEE

LR EERE  MBEENHEEHET
BERR3IF - o HESLIRM KL
BIERE AEBTRHEHEFRES
BETORAMEANZEBMKTA®
EAMBLRIEAEAN  RKEH
K TetAEaGBRNEECHRIER
TR HEENEEARMBERRAE
FFH) B AR 3218000 7T (2019 4F = A
R 6,264,000 7T) ©

PR ) =R 22 o
REDHEERES - FRIFBISHEA
Mt EREEEEAT A ASEE

A MARENGHERBITEFEE -

IMENEEMS  AREAKZED
ERBRIZZHERN  ARHEERLE
B PARAR SB35 -

Lease liabilities HE AR
2020 2019
2020 F 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T ARETT
Lease liabilities HEBE
Current portion ENER 1,049 1,713
Non-current portion FERENEE > - 2,578
1,049 4,291
2020 2019
2020 2019 %
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T ARETT
Lease payments: MERK -

Short-term leases EHAME 2,573 1,102
Expenses recognised in profit or loss RIBRERHFZ 2,573 1,102
Lease payments: MERK -

Interest on lease liabilities HEBENE 166 137

Repayment of lease liabilities BEHERE 1,698 961

1,864 1,098
Total cash outflow for leases MERS R RE 4,437 2,200
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE2020F 1231 HILFE

12. LEASES (Continued) 12. HE (8)
Lease liabilities (Continued) L K (4)
Commitments under leases HEETHAE
At 31 December 2020, the Group was committed to RMB3,133,000 for R2020F 12 A31H - AEBGEHEE
short-term leases (2019: RMB3,884,000). B AR® 3,133,000 TTHIESE (20194 + A
R 3,884,0007CT) °
13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 13. HEWE
2020 2019
2020 F 20194F
RMB’000 RMB’000
Fair value AEE AR%ET R ARETIT
Carrying amount at 1 January K1 ATENEREE 106,979 130,058
Transferred to completed properties A EHE
held for sale BRI - (409)
Changes in fair value of investment properties R IB#RIERHIIRE W2
recognised in profit or loss NEEEZS (1,824) (22,670)
At 31 December M12A31H 105,155 106,979

The investment properties represent the car parks held by the Group for
rental purpose.

Unrealised loss of RMB1,824,000 (2019: RMB22,670,000) relating to these
investment properties held at the end of the reporting period were
recognised during the year.

Fair value measurement of investment properties

The following table shows the Group's investment properties measured
at fair value in the consolidated statement of financial position on a
recurring basis, categorised into three levels of a fair value hierarchy. The
levels are based on the observability of significant inputs to the
measurements, as follows:

—  Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets and liabilities.

—  Level 2. inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly

orindirectly.

—  Level 3: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

REDE/AKBRBEHERZZZ
B e

RIERREEZSREDENHEREE
EA3H 18 A R 51,824,000 78 (2019 4F - A
R ¥ 22,670,000 7T ) IAF NHERR ©

BEW RN A PR
TRENRNEERG AP BARRKRIRE
FUREUARNFEFENREYE(RF
BESGER=A) - HRBEEMERA
EZHA2ENABREREERAR :

— H%: AREERBERNEET
BERE CREFHE) -

— Ff:BELRENAIER(E
KRR BA2B(F—
RABEHRERRIN)

— FZH BERRBENEIERES
FEBAZE -
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HE2020F 1231 HILFE

13.

170

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 13. BEYE ()
Fair value measurement of investment properties B WM A PSR (8)
(Continued)
As at 31 December 2020
72020512 H31H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—#& gt B=R At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETRT AR¥®TnR AR%®TxR
Investment properties B - - 105,155 105,155
As at 31 December 2019
201912 A31H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—H EH F=M #ast
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT AR®EFTT ARETT
Investment properties CE=RIES - - 106,979 106,979
During the year ended 31 December 2020, there were no transfers HE2020F 12A318IFE  F—H K

between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfer into and out of Level 3 fair
value measurements (2019: Nil).

As at 31 December 2020, the investment properties were valued by the
management using income approach and comparable market
transaction approach.

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 3 fair value
measurements

The fair value of the Group's investment properties is determined by
using income approach with reference to current market rental, vacancy
rate, growth rate of monthly rental, discount rate and comparable
market transaction approach with reference to comparable’s average
unit selling price upon more market data is available and in accordance
with the investment properties’ highest and best use as determined by
the management at the end of the reporting period.

HAILAN HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

FoMEIEER - TEEALEH

B AFEFE(Q019F : &) -
202012 A31H  REYWEREEE
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=8N A EE = P DAY Al A B g
Z’(Wi\ﬁkﬁ%
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HE20200F 12 A3 BIFE

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 13. HEWE ()
Significant inputs used to determine fair value 7o 5E 2 P F K i A R
2020 2019
2020 20194
Income approach WA E
Weighted average monthly rental HEEFEEMINEFEAE RMB421 RMB421
per each car park space AR¥421 5t ARE4211T
Growth rate of monthly rental HEEEM ARERR
per each car park space 0%-10% 0%-10%
Vacancy rate EEX 5%-95% 0%-95%
Discount rate AhIR R 6.6% 6.6%
Capitalisation rate BERex N/A FEH N/A i A

Comparable market transaction approach ~ ALt B TIE X 5 %

Comparable’s average unit selling price Al tE S BRI BB AL E (B RMB102,000 RMB102,000
AR AR
102,000 JT 102,000 7T
The inputs are estimated by the management based on the risk profile BAE N TEERERGEYENE
of the properties being valued. Under income approach, the higher the SE A c BIEWASE HEEXRK
rates of vacancy rate and discount rate and lower of the weighted BRI RAE s BiEEH AR
average monthly rental and growth rate of monthly rental, the lower the AfEERARK  BAEEAK - BIE
fair value. Under the comparable market transaction approach, the A E TSR 5% A& E B F
higher the comparable’s average unit selling price, the higher the fair HEMNEBRS  BAFERS -
value.
The investment properties are situated on lands in the PRC with lease BN NS A0 E 70E /T
terms between 60 to 70 years, the remaining lease terms as at 31 4 22020412 A31 B Y S TS
December 2020 is between 49 to 59 years. B A9 594F o

WA AT 20209 ] 7]
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE20200F 12 A3 ALFE

13.

172

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
Leasing arrangement — as lessor

The investment properties are leased to tenants for a term of 5 to 20
years with fixed monthly payments. The rental of certain investment
properties was received from the tenants in advance as set out in Note
23(vi) to the consolidated financial statements. The tenants also bear the
management fees and repair and maintenance fee by themselves.

Accounting policy of the rental income from operating leases are set out
in Note 2.4 to the consolidated financial statements.

Although the Group is exposed to changes in the residual value at the
end of the current leases, the Group typically entered into new operating
leases and therefore will not immediately realise and reduction in the
residual value at the end of these leases. Expectations about the future
residual values are reflected in the fair value of the properties.

Below is a maturity analysis of undiscounted lease payments to be
received from the leasing of investment properties.

13.

BeEY = ()
MEZHE — ERmAA
REWMEFABEEAENKEETHEE
HERSE205 - MR E M B RKRW
FEBV)TE ETREVENHEZES
EAEFKRR - HETBITAZERSE
REERREER -

KEHERSN ST MREANGETH
MR TE24 -

BEASEHERREFHETHER ORI
BEEZHNER ERAKEBEI LN
REHE A Ten%EHETE
RS IR THEEEE - ARAARNK
HABENRINYEN D FERBR -

VAT 73 AR B W) 5 5 BB R B3R
ENROEEIER -

At At

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

72020 F 20194

12A31H 12HA31H

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARETT

Year 1 F1F 42 42
Year 2 F2F 42 42
Year 3 E3F - 42
Undiscounted lease payments to be received B E R AR BRIR A E 3K 84 126
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14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 14, BIL&RE

Software
B4
RMB'000
ARET T
Reconciliation of carrying amount — IREEZ R —
Year ended 31December 2019 BZ2019F 12831 HIEFE
As at 1 January 2019 201951 A1 H 504
Amortisation charge HiHE A (113)
As at 31 December 2019 201912 A318 391
Reconciliation of carrying amount — BRMEE 2 ¥k —
Year ended 31December 2020 HZE2020F12 831 BLEFE
As at 1 January 2020 202061 A1 H 391
Amortisation charge BB (152)
As at 31 December 2020 7202012 831H 239
At 31 December 2020 72020512 831H
Cost D% 1,526
Accumulated amortisation RETE (1,287)
Net carrying amount REFE 239
At 31 December 2019 7"2019F12A31H
Cost AR 1,526
Accumulated amortisation EETE (1,135)
Net carrying amount BREFE 391

i B A B W
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE2020F 1231 HILFE

15. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES

15. &R

The amount recognised in the consolidated statement of financial

position is as follows:

2N ]
RERE MBI R RN SRR T

2020 2019
2020 F 20194F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T R AREFT
Unlisted shares, at cost JEETRR - A - -
Due from an associate (Note i) JE LA Bt 42 7 IE(W&M) 20,293 -
Loan to associates (Notes i and ii) MEE BB (T Ri) 92,232 104,996
Share of results DIEELE (3,505) -
109,020 104,996
Details of the material associates at the end of the reporting period are RMERARNOEZBE RAFIBOAT
as follows:
Place of incorporation/ % of
registration and ownership Nature of the
Name of company business interest relationship Carrying amount
HEMRYL wmEE
NGRS R i B ERES BERMEE BREE
2020 2019 2020 2019
2020F 20194 2020 F 20194F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETRT AREBTT
Shenzhen Aolan The PRC 49% 49%  Note (i) 23,046 104,996
Estate Co, Ltd.* i S EE0)
("Shenzhen Aolan ")
FYREBEBRAT
([RYNREE])
Guangxi Runlang Estate The PRC 40% - Note (ii) 65,681 -
Co, Ltd* s B 5 (i)
(“Guangxi Runlang”)
EEEREEXBRAT
([EABR])
Guangxi Hailan Jinzhong The PRC 49% - Note (iii) 20,293 -
Real Estate Development A7 (D)
Co,, Ltd. *
("Guangxi Hailan")
JE& P BE < 6 S e A B
BRAR(EREETE])
109,020 104,996
* The official names are in Chinese and the English names are translated for * FREB AP EXLABEZEHER -

identification purpose only.
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INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

15.

Notes:

0]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group held 49% equity interest in Shenzhen
Aolan, a company engaged in investment holdings which incorporated and conducts
its business in the PRC. At the end of the reporting period, the registered capital of
Shenzhen Aolan is RMB10,000,000 but not yet paid. The capital injection committed
by the Group of RMB4,900,000 is without expiration. Loan of RMB26,551,000 (2019:
RMB104,996,000) which is unsecured, interest-free and the settlement is not expected
to be occurred in the foreseeable future was made to Shenzhen Aolan based on the
proportion of shareholding of its shareholders.

In November 2020, Guangxi Runlang, an associate of the Group engaged in property
development in the PRC was incorporated and is held as to 40% by the Group. At the
end of the reporting period, the registered capital of Guangxi Runlang is
RMB10,000,000 but not yet paid. The capital injection committed by the Group of
RMB4,000,000 is without expiration. Loan of RMB65,681,000 which is unsecured,
interest-free and the settlement is not expected to be occurred in the foreseeable
future was made to Guangxi Runlang based on the proportion of shareholding of its
shareholders.

In July 2020, Guangxi Hailan, an associate of the Group engaged in investment
holding in the PRC was incorporated and is held as to 49% by the Group. At the end
of the reporting period, the registered capital of Guangxi Hailan is RMB20,000,000 but
not yet paid. The capital injection committed by the Group of RMB9,800,000 is
without expiration. During the year, amount due of RMB20,293,000 which is
unsecured, interest-free and the settlement is not expected to be occurred in the
foreseeable future was made to Guangxi Hailan of which amount of RMB17,393,000
was made based on the proportion of shareholding of its shareholders.

All associates are accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated financial
statements.

&
Wi

@

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

NN Y

20204 R 2019F 12318 AEBEFE
Y BREE 49% AR AN 2% - 5% A RIS B AR
AL BGEITER - B RETERER - R
HER - RYRERAMABOEMRAR
AR®10,0000007C « REBAEENETEAR
& 4,900,000 7T I £ [ i BAPR © 31 B EE 9 PR
FEREREIMEELIHNERARKE
26,551,000 7T (20194F = A R ¥ 104,996,000 7T )
REEAR REMEEEERTERA RS

2020511 A - AEERPENEERE
BB E QR EFEREMAY - WHASEE
FAH 0% o RI|EHAR - EEEIRE
S AR SR AR A A A R % 10,000,000 7T ©
A& B AT E AR 4,000,000 7T £ 5
W EARR o 7R RIR MY AR SRR FEAR LE il A EL
HHERARE 65681000 T AEEA - 28
MEBEBRTGR A RAGREAE -

MR20205F7 A - AEERFENERETR
MEEE AR ESEEMAY  YHAEE
BEHwER RIEHR ERIERE
S AR S R AR A A A R % 20,000,000 7T ©
AL E AR EE AR 9,800,000 7T £ fE
REARR o F A - (A BB FE B R A IR IR
AR 202930000 BEIEIF - 2 EMEEE
BHTAERARKEREE ERPARK
17,393,000 7T JH 3R AR R AR LE BIVE o

RARME AR EN R A BERE AR
M/‘\ —J)\EE °

MR RA T 20204 )

175



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

»‘/T\

o BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F 12831 AIEFE

355

176

INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
Relationship with the material associates

Shenzhen Aolan has a non-wholly owned subsidiary, Meizhou Aochuang
Estate Co,, Ltd., a company established in the PRC with limited liability,
which is engaged in development of a land parcel at Meijiang District,
Meizhou City, Guangdong Province (collectively known as the
“Shenzhen Aolan Group’). The investment in the associate allows the
Group to make presence in the region outside Hainan Province.

Guangxi Runlang is engaged in development of a land parcel at
Liangging District, Nanning City, Guangxi. The investment in Guangxi
Runlang allows the Group to improve its influence and recognition in
Guangxi Province.

Guangxi Hailan is engaged in development of a land parcel jointly with a
third party in Guangxi Province. The investment in Guangxi Hailan allows
the Group to improve its influence and recognition in Guangxi Province.

Financial information of individually material associates

Summarised financial information of the material associates of the Group
is set out below, which represents amounts shown in the associates’
consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs
and adjusted by the Group for equity accounting purposes including

15.

BB E A ()
S UG 4 ) R T A
RYNRER —HFRZEHE QRGN
@ﬁﬂ%%ﬁ@“ NGV YS9
VAR RE  HEERREEMNTIET

I?_uﬁﬁiimﬁfv‘@( AR IR RERE]) -
BERBERREARERETEEE
IASME[E

E@ifﬁﬁﬁéﬁ%ﬁﬁé@ﬁﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁé%ﬁ?‘
Wi - REAFRNREZRAKER
ReERERAENTENRAEE

ERESENEREREEE=T LR
F - REABENRERAKER
UiREENBEAENTFENRALE

A8 ) 3 S Wi 85 4 ] A 5 R

AEEETEHERTNTHERR R
NI BHESBERRETEYHRE
EH BB L QAR A M BREAR
MER IYHBRE NS EANEEH

any differences in accounting policies and fair value adjustments. B(EESHBERATFERARNEMNE
#2)o
(a) Shenzhen Aolan (a) RIYIREE
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREETIT
Gross amount AL EE
Current assets mENEE 881,967 579,363
Current liabilities REEE (427,457) (127,837)
Non-current liabilities EmEAaE (419,814) (404,585)
Net assets BEFE 34,696 46,941
Less: Non-controlling interests of AR RESERIEERER
Shenzhen Aolan Group (41,849) (47,971)
(7,153) (1,030)
Group's ownership interests RNEFNEAEER 49% 49%
The Group's share of equity of AEB DT ﬂl\ﬁ I ) i
Shenzhen Aolan Group (3,505) (505)
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15. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 15.

Financial information of individually material associates

(Continued)

(@) Shenzhen Aolan (Continued)

(a)

BE R AN ()
P iy

oy W) 3 5 R (A

RYIREE ()

For the

period from

6 June 2019
(date of
incorporation)
to 31 December

2020 2019
120194
6H6H
(FEf Az
A E
20196
2020 12 A 31 HEAFE
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARKETT
Gross amount AEDEE
Revenue Wz = -
Loss from operations LB EA (12,245) (2,060)
Other comprehensive income Hih2EUEA = -
Total comprehensive loss for the year/period 4 HRN & E E5 18 4258 (12,245) (2,060)
Less: Total comprehensive loss for R RYI R E IR
the year/period attributable to FEIEF BINEE
the non-controlling interest of EE4EEE
Shenzhen Aolan Group (6,122) (1,030)
Total comprehensive loss for the year/period  JR3I|EREE £ B 7 A A FE(L
attributable to owners of Shenzhen Aolan F /PR MEEIEARE
Group (6,123) (1,030)
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15. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
Financial information of individually material associates A 9 3 B W

178

(Continued)
(b) Guangxi Runlang

15. &R S A (5)

(b) EEER

oy ) S 5 R (A1)

31 December

2020

2020 FF

12A31H

RMB’000

AR¥ T

Gross amount Fekard

Current assets MENEE 410,665
Non-current assets IERBEE 1
Current liabilities mEBaE (410,669)
Net liabilities BEFE (3)
Group'’s ownership interests REER A EER 40%
The Group's share of equity of Guangxi Runlang NEB DL ETBEBRMNEZ -
For the

period from

24 November

2020 (date of

incorporation)
to 31 December

2020

H 2020

11 824H

(G BLZ

HE)ZE

2020 F

12 A31 BHE

RMB’000

AR® T

Gross amount HBDER

Revenue g -
Loss from operations ZiEEE (3)
Other comprehensive income EmEmA =
Total comprehensive loss for the period HAZHEEREE (3)
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15.

16.

INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 15.

Financial information of individually material associates
(Continued)

BE R E A (8])
180 331 2 0B 4 ) W A 5 Rk (A

()  Guangxi Hailan () EAEBE
31 December
2020
2020 F
12A31H
RMB’000
ARBT T
Gross amount AL EE
Current assets MENVE 38,395
Current liabilities MEAE (38,395)
Net assets BEFE =
Group'’s ownership interests REER A EER 49%
The Group's share of equity of Guangxi Hailan REESEEFEERNER -

Unrecognised share of losses of the associates

No unrecognised share of losses of the associates for the current year
and cumulatively up to the end of the reporting period (2019:
RMB505,000).

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 16.

PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include the following:

43 A W28 > el i 48 I AR e 58 A
AKEEREEREHRE R D(hHGE
NAEENRERSRE(2019F : ARK
505,000 7T,) °

R PE R AR 2 ) 4 8 A

BRAFEFABRENEBEERREUT
HE ¢

2020 2019
2020 & 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TRT ARBTET

Unlisted securities: FLEMES
Equity securities — outside Hong Kong RAFES — BAEIN 1,654 1773
Structured deposits — outside Hong Kong EREMETR — BAREIN (Fiita)
(Note a) 4,000 1,800
5,654 3,573
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16.

17.

180

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 16. #%& A\ {H 7 A 18 45 19 4 Al & &
PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued) (78)
Details of the fair value of the Group’s investments in unlisted securities REBNRIELTEHEREHNNFEHN
are set out in Note 28(f) to the consolidated financial statements. FE I HmERMEE28(f) ©
Note a: The Group has principal-protected floating income structured deposits issued by MsFa: AEBEEDEEITERORAKZERAL
banks in the PRC. As the directors of the Company evaluate the performance of the BUER AR AATESHATEREE
structured deposits on a fair value basis, the structured deposits are classified financial AHEABUERNRE  EBUEEZR
assets at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition because their cash VA FE RS "%E?%}ﬁ’/}?fﬁ;l‘/\}%ﬁﬁ’]i
flows do not represent solely payments of principal and interest. The fair value of the BMEE - WIHARERSRUIEERERS
structured deposits was determined by reference to recent market transaction. RFEMH - EHEFRNATELER
BN 59EE -
PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 17. BEREPY)E
2020 2019
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Properties under development BEHRYE 4,626,132 2,883,810
Less: write-down to net realisable value /JEE R = ] BIRFE (1,055) (1,135)
4,625,077 2,882,675
Expected to be completed: TEHASEAK -
— Within 1 year —1FRN 310,329 53,007
— More than 1 year — ZR1F 4,314,748 2,829,668
4,625,077 2,882,675

The properties under development, including land held for future
development, were located in the PRC and the United States of America
(the "USA") and are stated at lower of cost and NRV.

As at 31 December 2020, provision in aggregate of RMB1,055,000 was
made to write down the properties under development to net realisable
value (2019: RMB1,135,000).

At the end of the reporting period, properties under development
located in the PRC with an aggregate net carrying amounts of
RMB280,308,000, RMB520,236,000 and RMB344,851,000 were pledged to
secure loan facilities of an maximum amount of RMB300,000,000,
RMB450,000,000 and RMB300,000,000 respectively (2019: property under
development with an aggregate net carrying amounts of
RMB305,605,000 and RMB79,822,000 which located in the PRC and
RMB68,094,000 which located in the USA were pledged to secure loan
facilities of an maximum amount of RMB200,000,000, RMB300,000,000
and RMB21,060,000 respectively). In addition, properties under
development with carrying amount of RMB102,764,000 which located in
the PRC were pledged to secure loan facility granted to a non-
controlling shareholder with a maximum amount of RMB200,000,000.

HAILAN HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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R EREFEERE(TXRE]) - X
RPN P B R E R BIEEDIER

R20209F12 A31H » AR R D FHEBE
A 4 AR #1,0550007C 0 LA U B R A
YEZTEIEZEEQNNIF: AR
1,135,000 7C) ©

R|EER - ARREEFEEDFES
H A A R #2803080007T © A K #
520,236,000 7T S A R #& 344,851,000 7T I iz
REPBEMERTRYE  DRlfEARE S
B A K #3000000007C A K ¥
450,000,000 7T M A R #5 300,000,000 TTHY &
FENE R (20194F : HFEMFES
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18.

19.

COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

All completed properties held for sale are located in the PRC on
leasehold land with lease term of 40 years or more. The directors of the
Company estimate that the net realisable value of unsold properties
based on estimation of future selling price less costs to be incurred in

18.

FriEsH e 75 i

FTBREHED ERYMEILN F BN
ME L HERWOFIUE - 2 E
BITMSHER  AEEESRELHKR
KEEBMMGEBEHERBKA - A5t

relation to the sale, with reference to the prevailing market data. RELYHER A EIRFHE o
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARKEFT
Completed properties EEIE 374,873 666,137
Less: Expected to be sold after 12 months B TEEAR 2B AR E (309,265) (188,593)
Expected to be sold within 12 months FEHR1R2BAREE 65,608 477,544

The completed properties held for sale located in the PRC with an
aggregate net carrying amount at the end of the reporting period of
RMB119,849,000 (2019: RMB191,955,000) were pledged to secure a loan
facility of a maximum amount of RMB300,000,000 (2019:
RMB300,000,000).

CONTRACT COSTS

As at 31 December 2020, capitalised contract costs represents the
incremental sales commissions paid to intermediaries whose selling
activities resulted in customers entering into sale and purchase
agreements for the Group's properties which are still under construction
at the end of the reporting date. Contract costs are recognised as selling
and distribution expenses in profit or loss when revenue from the related
property sales is recognised. The contract costs of RMB20,244,000 (2019:
RMB15,461,000) were charged to profit or loss upon revenue from sales
of properties were recognised during the year.

19.

REEHA BEMFEAARE
119,849,0007%(2019¢ o AR 191,955,000
TR EE B EHEEEERMEE R
FUARSERRB S ARKE
300,000,00075(20194F = A R ¥ 300,000,000
JL) °

AT A

202012 A318 - %%ﬁ$1té?’7ﬁ$
ERRNMHBEITNIEEHERS
SHE /E.CE)JA%E'WLK%IBA#&%EI,HHW
EREZNYEIILEEWZ - EHEY
EHENRRERT  AONEAREBER
WREBDHEATL - FABHKETARKE
20,244,0007C (20194 + A R ¥ 15,461,000
TL) RIERHE M E W= N8k -

MR A RAT 20204
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20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20. © 5 B H At REUGHIE
2020 2019
2020 F 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ TR ARETTT
Trade receivables — third parties (note i) S EWEE — E=7 (M)
— Non-current — IERH 8,072 12,808
— Current — R 9,726 3,000
17,798 15,808
Less: Loss allowance (Note 20(a)) A SRR (M5 20()) (19) (19)
17,779 15,789
Other receivables E U IR
— Third parties (note i) — B =77 (H&Ei) 15,821 13,048
— Loan to third parties (note i) — mE=FE R 16,128 -
— Loan to non-controlling shareholders — [AIFEIE R AR R E 3k (BT iv)
(note iv) 3,441 3,689
— Loan to a related party (note v) — M@ ER (M) 500 -
— Amount due from a non-controlling — FEURFEFE AR A% B 3B (P 5 vi)
shareholder (note vi) 44,414
Less: Loss allowance (Note 20(b)) B TR (PR 20(0)) (11,766) (10,219)
68,538 6,518
Advance payments to contractors, net of AR TRTE R - HBREE
allowance (note vii) (B EE Vi) 13,212 21,443
Amount due from a co-operation UL A VERE HEZRTE (B 7 viii)
partner (note viii) 40,000
Community facilities deposits HEFEES 31,520 12,298
Construction deposits for pre-sale (note ix) ?QEL &ie (M5t ix) - 68,315
Expenditures incurred for construction of BAL R MEATE R
community facilities (note x) (Izﬁfix) 30,004 30,004
Guarantee deposits (note xi) REBEZRS (WFEX) 195,000
Prepayment and other deposits TERTRIE R A thige 22,534 1819
Prepaid utilities expenses BN ARER 3,064 2,827
Prepaid other taxes AT E IR 51,183 31,853
386,517 168,559
Total HmEt 472,834 190,866
Classified as: DR
Non-current assets EREEE 206,513 16,497
Current assets MBNEE 266,321 174,369
472,834 190,866
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20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes:

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

Trade receivables comprise receivables due from customers in relation to sales of
properties and rental income. Proceeds from the sale of properties are made in lump-
sum payments or paid by instalments in accordance with the terms of the
corresponding sale and purchase agreements. Receivables to be recovered more
than one year are classified as non-current trade receivables. The remaining balance
of trade receivables are expected to be recovered within one year. The Group does
not hold any collaterals over these balances. In respect of the sale of properties, no
credit terms are granted to customers. The details on the Group's credit policy are set
out in Note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

Other receivables due from third parties are unsecured, interest-free and repayable

on demand. The amount is expected to be recovered within 12 months.

Loan to third parties is interest-free and repayable in 2021.

Loan to non-controlling shareholders of a subsidiary is secured by the equity interest
in a subsidiary of the Company, interest-free and repayable in 2029 which is classified

as non-current other receivables.

Loan to a related party is unsecured, interest-bearing at 12% per annum and
repayable in 2021.

It represented an advance to a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary of the

Company which is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

Advance payments to contractors are made in accordance with the payment terms
as agreed in the construction contracts signed with building contractors. They are to
be transferred to properties under development with regard to stage of completion
for relevant construction. As at 31 December 2020, an allowance on advance
payment to a contractor of RMB12,895,000 (2019: RMB12,895,000) has been
recognised because the contractor is under the process of liquidation and was
unlikely to have financial capacity to repay the advance payment.

It represented a deposit paid for acquisition of land and properties on behalf of a co-
operation partner in relation to the transaction as set out in Note 36(i) to the
consolidated financial statements, which is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

It represented deposits paid to a local government authority as deposits in applying
for the pre-sale permit which authorised a developer to commence the sale of
property under construction. During the year, the completion of the property
development project satisfied the relevant pre-sale requirements and the deposits
was refunded. In addition, certain amount of proceeds receipts from the pre-sale
during the year, in accordance with the requirements of local government authority,
was place in banks as guarantee deposits and recognised as restricted cash in Note
22(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

It represents the construction cost of community facilities which is deductible for the
community facility funds charged by the local government or will be refunded to the
Group when the construction of the property project is completed.

B 5 K HAB RE WS IE (48)

Wi

0}

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

BHREFRBERHENERREPHE
Wk RSN ﬁﬁ‘ifk@%#ﬁﬁ?ﬁkﬁ)ﬂﬁ
BARR B B AR IRSUA — IR R D 1
NRE TR - ?@*i”&(@ﬂw’éﬂ&mlﬁﬁ
DRRERDE S EYGRIA - BHEUGRIA
BV T AR TR HIN — F IR - A E I
A S ERTEEAERR - SAOEHEM
FoREREPRLEES AREEER
ROFHBRR RS M EMRME28 -

Hi R E = FREEER  RERER
SRIEIE - ZeRMIRHHR 1218 B ARYkmE -

ME=F

°

Aﬂﬁ

BB % B R AR 2021 F1EE

) B B R AR FE AR AR PR B AR AR AT B
A ARIE(EIE IR - BB - AR 2029 FEiE
53 K8 A FE R B EL Ath FE U R o

il L\)

M BAESE T B KB R IR F A 12% 5 B
WBR 2021 F1EE

ﬁ?ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁzﬁﬂﬂwg”ﬂE’J?HWQH&%
B BEEN  REMEBRREE -

)R B S S TR SRV AR IR B R R R B 7S

FENTIRAOBTEAOMNFIERMED - W5t
HEIENZEIECEBEZRERME - R
2020912 A31 8 - [AEBEZ A HTER FRE
B A R #128950007C(2019F : A R #
12,895,000 7C) #&X B HER - A B ERNE
BRF - BAGMBEHIEEENTNKE
K e

FHSHEERRAERHIE LI R ED
B E (BEGAFBMERME 360 X 5
BR) BEER R TEEREE -

BHSEERAZBBAEEXNIEAILHNE
EFFAHRE - NHEBREFAGHEER
TYE - FRN MERBEERTINAER
BERE  MZSCTEERE - IS REE
HER AT B SR R e TREWERE TR
SREZBEARBREFEART  XRE
EUBRKRM T 220 PHBRSZRHNRS -

FRSEAMERENERER  EWER
B #O 3 AR 52 A B BT VEFNIRL B S U AR B9 4
&R MERE S IR AT AKE -

MR RA T 20204 )
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20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

184

(xi)

(@

During the year, the Group entered into a co-operation agreement and
supplementary agreement with a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary,
Guangxi Minggui Real Estate Development Co., Ltd ("Guangxi Minggui”) and agreed
to pay the amount of RMB200,000,000 as guarantee deposit for the co-operation of
the development of properties. This guarantee deposit is refundable upon the
completion of the development and sales of the properties project of Guangxi

Minggui and is secured by the equity interests in Guangxi Minggui attributable to the

20.

¥ 5 K HAB R WK

GEX

(xi)

»‘E

(&)

FR - AREBE RN E A R ERS TR ER
BERAR([EAEBHE]) A IEERR R L
AEpEkAERABE YTREXNTARKE
200,000,000 TTIE A& VEF B MEMIRFIR S ©
ZRFRSHREABEYETEE R
ERKBIRE  WAIEERBRREGERE
HERRAERSER - RIFEHER BEXHA

non-controlling shareholder. At the end of the reporting period, RMB195,000,000 of R # 195,000,000 THIRFE R E - WHEARIKE
guarantee deposit was paid and is classified as non-current other receivables. R B E b FE U SR o
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the carrying amounts of trade and R2020F X 2019F 12 A31H - BHRE
other receivables approximates their fair values. M EWRIEMNREEMEE A ERE
Ageing analysis of trade receivables (@ ¥ 5 REWGERIE R 5 B
As of the end of the Reporting Period, the ageing analysis of gross REEER - B ZEBGRIBEER
trade receivables based on the invoice date that trade receivables HEmRcEEHHMERR T
were recognised, is as follows: ™~
2020 2019
2020 20196
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ TR ARETTT
Within 1 year TN 10,200 13,031
Over 1 year but less than 2 years TN EBDR2F 7,142 2319
Over 3 years 3FME 456 458
17,798 15,808

The ageing analysis of gross trade receivables as at 31 December
2020 and 2019 which were past due but not impaired was as
follows:

FR20204F M 2019 12H31B B
WEMERBEMNE FEKRFIELAEE
FERER D ATIN T -

2020 2019

2020 £ 20194F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT T ARETT

Within 1 year TELAR 9,270 2,542
Over 3 years 3FLAE 456 458
9,726 3,000

Neither past due nor impaired Ao B TR AR (B 8,072 12,808
17,798 15,808
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE2020F 1231 HILFE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

20. B 5 R HAUREWHOE (4])

(@)

(b)

Ageing analysis of trade receivables (Continued)

The management considers the ECL of trade receivables to be
insignificant so that no significant loss allowance was recognised
during the year, except a loss allowance of RMB19,000 (2019:
RMB19,000) was made on the balance due from a customer which
the management considered as credit impaired. The Group does
not hold any collateral over trade receivables as at 31 December
2020 (2019: Nil).

The movement in the ECL allowance of trade receivables is as
follows:

(€))

B 5 WAk T R 8% o T (4
ERERAEZRUIGIENTEHE
BEEBEYTAEX R FAERE
REABERE HHEERERE
BEGERENER—RRF&EH
B A B #19,000 7T &9 &5 18 # 1
(20194 + AR¥19,00070) Br4b ©
R2020F12 8318 AEBEY &
HEDEWFIBERE T MER®
(20194 : #E) -

B o RBHENTEREEEBRARE
ZENT -

2020

2020 F
RMB’000
AR¥T T

2019
20194F
RMB'000
AREFT

At 1 January and 31 December

M1 ATBR12 A31

H

19 19

Loss allowance on other receivables

The movement in the ECL allowance on other receivables is as
follows:

(b)

Al M M AL 1
S R T B AR
BT :

2020 2019

2020 20194F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET ARET T

At 1 January w1 A1H 10,219 13,676
Increase (Decrease) in allowance B OR ) 1,547 (3,457)
At 31 December ®12A31H 11,766 10,219

The management considers the ECL of other receivables to be
insignificant, except a net loss allowance of RMB11,766,000 (2019:
RMB10,219,000) was made on the balances due from
counterparties which the management considered as credit
impaired. The Group does not hold any collateral over other
receivables as at 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

ERERAEMBEYGIENTEHE
BEEBEBITTEKR  HIREEEREA
BEEERENEKE HEHRED
A R # 11,766,000 7T B &5 18 B 18 %
B (20194 + A R #10,219,0007T )
Br b o BR2020F12A31H K&
3] I 47 st H At JE W FOIR IS B TR
R (20194 « M) o

MR A RAT 20204
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21. DEPOSITS PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF LAND AND 21, Uil +Hb S Wy 2610 © H % 4
PROPERTIES
During the year, a sum of RMB680 million was paid as deposits for FA - ARBEZTARE0BETIE
acquisition of a parcel of land and the properties on the land parcel AU —m i R R EEEE EN
located in Danzhou, Hainan, the PRC. The acquisition was completed in THRMIR EWENIL S - WERN20214F
January 2021, for the details refer to Note 36 (i) to the consolidated 1AREK  FEBHL2EREVBRERWE
financial statements. 36 (i) ©
In 2019, a non-refundable deposit of US$2,000,000 (equivalent to RMB14 R2019%F » AR AREBERFER FUEESE
million) was forfeited because the Group decided to terminate an BEWEIEE - AR IEIE S 2,000,000
acquisition of a property project in the USA. As a result, an impairment EN(HERARKI48ET) B BR
loss on the deposits paid of RMB14,041,000 was recognised. e Ay ARAFERE MRS RES
1BARY 14,041,000 7T ©
22. RESTRICTED CASH / CASH AND CASH 22. ZMRHIBLEBlE KB EEEY
EQUIVALENTS
(@ Restricted Cash (@ ZREHE
2020 2019
2020 £F 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T ARETT
Pledged for: HTHEIEEA
Proceeds of pre-sale of properties TEEMENEREIR 269,942 91,722
Financial guarantee provided BRI R 34,100 33,669
304,042 125,391

In accordance with relevant policies issued by the PRC State-
owned Land and Resource Bureau applicable to all property
developers, the Group is required to place a pre-determined
amount of the proceeds received from the pre-sale of properties
as guarantee deposits into a bank for the construction of the
properties. The restriction will be released when the construction
is completed.

In addition, the Group is required to place certain amounts of
deposits in the banks to secure the provision of financing
guarantee services to its customers in accordance with the
financing guarantee agreements signed with the banks. The
balances are refundable when the obligations of the financing
guarantee agreements are released.

Included in the balances was RMB234,338,000 (2019:
RMB119,020,000) bear interest at floating daily bank deposit rates.

HAILAN HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE2020F 1231 HILFE

22. RESTRICTED CASH / CASH AND CASH

22. xRAB & BeRBHEEEYD

EQUIVALENTS (Continued) (%8)

(b) Cash and cash equivalents by BHERBRLSEED
2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T AREFT

Cash at bank and in hand RITERAFHERE

Cash on hand FHERS 8 6
Cash at bank RTINS 727,481 752,074
727,489 752,080

At the end of the reporting period, the bank balances of the Group
denominated in RMB placed with banks in the PRC amounted to
RMB690,541,000 (2019: RMB577,183,000). RMB is not a freely
convertible currency. Under the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control

Regulations and Administration of Settlement and Sales and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for foreign currencies through banks that are
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business. All cash at bank

earns interest at floating daily bank deposit rates.

RBEER - XEEUARESE
B8R 1T & 8 A R 690,541,000 7T
(2019%F © AR®577,183,00070) 15
AR BERERITH - ARBIIER
BHRBBRHER o« RIEPRHINE
BERIEDIMEE B I E M ST INE
BEIRIED - ANEE R BBE Y
EINEEBOIRTHEARBLIRA
SN o FTEIRTTIRSIRE HIRTTE
RAEZBETE ©
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TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

23. 5 K HAbREAT ZIH

2020 2019
2020 20196
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Trade payables (Note i) B 5 R R aE (B EED

— Third parties —%=7" 589,839 317,286
— Related parties (Note 31(d)(ii)) — BB 5 (BI5E 31(d)i)) 168,871 226,197
758,710 543,483
Amounts due to related parties (note ii) FES AR 5 7B (B 5T i) 33,368 702

Amount due to non-controlling shareholders FEAS FEVE AR AR SR TE (M 5% iii)

(note iii) 270,470 261,497
Amount due to a former non-controlling JFEAS BT FEE IR AR SRR IE (M 7Eiv)

shareholder (note iv) 54,423 -
Consideration payables for acquisition of LSt i B/ 2 R A B AT AR (B (P 5T 35)

a subsidiary (Note 35) 57,371 -
Guarantee deposits (note v) REZRS (WiEv) 94,716 339,140
Receipt in advance for rental income (note vi)  FEURTHE U A (Bt 5 vi) 52,875 55914
Temporary receipts from customers (note vii) W R P FIE (M vii) 56,859 51,184
Tender deposits receipts from contractors W B ERe 10,936 858
Accrued payroll et & 6,662 2,927
Other payables and accruals E b e A MBS E A 45,776 49,501
Value-added tax and other tax payables SEE R N E At FE AT AR I8 114,154 9,939

797,610 771,662
1,556,320 1,315,145
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE2020F 1231 HILFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

U]

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

Trade payables mainly represent amounts due to contractors.
Payment to contractors is by instalments according to progress
and agreed milestones. The Group normally retains 5% as

23. B M
(i)

At FE A O (8])

B5ENE IEI;:?ETW—JL?% B
IE o MABEIERMNFIRIEEE
MipEEREO YT - AEE—

retention payment. MBIRB s tERERBE o
As of the end of the Reporting Period, the ageing analysis of trade RERR  EFEMNFREREE
payables based on the date the trade payables were recognised, is R BERER DT QD—I—
as follows:
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREETIT
Within 3 months 3EAA 281,920 191,801
Over 3 months but less than 6 months 3ME A EEBEDR 6 fE A 2,238 786
Over 6 months but less than 12 months 6{E A EEDRI121EA 2,821 8,937
Over 12 months 1218 A8 LA E 471,731 341,959
758,710 543,483
Amounts due to related parties are unsecured, interest-free and (i)  JELTRAES /TAIEFE?ETKTE? ®E
repayable on demand. The details are summarised in Note 31(d)(ii) FEE:}Z%‘ 2 o FHIENRE H?M‘“qt&i%
to the consolidated financial statements. B 5 31(d) (i) gt o
Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders are unsecured, (i) FERNFERBRREFEBERR 2
interest-free and repayable on demand. The details are BREENREE - FERGEUH

summarised in Note 31(d)(ii) to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2020, the amount of RMB54,423,000 due to a
third party, Nanjing San Long Cement Company Limited
(‘Nanjing San Long"), a former non-controlling shareholder of a
subsidiary of the Company is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand. In 2019, the amount due to Nanjing San
Long amounting to RMB52,460,000 was recorded in amounts due
to non-controlling shareholders within trade and other payables.

(iv)

SRR BT EF 31(d) (i) Bt -

M20208E 128310 ENE=H
BR-EKEBREAAR([EER
=8 AREWE R R/ EIEE
B B 3R ) BRI A A R 54,423,000
7‘1 CBEER REREZKE
° R20194F « [EN R = FEFKIA

}\E%524600007EE§\J)\ 2 5 &

B ISR TR A B FE A SRR AR AR R

IR ©

MR A RAT 20204
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

At 31 December 2020, the Group granted exclusive right to sales
agencies for promoting certain completed properties for a period
of time, and received the amount of RMB94,716,000 as guarantee
deposits (2019: RMB339,140,000). The guarantee deposits are
interest-free and will be returned to the sales agencies when the
sale targets have been met as stipulated in the agencies’
agreements or when the agencies’ agreements ended. The
amount is expected to be settled within 12 months.

Receipt in advance for rental income represented the lump sum
payment received from the tenants for lease of car parks. The
amounts are recognised to profit or loss as rental income over the
lease terms. At 31 December 2020, the receipt in advance for
rental income that are expected to be utilised after more than 12
months are RMB49,830,000 (2019: RMB52,869,000).

The amount represents the temporary receipts from the
customers for processing a certificate of property ownership of
the completed properties. The balances are interest-free and will
be paid to the government authorities when the certificates are

23. B M

v)

(vi)

(vii)

'ﬂﬁ ﬁ% /Tj »E

Eézozo¢1zﬂs1 B AEBEMH
ERERTERE —BREANHHEET
ERKMENZEEFR - W WER
AR #94,716000 TIE B IRFBIZ S
(20194 : AR ™ 339,140,0007T) °
REBEZR S BT E - WIRERIER
FATET AR RN ESHE B IRB IR
EipmEmERETHERE - B
SRR 1218 B A& -

FEHEEWABWREFHEERFES
BR—RERR - ZESEREE
HAZEAERARBREER - ©
20200812 A318H  BEAE N B8
NREA%ESANBWAERA S
B AR 49830000 7T (20194F : A
R 52,869,000 7T) °

ERSRIEE SR MEREY X

PRBERBRENTIWEPIE - BF
BHERTEE  UHRZERER

HIRA A BB RRPISA ©

prepared.
24. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 24, HHIEME
2020 2019
2020 F 20194F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ TR AR®ETTT
Contract liabilities arising from contracts EPEHNEENEHEE
with customers 1,684,632 568,928
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE2020F 1231 HILFE

24. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued) 24.

The movements (excluding those arising from increases and decreases
both occurred within the same year) of contract liabilities from contracts
with customers within HKFRS 15 during the year are as follows:

FHEE ()

FR - RBBHMBRSERNE 155KEE
AEFENELENANAENES (T8
ERFENBBAELEE) T

2020 2019
2020 &£ 20194F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TRTE ARBTET

At the beginning of the reporting period TR BT 568,928 345,146
Recognised as revenue R BN (437,716) (297,073)
Recognised as other income upon forfeiture ﬁé/xﬂﬁl&ﬁﬁwt’jﬁﬁﬁqﬁlk - (400)
Receipt in advance TEHR 1,553,420 521,255
At end of the reporting period E@?&%%ﬁiﬁ 1,684,632 568,928

For the year ended 31 December 2020, there are 2 property
development projects obtained the pre-sale permit to commence the
sale of property under construction thereby increasing the amount
receipt in advance.

At 31 December 2020, the contract liabilities that are expected to be
settled after more than 12 months are RMB878,075,000 (2019:
RMB25,473,000).

The amount of transaction price allocated to the performance
obligations that are unsatisfied (or partially unsatisfied) at 31 December
2020 (including the balance of contract liabilities as disclosed above) is

HZE20200F 12 A31BILFEE - 2@EME
F‘aﬂ%’*ﬁlﬁﬁﬂx STEEFFA - LARAEE 3
ErE  {EimEnBURFRIE -

MR2020% 12 A318 - FBEAERZR121E
BEMNNELHEEARAREES78075000
JC (2019 « AR 25473,0007T) °

R2020F 12 A31 B BEEBLHETEN
KET(HEOABIT) MRS EREE
(BREXEBEAGOEBENESR) T ¢

as follows:

2020 2019
2020 20194F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREFT

Expected timing of revenue recognition: Wezs HESR B TE B IS 1 -
Within 1 year TR 871,581 586,171
More than 1 year ZNF 1,410,034 120,590
2,281,615 706,761
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HZE20200F 12 A3 ALFE

25. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 25. HoAtb A 3k
2020 2019
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Bank borrowings RITEK
Secured (note i) BEE(FEED 955,894 190,000
Other borrowings HAb &K
— Third parties —%=7
Secured (note i) B (L) 195,362 21,060
Unsecured (note ii) AR (P i) 47,093 17,199
— Related parties — @ s
Unsecured (note iv) B (B iv) 555,337 103,726
797,792 141,985
Total bank and other borrowings RITREMEFAEEE 1,753,686 331,985
The maturity of the bank borrowings and analysis of the amount due FITERND SR EBIEERE
based on scheduled payment dates set out in the loan agreements are HET NI BN EEESHOT
as follows:
Within one year —&FR 46,667 3,167
In the second year F_F 145,333 31,667
In the third to fifth years, inclusive Fo-FEFERT (BIEEREMT) 763,894 155,166
955,894 190,000
Portion classified as current liabilities NEARBDEBENY (46,667) (3,167)
Non-current portion IEmBIE D 909,227 186,333
The maturity of the other borrowings HERNEBERAT
is as follows:
Within one year —&FR 656,487 124,786
In the second year —F 112,596 -
In the third to fifth years, inclusive F-FEERFT (BIEEREMT) 28,709 17,199
797,792 141,985
Portion classified as current liabilities NEARBDEBENIY (656,487) (124,786)
Non-current portion EmBIE D 141,305 17,199
The total bank and other borrowings RIT M EMEFBENDTWT -
are analysed as follows:
Portion classified as current liabilities NEARBAENIY 703,154 127,953
Non-current portion EREE 1,050,532 204,032
Total bank and other borrowings BITREMERLATE 1,753,686 331,985
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE2020F 1231 HILFE

25. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes:

(iif)

(iv)

The bank borrowings were secured by certain properties under development and
completed properties held for sale with carrying amount of RMB1,145,394,000 (2019:
RMB79,822,000) and RMB119,849,000 (2019: RMB191,955,000) respectively, interest
bearing at rates 7% to 7.64% per annum or RMB Loan rates of 3-5 years (including 5
years) times 115% per annum or the PRC Loan Prime Rate plus 0.15% to 2.15% per
annum, repayable between 2021 to 2025, guaranteed by subsidiaries of the
Company, intermediate holding company of non-controlling shareholder and a non-
controlling shareholder and personal guaranteed by a director of a subsidiary of the
Company.

The secured other borrowing was secured by 15% equity interest in a subsidiary of
the Company, interest bearing at 8% per annum and repayable between 2021 to
2022 (2019: secured by certain properties under development with carrying amount
of RMB68,094,000 and interest bearing at 7.9% per annum).

The amounts due were unsecured, interest bearing at 10% per annum and repayable
between 2022 to 2023.

As at 31 December 2020, the amounts due were unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand except for the amounts due of RMB420,000,000 is interest
bearing at 1% per annum and the amounts due of RMB1,610,000 is interest bearing
at 8% per annum and repayable in 2022 respectively. In 2019, the amount due was
unsecured, interest bearing at 6% per annum and repayable on demand.

The directors estimate the fair value of the Group’s borrowings at 31
December 2020 approximate to their carrying amounts (2019: Nil).

25. RIT M
st -

0}

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

oAt £ 3K ()

RITEFARAEES BB AR 1,145394,000
JL(20194F « AR #79,8220007T) & AR
119,849,000 7L(20194F = AR#191,955,0007T)
WETERTPWERFEHED ERMEE
IR RFEFR 7% E 764% 3B 5F (BIES
F)YNARBE KRN R ILA115% 8 F F| Lk
FTRERZEREMENOISEE2ISENF
MRt B - I FE R 2021 4F F 2025 4 HA R (&
E - BARRMNEBAR - FEEAAY A R
PERR A R RIEERR AR RIER - WA AR T
BRAH —BERREEALR -

BHEMEE A EFRAR R FIHE A B1H15%
F%HE VR4 1R - 3R F F R 8% 5t B K B A 2021
FE20202FHHMER (019F : UEREEAR
AR 68,094,000 TTAIZ FF K 79% 51 B A
FERERYEEEE) -

HEXRSBBEER  RFEFZI0EFE I
FER 2022 FE 2023 FFHARIEE

2020 12 A31H B BB HI 3UE B &K

W REREBRESR  WABAIHREA
R #420,000000 TIRFFE1%5HE - ZEHA

iJHﬁTAIEAEWmM 610,000 7T 3% & FI| % 8% 7
B DRIZER2022FEE - R2019F - B
BIEAGRIE R AT - IR F A E 6% B RER
SKER o

EAzozoiuﬂ 318 - EFMFTASEIE

AR TFEEEETEES

,m)

= (20194 -

MR RA T 20204 )

193



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o e SR I 5T
For the year ended 31 December 2020

HZE20200E 12 A31 BIEEE

26. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT  26. %%
OF FINANCIAL POSITION

& BB IR DL Y BT A58

(@ Current tax assets/(liabilities) @ BPmIsiEER(Afk)
2020 2019
2020 20194F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ T AREETIT
Prepaid CIT TERT TSR 910 11,615
Prepaid LAT TR IR (EL 9,769 -
Current tax assets recognised in the RERE TSR R IR
consolidated statement of financial BNEAF T E E
position 10,679 11,615
Current CIT payable FERTENERE S FRIS TR (24,006) (71,835)
Current LAT payable JE (< BN ER + $ 32 (E (100,099) (21,701)
Current tax liabilities recognised in the RERE IS AR R R TR
consolidated statement of financial JE =i =g = Ry
position (124,105) (93,536)

Provision for LAT has been made pursuant to applicable tax laws
in the PRC. The Group considers the timing of settlement is
dependent on the practice of local tax bureaus. As a result of the
uncertainty of timing of payment of LAT, the provisions have been
recorded as current liabilities as at 31 December 2020 and 2019.

b 3B B AR T AR BE R B E A A
AR - ANEBRAEERH
BURRH T RIS BRI ERIBN © R
RIS ER AN RSREOTEE
M 20205 K 2019F12 8318
THIRERBEE WS AREE

& o

(b) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised (b) CHEZBEEBREZE (A)
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T T ARETIT
Deferred tax assets recognised on the ?(:l\ B FE AR S0 3R FE R A
consolidated statement of financial TR IEE =
position 34,969 39,968
Deferred tax liabilities recognised on the RERE TR R IER
consolidated statement of financial EEHIAAE
position (509,526) (512,344)
(474,557) (472,376)
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INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

26.

(b)

26. LEE ISR RN FTER (48)

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised (Continued) b CHEZETBEEE (AF)
(%)
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised in FRRLEA B R R R AR IE
the consolidated statement of financial position and the BIBEE,/(BE)AKRIS REH
movements during the year are as follows: m
Deferred tax assets Deferred tax liabilities
BEREEE BEREEE
Revaluation
Temporary of financial
differences Revaluation Revaluation Revaluation assets at
arising Other of arising from of fairvalue Net
fromLAT  temporary  investment Unused business LAT  investment through  deferred tax
provision  differences property  taxlosses combination  provision property profit or loss liabilities
RifEEs ROTEFA
BEmEL Bt RE ABA  EERAH 1 RE BENER  BEHA
WEREE  BEEE  MXER RERR MELMER BENEE  NXER HENER  AEFR
RMB1000 RMB000 RMB1000 RMB1000 RMBI000 RMB000 RMB1000 RMB1000 RMBI000
ARETT  ARBTT ARBTT ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETR
(Note ) (Note i) (Note ) (Noteiii)
(M) (M) () (W)
At1 January 2019 R9E1R18 144212 14728 - 39,544 (250573) (262758) (7937) (1672) (324450)
Credited/(charged) toprofitorloss 3T A/ (41 &8 ) 1% (14421 (7.38) 1438 (3356) 1032 3640 45 1672 (147920)
At31December 2019 R2019812531A - 7,342 1,438 31,188 (249,541) (259,118) (3,685) - (472,376)
Credited/(charged)toprofit 3T A/ (IR E) B3
orloss 2,864 (1,156) 97 (6,804) 5894 (3,434) 358 - (2181)
At31December 2020 R20208125318 2,864 6,186 1,535 24,384 (243,647) (262,552) (3,327) = (474,557)
Notes: B3

(0]

(iii)

“Temporary differences arising from LAT provision” represents deferred tax
assets recognised on the timing differences for the amount of LAT provision
made for property projects.

In recognising and measuring of deferred tax assets in respect of the Group's
subsidiaries which suffered losses in current or preceding period,
management considered the projected future taxable income of these
subsidiaries. Accordingly, the Group has recognised deferred tax assets of
RMB24,384,000 and RMB31,188,000 as at 31 December 2020 and 2019
respectively as the Group estimates that these subsidiaries have properties
development projects which are probable to generate sufficient future
taxable profits to support their utilisation.

“LAT provision” in the deferred tax liability represents the amounts of LAT
recognised as an identifiable liability from the acquisition of subsidiaries.

The amount represents the deferred tax liability arising revaluation of assets
upon acquisition of Sanya Fenghuang Xincheng in 2008, after considered the
effect of item (iii) above which are tax deductible for CIT purpose.

(0]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

[ b 352 {758 35 8 1 25 AR RO R B 22
B EMMEEE (E LB AT
BFRIRRE A2 RERNELERAE
BEo

PR R E A S BN AN HIR sk - 5
BRI EENHEARNELEHREBEE
ERN EREEEZRZEMBARNE
IR ERRUCA o Bt - ARAE
B ZEMBARNEEREE
B FE R BEERIS B S R R SR B
X B - ANEE D BN 2020F &
2019 12 A31 BHERIELEHRBEEAEA
R % 24,384,000 7T K A R % 31,188,000
5T o

RIEHIBEEAR [ HIREREE]
BUWEME AR EEHR R #5 &
RO LHIEEHRDHE -

SEIE 2008 FUEE = B EFMEE
EEREANEEHEEE(KEERE
| 3TE i) IE??Ei%ﬁﬁ s B
HRHIEEENTE) -

MR A RAT 20204
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26. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT  26. %6&
OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised

(0

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in Note 2.4 to
the consolidated financial statements, the Group has not
recognised deferred tax assets in respect of unused tax losses of
RMB16,004,000 and RMB31,604,000 as at 31 December 2020 and
2019 respectively. The directors consider it is not probable that

future taxable profits against which the losses can be utilised will

be available from these subsidiaries.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the

unrecognised tax losses at the end of the reporting period would

expire in the following years:

IR IR PR 1 I AR (48

A T W2 0% W 6 I
BRIBGZE T EREMF24FTEH
ST B E - 20205 KX 20194F 12
A31 8 AEEEARBEARBARE
518 Bl A B #16,004,000 7 & A
R # 31,604,000 L FE R IR FE B T8 &
E--BEERE  EIRAEARR
JERBREF AR BEZEW B AR A
HEBRIEIRE -

RIBEEL LT BENERER N
B NBE RN KRR ERE R
B THIFE &

2020 2019

2020 20194

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥ T AREETIT

Tax losses without expiration 4 iz BARE A 5 15 B 18 1,043 610
Tax losses expiring in: RTIFEfEmm T iSEE

2020 2020 F - 541

2021 2021 F 222 249

2022 2022 367 22,662

2023 2023 F 208 556

2024 2024 F 6,923 6,986

2025 2025 F 7,241 -

16,004 31,604

The tax losses for the Hong Kong subsidiaries do not expire under

current Hong Kong tax legislation.
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26.

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

(d)

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

According to the PRC CIT Law and its related regulations, the
Group is subject to a withholding tax at 10%, unless reduced by
tax treaties or arrangements, for dividends distributed by a PRC
enterprise to its immediate holding company outside the PRC for
earnings generated beginning on 1 January 2008. Undistributed
earnings generated prior to 1 January 2008 are exempt from such
withholding tax. According to the China-HK Tax Arrangement and
its relevant regulations, a qualified Hong Kong tax resident which
is the “beneficial owner” and holds 25% or more of a PRC
enterprise is entitled to a reduced withholding rate of 5%.

Deferred tax liabilities of RMB50,154,000 (2019: RMB49,501,700)
were not recognised in respect of the 10% PRC dividend
withholding tax that would be payable on the distribution of
retained profits of RMB501,540,000 as at 31 December 2020 (2019:
RMB495,017,000) in respect of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC
as the Company controls the dividend policy of these subsidiaries
and it was determined that these profits would not be distributed
in the foreseeable future.

27. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(@)

(b)

26. 46

(d)

BB IR LR A0 BT A5 (468)

A T W2 % ik 56 JE £
RIEFRBE(REMERE) R EARE
&0 g ECEREMRFEE
SNEY B R RAR A R BL2008 FF 1 A1
ARIAE £ EFIFTH IR E
= REBER10% T RN
B BRIERBBE L HE T IA
e MmmR2008F1 A1BAEAE
B AR D R E T BER R A RETE
M - RIBFFPEEFTENFR T HE
REBEER SRIExEEA]
BB —M P B2 25% A 4
ENEEREAENBERESE %
R R TR o

M2020F12 A31H - AEBE K
MASBEEFEBEAMB AR DE
RS ) A R ¥ 501,540,00070(2019
F: AR®495017,0007T ) FEELH
109 F5 2 7R B 7B 0 7 FE R R RE 7 18
B AEMRBEEAEARE
50,154,0007C(2019%F 1 A R #§
49,501,7007T) ° &&= AR AN QA EHE
HIZ M B QR RRFEGR - WRE
ERTER R TG EZ R BETT
AL o

27. JBA - bt KBS

Dividends (@ BE
The board of directors does not recommend the distribution of a EEgUTEZREEZE2020F
final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil). 12431 BIEFE 2 RAKRE (2019
Fom)o
Share capital (b) A
2020 2019
2020 20194F
Number Number

of shares RMB’000 of shares RMB'000

ROBE ARBTR KihgE ARBFT
Issued and fully paid: EETREHATE
At 1 January and 31 December  #1 A1HBX12A31H 300,000,000 2,585 300,000,000 2,585

WEERAR AW 2020 % QY7
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27. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

m$

198

(0

Nature and purpose of reserves

(@

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Share premium

Share premium represents the difference between the total
amount of the par value of shares issued and the amount of
the net proceeds received from the public offering in 2016.
Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share
premium account of the Company is distributable to the
shareholders of the Company provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company would be in a position to pay off
its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Other reserve

Other reserve was created as a result of the transactions
with the Ultimate Controlling Shareholder in his capacity as
equity holder under reorganisation to rationalise the Group
structure in preparation for the initial listing of the
Company's shares on the Stock Exchange in 2016.

Transactions with non-controlling interests reserve

Transactions with non-controlling interests reserve has been
set up and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies adopted for the changes in the Group’s ownership
interest in a subsidiary which do not result in change in
control as set out in Note 2.4 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Statutory surplus reserve

According to the PRC Company Law, the PRC subsidiaries of
the Group (excluding foreign investment enterprises) are
required to transfer 10% of their profit after taxation, as
determined under the PRC Accounting Regulations, to the
statutory surplus reserve until the reserve balance reaches
50% of their registered capital.

The transfer to this reserve must be made before
distribution of a dividend to shareholders.
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27. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(0

(d)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(iv) Statutory surplus reserve (Continued)

Statutory reserve fund can be used to cover previous years'
losses, if any, and may be converted into share capital by
the issue of new shares to shareholders in proportion to
their existing shareholdings or by increasing the par value
of the shares currently held by them, provided that the
balance after such issue is not less than 25% of the
registered capital.

(v) Exchangereserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of the Company and foreign operations having
functional currencies other than RMB. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies set out in
Note 2.4 to the consolidated financial statements.

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in
order to fund its property development projects, provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholders
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings
and the advantages and securities afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions.

There was no externally imposed capital requirements on the
Group's subsidiaries in 2020 and 2019.

27. A - fEfE RS ()

(0

(d

fits 5 o kR B R 3% ()
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28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate, currency and equity price risks

P
o

200

arises in the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group's

exposure to these risks and the financial risk management policies and

practices used by the Group to manage these risks are described below.

(@)

Credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets on the consolidated
statement of financial position represents the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk on these financial assets.

Trade receivables

The Group closely monitors the collection payments from
customers in accordance with payment schedule agreed with
customers and follow up action is taken to recover overdue debts,
if any. The Group's trade receivables relate to a certain number of
diversified customers, there is no significant concentration of
credit risk.

The Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECL for
trade receivables and recognises a loss allowance based on
lifetime ECL at each reporting date. In estimating the ECL, the
Group has taken into account the historical actual credit loss
experience over the past three years and available press
information, adjusted for forward-looking factors that are specific
to the debtors and general economic conditions of the industry in
which the counterparties operate, in estimating the probability of
default of these financial assets, as well as the loss upon default in
each case. The directors of the Company consider the ECL of these
financial assets to be insignificant after taking into account the
credit quality and repayment history of the counterparties.

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the
consolidated financial statements, represents the Group's
exposure to credit risk. The management considers the ECL of
trade receivable to be insignificant so that no significant
impairment loss was recognised during the year.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in Note 20
to the consolidated financial statements.
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28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
(Continued)

(@)

Credit risk (Continued)
Restricted cash and bank balances

Substantially all of the Group's pledged bank deposits and bank
balances were deposited in creditworthy global banks and
licensed financial institutions in the PRC, which management
considers they are without significant credit risks.

Financial guarantee contracts issued

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to financial
guarantees provided by the Group is arising from the amount of
contingent liabilities in relation to financial guarantees issued by
the Group as disclosed in Note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements. The management considers the credit risk exposure
to financial guarantees provided to property purchasers is limited
because the mortgage loan granted to the property buyers are
secured by the properties and the market prices of the properties
are higher than the guaranteed amounts.

Other receivables — third parties

The management determines that certain other receivables from
third parties are credit-impaired after taken into account the age
of these balances and the past settlement history of these parties.
An impairment loss in aggregate of RMB11,766,000 (2019:
RMB10,219,000) was made in respect of these balances as a result
of the ECL assessment conducted by the management of the
Company. The movements of accumulated impairment losses on
these balances are detailed in Note 20(b) to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Company considers that the remaining other receivables from
third parties as at 31 December 2020 have low credit risk based on
these parties’ strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term and low risk of default. In estimating
the ECL and whether these balances are credit-impaired, the
Company has taken into account the historical actual credit loss
experience over the past 3 years and the financial position of
respective parties by reference to, among others, their
management accounts, adjusted for forward-looking factors, in
estimating the probability of default, as well as the loss upon
default. The management of the Company considers the ECL of
these balances to be insignificant so no loss allowance was
recognised in this respect.
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28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
(Continued)

202

(@

Credit risk (Continued)
Loan to third parties

The Group performs ECL assessment on loan to third parties based
on lifetime ECL.

In estimating the ECL and in determining whether there is a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group
taken into account the financial capacity of the third parties,
adjusted for forward-looking factors that are specific to the
debtors and general economic conditions of the industry in which
the third parties operate, in estimating the probability of default of
these financial assets, as well as the loss upon default. The
management of the Company considers the ECL of the loan to
third parties to be insignificant.

Loan to/amount due from associates

The Group performs ECL assessment on loan to/amount due from
associates based on lifetime ECL.

In estimating the ECL and in determining whether there is a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group
taken into account the financial position of the associates by
reference to the management accounts, adjusted for forward-
looking factors that are specific to the debtors and general
economic conditions of the industry in which the associates
operate, in estimating the probability of default of these financial
assets, as well as the loss upon default. The management of the
Company considers the ECL of the loan to/amount due from the
associates to be insignificant after taking into account the financial
position and credit quality of the associates.

Loan to/amount due from a related party and non-
controlling shareholders

The Group considers that loan to/amount due from a related party
and non-controlling shareholders have low credit risk based on
the borrowers’ strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term and low risk of default. Impairment on
loan to/amount due from a related party and non-controlling
shareholders measured on 12-month ECL and reflects the short
maturities of the exposures.
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28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
(Continued)

(@

Credit risk (Continued)

Loan to/amount due from a related party and non-
controlling shareholders (Continued)

In estimating the ECL and in determining whether there is a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition and
whether the financial asset is credit-impaired, the Group has taken
into account the historical actual credit loss experience over the
past 3 years and the financial position of the counterparties by
reference to, among others, their management or audited
accounts and available press information, adjusted for forward-
looking factors that are specific to the debtors and general
economic conditions of the industry in which the counterparties
operate, in estimating the probability of default of these financial
assets, as well as the loss upon default in each case. The
management of the Company considers the ECL of these financial
assets to be insignificant after taking into account the financial
position and credit quality of the counterparties.

There was no change in the estimation techniques or significant
assumptions made during the year.

Amount due from a co-operation partner

The Group performs ECL assessment on amount due from a co-
operation partner based on lifetime ECL.

In estimating the ECL and in determining whether there is a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group
taken into account the financial capacity of the co-operation
partner, adjusted for forward-looking factors that are specific to
the debtors and general economic conditions of the industry in
which the co-operation partner operates, in estimating the
probability of default of these financial assets, as well as the loss
upon default. The management of the Company considers the
credit risk exposure to the amount due is limited based on the
financial capacity of the co-operation partner.
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28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
(Continued)

204

The guarantee deposit is refundable upon the completion of the
development and sales of the properties project. The
management of the Company considers the credit risk exposure
to the guarantee deposit is limited based on the non-controlling
shareholder’s strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations and low risk of default. In estimating the ECL and in
determining whether there is significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, the Group taking into account the
financial capacity of the non-controlling shareholder, adjusted for
forward-looking factors that are specific to the non-controlling
shareholder and general economic conditions of the industry in
which the non-controlling shareholder operates, in estimating the
probability of default of the guarantee deposit, as well as the loss
upon default. The management of the Company considers the
ECL of the guarantee deposit to be insignificant because it is
secured by the equity interests in Guangxi Minggui attributable to

(@ Credit risk (Continued)
Guarantee deposit
the non-controlling shareholder.
(b) Liquidity risk

The Group’s management reviews the liquidity position of the
Group on an ongoing basis, including review of the expected cash
inflows and outflows, sale/pre-sale results of respective property
projects and the progress of the planned property development
projects in order to monitor the Group's liquidity requirements in
the short and longer terms.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE 28. B JE b B RN TAE (48)
(Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) WEE & EBE ()
Details of maturity analysis for financial liabilities are summarised SRBEMEIEHB MBI
as follows: T
As at 31 December 2020 72020512831 H
Carrying  Contractual Within
amount cash flow 1year 1-2 years 2-5years

REE AHRER  —FUR —EWE  ZEEfF
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTRE AR®TR AR¥TR AR®TR ARMT:R

Trade payables B I ENTE 758,710 758,710 758,710 = =
Other payables (excluded HipENA B (T EE

receiptsinadvance forrental  FEURFAEILA
income, accrued payrolland ~ JEETEF S &

other tax payables) Hib e HiE) 623,919 625,648 625,648 = =

Lease liabilities HEEE 1,049 1,140 1,140 - -

Bank and other borrowings PITREMER 1,753,686 1,948,723 785,846 301,420 861,457

As at 31 December 2020 R2020F12A31R 3,137,364 3,334,221 2,171,344 301,420 861,457
As at 31 December 2019 7A2019%F12A31H

Carrying Contractual Within

amount cash flow 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years

BEHE AOReR —FUR —E@MF “ERF

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AREBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETR ARETR

Trade payables 25 ENTE 543483 543483 543483 - -
Other payables (excluded HiEAZIE(TEE

receiptsinadvance forrental  FEURFREIA
income, accrued payrolland ~ EEEH SR

other tax payables) HiEMTIE) 702,882 702,882 702,882 - -
Lease liabilities MEARE 4291 4546 1881 1881 784
Bank and other borrowings BITREMER 331,985 372,804 147,980 43,300 181,524
As at 31 December 2019 R2019F12A31H 1,582,641 1,623,715 1,396,226 45,181 182,308
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28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
(Continued)

206

(o

(d

Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rates risk arises primarily from restricted cash,
cash and cash equivalents and bank and other borrowings.
Restricted cash, cash and cash equivalents and bank and other
borrowings with floating interest rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk. For bank and other borrowings, the Group’s
policy is to manage its interest cost using a mix of fixed and
floating rate debts, monitor closely its interest rate exposure and
the level of fixed rate and floating rate borrowings in consideration
of economic atmosphere and the strategies of the Group.

At the end of the reporting period, if interest rates had been 100
(2019: 100) basis point higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s profits for the year and retained profits
would increase/decrease by RMB567,000 (2019: loss for the year
and accumulated losses would decrease/increase by
RMBS5,156,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming that
the change in interest rates had occurred throughout the year and
had been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for all
financial instruments in existence during the year. The 100 (2019:
100) basis point increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest rates over
the period until the next annual end of the reporting period.

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
transactions which give rise to payables that are denominated in a
foreign currency, i.e. a currency other than the functional currency
of the entity to which the transactions relate. Almost all the
Group's operating activities are carried out in the PRC with most of
the transactions denominated in RMB. Exposures to currency
exchange rates arise from certain of the Group's cash and cash
equivalents and trade and other payables which are denominated
in HKD and USS$. The Group does not use derivative financial
instruments to hedge its foreign currency risk. The Group reviews
its foreign currency exposures regularly and consider no significant
exposure on its foreign exchange risk.
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28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
(Continued)

(d)

Currency risk (Continued)

The following table details the Group's exposure at the end of the
reporting period to currency risk arising from recognised assets or
liabilities denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate. For presentation
purposes, the amounts of the exposure are shown in RMB,
translated using the spot rate at the year end date. Differences
resulting from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations into the Group’s presentation currency are excluded.

28. PSR BRAE HE KN T (48)

(d)

2020
2020 £

HKD
BT

£ W JE b (4
TRAFDNEERBRERPAT
RAEREERINGEEE ZINME
KEHEMCDHREEXABIEDN
BERERE - BEREH R R
MAREIR  XERFRER
BN EARE RIS o RIE SN SERE ) B
BHRRBENAEE2I|EE S|
HZBENEREEN

2019
20194
us$ HKD
ES BT

uss
e

Expressed in RMB'000
Trade and other payables

THBEURMARE TR
B 5 N E R TR

(56,549)

(19,575) (57,308) (20,240)

Sensitivity analysis

The foreign currency sensitivity analysis is calculated based on the
major net foreign currency exposure of the Group as at the end of
the reporting period, assuming 5% (2019: 5%) shift of RMB against
HKD and USS.

Results from a 5% (2019: 5%) strengthening of the RMB against
HKD and USS would decrease the Group's profit after tax and
retained profits as at 31 December 2020 by approximately
RMB1,627,000 (2019: increase the Group’s loss after tax and
accumulated losses by approximately RMB1,391,000). A 5% (2019:
59%) weakening of the RMB against HKD and US$ as at the same
dates would have had the equal but opposite effect.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign
exchange rates had been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk at the end of the reporting period, including inter-
company payables and receivables within the Group which are
denominated in a currency other than the functional currencies of
the lender or the borrower. The analysis excludes differences that
would result from the translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations into the Group’s presentation currency. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2019.

BURE DT
BREEARE B TTEB)5%(20194F -
5%) « INEEBURRE ST TR AR &
BRRERARNEEINERRFE
R2020F 128318 MARE L
B IT M FETTFHES%(20194F © 5%) -
RE BRI BB &R ) R AR B 5 7 i
A # AN R#51,627,000 7TT(20194F -
REERGRE&EERRFTEIEE
I AR E1391,0007T) R E
AE - WARBRATRETRE
5% (20194F : 5%) + R E £ RE
WARSZ -

2R E DT TH R AR NG B Ry
BERESMTEASEMFNRE
BemTAEmMSAERNIREIR
ESZINERME - BIEASEERIL
ERASBERANNEEEEINE
K& ETE R 2 B B FE 15 518 K IR
I8 o O MTHERR T BN ERS R B
HHRERBERNAEEZ S mS)
FERYZEEE ° 2019 F T DI Ry EAE
R o
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28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
(Continued)

(e)

®

208

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to price risks arising from investments held
under financial asset at FVPL amounted to RMB5,654,000 (2019:
RMB3,573,000). The Group does not actively trade these
investments. The management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with different risks and
different return profiles. No sensitivity analysis is prepared for the
price risk as the directors of the Company considered that the
Group is not subject to significant amount of risk for both years.

Fair value measurement

The following table presents the fair value of the Group's financial
instruments measured at the end of the reporting period on a
recurring basis, categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level into
which a fair value measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance of the inputs used
in the valuation technique as follows:

—  Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1
inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
Group can access at the measurement date.

—  Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet
Level 1, and not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for which

market data are not available.

—  Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant

unobservable inputs.
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28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE 28. B JE b B RN TAE (48)
(Continued)

(f  Fair value measurement (Continued) H  A°FEEHE ()
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B Eo& E=H At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETRE ARBTT ARETRT ARBTET

As at 31 December 2020 7202012 H31H
Financial assets at FVPL BRAFEFTAEBEN

SREE

Unlisted equity securities IEETIRARE S - 1,654 - 1,654

Structured deposits ERB TR - 4,000 - 4,000
As at 31 December 2019 7201912 4318
Financial assets at FVPL BAFEFABEN

SREE

Unlisted equity securities FE_E AR AR E S - 1,773 - 1,773

Structured deposits HERMET R - 1,800 - 1,800
During the year ended 31 December 2020, there were no transfers REZE20200F 128318 IEFE -
between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements and no NEEAEEE B RE_H2M
transfers into and out of Level 3 fair value measurements. BEER  NEATEFEEASE

—RNEE = RED -

Description of the valuation techniques and inputs used in E-_HNFEFEERAZAERM
Level 2 fair value measurement PN
Unlisted equity securities FF_E TR GE
The fair value of the unlisted equity securities is evaluated by the FELTRAFEZ A FEREER
directors with reference to latest financial statements of the EZWIRE R 2 &SRR M IEST
investee. fd o
Structured deposits BEMEFH
The fair value of the structured deposits is evaluated by the EEMERCATTERESLE N
directors which determined by reference to recent market A5 S MmIERE ©

transaction.
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0%

30.

210

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE COMMITMENTS 29. BB K
Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2020 not provided RATERERAR2020F 12 A31 HEE
for in consolidated financial statements were as follows: Y EREENT
2020 2019
2020 & 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ TR ARET T
Contracted but not provided for BRI HE R B 1,259,380 825,776
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES/GUARANTEES ISSUED 30. EURE TG

Guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities

The Group provided guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities granted
by certain banks in connection with the mortgage loans entered into by
purchasers of the Group's properties. Pursuant to the terms of the
guarantees, if there is default of the mortgage payments by these
purchasers, the Group is responsible to repay the outstanding mortgage
loans together with any accrued interest and penalty owned by the
defaulted purchasers to the banks. The Group’s guarantee period
commences from the dates of grant of the relevant mortgage loans and
ends upon the earlier of the bank receiving the required evidence of
mortgage over the relevant property in favour of the bank and the full
settlement of mortgage loans by the buyer. The maximum amount of
guarantees given to banks for mortgage facilities granted to the
purchasers of the Group's properties at the end of the reporting period
was RMB753,844,000 (2019: RMB637,316,000).

The directors consider that it is not probable that the Group will sustain
a loss under these guarantees as during the periods under guarantees,
the Group can take over the ownerships of the related properties and
sell the properties to recover any amounts paid by the Group to the
banks. The directors also consider that the fair market value of the
underlying properties is able to cover the outstanding mortgage loans
guaranteed by the Group in the event the purchasers default payments
to the banks. In addition, the Group has not encountered any incidents
of default in payment of mortgage by the purchasers since 2017, the
directors consider that the likelihood of default of payments by the
purchasers is minimal and therefore the financial guarantee measured at
fair value is immaterial.

The Group has not recognised any deferred income in respect of these
guarantees as its fair value is considered to be minimal by the directors.
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31. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the related party information disclosed elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements of the Group, the Group entered into
the following significant related party transactions during the year ended
31 December 2020.

(@ Name and relationship with related parties/connected
parties

During the year ended 31 December 2020, transactions with the
following parties were considered as related party transactions:

. BEREATT 5 KB AL S

BRAKEGRE VB RREMIED WERN
BARE T BRI - AERBEBEE 2020512 A
MNALFERIIATEABB AR S -

@ R 7 TR T % B
7 /BT W B 4R

HE200F 128318 IEFE
UTEFHNRGHWREEE S Q

v

5
Name of party Relationship with the Group
RS A8 BEALBHBR
Yeung Man Ultimate Controlling Shareholder
158 B AP RR AR 3R

Nanjing Huizhi Construction Installation Engineering Co., Ltd.
(‘Nanjing Huizhi")
AREERELETIRARAR(AREE])

Nanjing Zhonghui Construction Engineering Co., Ltd.
("Nanjing Zhonghui Construction”)

ARPEZETRERAR((ARHPEEE])

Nanjing Diken Engineering Design Consultancy Co., Ltd.
(‘Nanjing Diken")
MArGEERTRERABAERAR ((FHUAR])

Nanjing Hengjida Engineering Design Consultancy
Company Limited ("Nanjing Hengjida")
ARELEIRRHEAGRAR ((ARELE])

Lianyungang Hui Neng Foundation Construction
Engineering Co,, Ltd. (‘Lianyungang Hui Neng")
EEEEREARERTIIEARAR (TEEBERE])

Nanjing Huiyao Decoration Construction Co., Ltd.
("Nanjing Huiyao")
AR EIRE A ((FRER])

Leshan Huizhi Technology Development Co.,, Ltd.
(‘Leshan Huizhi")
L BENRERERAR ([#LEE])

Entity controlled by the Ultimate Controlling
Shareholder
RIEZERBRRIEHENE R

Entity controlled by the Ultimate Controlling
Shareholder
REERRRERINE R

Entity controlled by the Ultimate Controlling
Shareholder
R IRRAE S B e

Entity controlled by the Ultimate Controlling
Shareholder
RIEZERBRRIEHEOE R

Entity controlled by the Ultimate Controlling
Shareholder
REERRRERINE R

Associate of a group controlled by the Ultimate
Controlling Shareholder

R B AR 4 ASU A SR 1) ) B2 B O Bt 2 1 )

Entity controlled by the Ultimate Controlling
Shareholder
RIEZERBRRIEHEOE R
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31.

212

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(@)

Name and relationship with related parties/connected

parties (Continued)

Name of party
S A

. EREATT A 5 KB AL 5 ()

@) R T7 TR T % B T
i /R T3 B IR 4R (%)

Relationship with the Group
BEALBEMBE

Zhonghui (Jiangsu) Decoration Park Engineering Company Limited

(“Zhonghui (Jiangsu)”)

hREOIF) RHEMRTRER AR ([HECIHK) )

Nanjing San Long

Fm=RE
Non-controlling Shareholder A
FEFERRAR R A

Non-controlling Shareholder B

FEFER AR B

Chung Wai (Hong Kong) Investment Construction
Company Limited ("Chung Wai (Hong Kong)")
TE(BEB)REERBERAF((HE(EHR)])

Zhou Li

)

b

Shenzhen Aolan
YR EE

hEERERCRYIDERAF (FEEZH)

rEERZERCRYIDBRATD((HESE])

ROITRBEXERAR (EITRE

ROITRBEXERAR ([RIWRE])

Zhonghui Investment North America Corp.
(“Zhonghui Investment”)

Zhonghui Investment North America Corp.

([Zhonghui Investment | )
PRERFEER (BM) BRAR (PRER)

TREREERMZ(EMNBERAR(HRER])

HAILAN HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Entity controlled by the Ultimate Controlling
Shareholder
RIEERBRRIEHINE R

N/A
(2019: Non-controlling shareholder of
a subsidiary)
T iEA
(20194F : —FEIM B 2 A1HI FEFERRAR )

Non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary

—RHIE A IR

Non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary

L IENGIES e

Entity controlled by the Ultimate Controlling
Shareholder
R ICRAE B B B

Executive director and Chief executive
officer of the Group

AEBARITEFRITRAER

Associate
i .*_/\. /N j

Entity controlled by the Executive director and
Chief executive officer

HITESRITBAEEIEHNER

Non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary

— B A B FRE R

Entity controlled by the Ultimate Controlling
Shareholder
R IRRAEH B e

Entity controlled by the Ultimate Controlling
Shareholder
E—ZQTIHXHXﬁTI%‘JE@E
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31.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND

A B R M

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(@

Name and relationship with related parties/connected

parties (Continued)

Name of party

L oyaey

31. KRBT 5 MBS o) (K8)

@ R T7 T T 4 R % B T
i /R T3 v IR 4% (%)

Relationship with the Group
BEALBERBERE

Hunan Jinzhong Property Investment Group Co., Ltd.

(‘Hunan Jingzhong")

Hunan Jinzhong Property Investment Group Co,, Ltd.

('Hunan Jingzhong |)
ARBEERMERBAERAR (BERR
ARBEERMEREERAR (HSEZR])
AR RERERARAA (BRETH")

AR EREEERER AR ([RERES])

EREEHMRERRERERECAT (BEEER
EREEHTRERREEEREEAR(TEAER])

ARSI EBRAR (RYIEEH"
A REBRAR (DRINEH])

FREX(BM)BRAF (HREXR)
RREX(EMNERAR(THERER])
BEENEXEEERAT (HREN
BREMEXERBRAR ((HEEY]))

ERESETRERERERAR (EEER
ERESEmERERERAR((EEES])

Guangxi Runlang

EFEER

Guangxi Hailan
BErEE

BMIRXZEBRAE (RERE"
PN REZEERAB ([ RERE])
CSM Capital LLC (“CSM")

CSM Capital LLC ([€SM )

ERXRREEXERAR (BAXBRE
ERXAREEXERAR((EAXREBRE))

Holding entity of non-controlling shareholder of
a subsidiary

— B R B SRR R R AR A B B8

Entity controlled by the Ultimate Controlling
Shareholder
REZERBCRIEH N E R

Entity controlled by the Ultimate Controlling
Shareholder
BRI R AE FIl ) H 58

Non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary

— P 8 X B SR AR A IR

Non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary

— P 8 X B SR AR A IR

Non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary

— P 8 X B SR AR A IR

Non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary

— P 8 X B SR AR A IR

Non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary

— P 8 X B SR AR A IR

Associate
NG

Associate
NG

Non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary

— P 8 X B SR AR AR

Non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary

— P 8 X B SR AR AR

Non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary

— P 8 X B SR AR AR
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31. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

31. FEORBAM T2 o I B sE

52 o (#8)

(b) Key management personnel remuneration (b) FEEMMABHM
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, REBFTEEFEASHHM(BIEM
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors and certain of ZAEMBHRERMF 10BN RF]

the highest paid employees as disclosed in Note 10 to the

EEhETREFMEEX NS

consolidated financial statements, is as follows: )R -
2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
Wages, salaries and other benefits ITE  HaehEMER 7,993 7,640
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RKEF B R 100 305
8,093 7,945

The above remuneration to key management personnel is
included in “staff costs” (Note 8 to the consolidated financial

BN TEIRZERABNMEH
RIBIRA] (5REMBERERME

statements). 8) °
(c) Transactions with related parties/connected parties (© SEBHBETr B 5 W 3E 5
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T ARETIT
Construction and consultancy T2 R AR (MO 5E )
services (Note (i) 96,056 124,520
Repayment of lease liabilities (Note (ii)) BEMEA®E (M) 1,864 1,098
Corporate management fee income NalEEEIA (B i)
(Note (iii)) 1,394 536

214
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31. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) Transactions with related parties/connected parties
(Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Construction and consultancy services

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
received construction and consultancy services from the
following related parties:

. BRI 5 KBRS S ()

(0

(i)

S WG T3, TR L W 2R B ()

IRERERRE
HZE2020F12A31HILFE -
AEEBQ T BEETEST
RN R RTS

2020 2019
2020 F 20194

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARETIT

Nanjing Huizhi HAREY 64,751 124,520
Zhonghui (Jiangsu) FE(ILE) 31,305 -
96,056 124,520

The above transactions between the Group and its related
parties mainly comprised construction services in relation to
earthmoving, scenery design and engineering on the
Group's properties under development from construction
companies, which are controlled by the Ultimate
Controlling Shareholder. The related party transactions also
constitute continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Repayment of lease liabilities

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
rented a premise from the following related party:

(ii)

LA EARSEBEEEREE MR
ST ERRBREQATPEASE
EEEPYERHET T
2 SERFARIERED
TR ZEREEQG I
XA IEIR IR AT o B8
RS IMEK T RIS
UAERTEMFBEBERS °

HEHEEE

HZE2020F 12831 BHILFE -
AEER T EESEEY
E

2020 2019

2020 20194

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARMTRT ARBTT

Chung Wai (Hong Kong) FEEBD) 1,864 1,098

The related party transaction also constitutes continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

BB R S INEK B AR Al
FUNERTHHFEBRER
%o

MR A RAT 20204
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31. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 31. HEKBAW 385 M BRHAL 5 (4)

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) Transactions with related parties/connected parties
(Continued)
(iii) Corporate management fee income
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
provided corporate management services to the following
related parties:

N

(c)  SBHBHTT BT W22 5 (48)

(iii)

NREBERA
HZE2020F 12831 HIEFE -
AEBE R T EEFRER
RAIE IR -

2020 2019
2020 F 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRE ARETT

Chung Wai (Hong Kong) FEES) 911 536
Zhonghui Investment Zhonghui Investment 483 -
1,394 536

The related party transactions also constitute continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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31. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(d) Balances with related parties/connected parties/
non-controlling shareholders/associates

(i)

. BEKBAW T3S 5 B AS  (4)

(d)

S R Wk 5B 5 e I M

K/Eﬁﬁﬁ’"\jﬁﬁn‘nﬁ%

Amounts due from connected parties/non-controlling (i) FEWEEER FERIRR
shareholders/associates ENTFIE
Maximum
balance during
the year 2020 2019
FRRDAEER 2020 % 20194
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
AREFT AR®T R ARETT
Non-trade related: FEE S
Non-controlling shareholders FEFERS A B
Non-controlling Shareholder A FEIRARAR SR A
(Note 20 (iv)) (BFEE 20 (iv) 176 164 176
Non-controlling Shareholder B FEFERAR R B
(Note 20 (iv)) (B3E 20 (v) 3513 3,277 3513
ERES EREES
(Note 20 (xi)) (B 3E 20 (xi) 195,000 195,000 -
BAXBEE BAXEEE
(Note 20 (vi)) (P& 20 (vi)) 44,414 44,414 -
Associates /NS
Shenzhen Aolan (Note 15) RN BEE (B3 15) 104,996 26,551 104,996
Guangxi Runlang (Note 15) BEFER (i 15) 65,681 65,681 -
Guangxi Hailan (Note 15) BEFEEE (Mt 15) 20,293 20,293 -
Connected party BT
R EER (Note 20 (v)) R &R (M 5E20(v)) 500 500 -
355,880 108,685
The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and repayable EWRFEBEER 2B R
on demand except for the amounts due from non- JEEREERE - WRIKSEER
controlling Shareholder A and non-controlling Shareholder BR AR A R FE1E AR AR 3R B 3R B A
B are secured by an equity interest in the subsidiary of the RATEIME R B R EER
Company and repayable in 2029, the amounts due from /& A AR 2020 F (B8 » FEIX
FAE IS is refundable upon the completion of the BREERRIBRNERBE
development and sales of the properties project of Guangxi YIZETE B M R E ST
Minggui and the amounts due from A R £& /& is interest BIRE - mERP RERK

bearing at 12% per annum and repayable in 2021.

TR FE M TR 12% 5 B AR
2021 FEE -

MR A RAT 20204
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MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 31. EOR BRI 3 o M BRE AL by (F)
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Balances with related parties/connected parties/ (d)
non-controlling shareholders/associates (Continued)

S R Wk 5B 5 e I M
K/ﬂ?ﬁﬁ‘/\jﬁﬁ.ﬁnﬁ%(mﬁ)

Amounts due to related parties/connected parties/ BB BER
non-controlling shareholders BRI RFIE
2020 2019
2020 20195
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ETR ARBFT
Trade related: B 5186
Connected parties ER
Nanjing Huizhi MREE 91,319 148,579
Lianyungang Hui Neng HEEBER 21,148 21,221
Leshan Huizhi 2| =8 - 50
Nanjing Zhonghui Construction AR ERE 53,575 53,802
Nanjing Hengjida MARELE = 516
Nanjing Huiyao A REE = 2,029
Zhonghui (Jiangsu) = (L&) 2,623 -
Nanjing Diken R 141 -
Hailan Huiyuan BEBR 65 -
168,871 226,197
Non-trade related: FEZHEHE :
Other payables due to: JERT AT 3577 69 B At JRE 1< R TE
Non—controlling shareholders R
}E;Iﬁ 2 (Note 23 (iii)) YR B (BT 23 (iif)) 144,038 209,037
AYIE 8 (Note 23 (i) RIS (BTEE 23 (i) 64,102 -
EF‘&E% (Note 23 (iii)) % B 2 (MI5E 23 (i) 7,840 -
BRI B %) (Note 23 (iii) &g B (5 23 (i) 54,017 -
FEFEEE (Note 23 (iii)) FEPE A (P RE 23 (i) 473 -
CSM (Note 25 (iv)) CSM (B EE 25 (iv) 1,610 -
Nanjing San Long (Note 23 (iv)) AR =8 (FIFE23 (v) - 52,460
Related parties BB
HES R (Note 25 (V) hEER (25 W) 133,726 103,726
Hunan Jingzhong (Note 23 (i) Hunan Jingzhong (BT & 23 (ii)) 28,280 -
Connected parties =R
Zhonghui Investment Zhonghui Investment
(Note 23 (ii)) (PRH&E 23 (i) 5,088 702
R TR (Note 25 (v) R AT (P EE 25 (v) 420,000 -
859,174 365,925

The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand except for the amount due to 8 S HTHE is interest
bearing at 1% per annum and the amount due to CSM is
interest bearing at 8% per annum. In 2019, the amount due
to FFE & Bl was interest bearing at 6% per annum.

HAILAN HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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32. OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION 32. HABB &R 2GR
(@ Reconciliation of profit (loss) before taxation to cash (@) BRBIATRA (BIR) BESEE

used in operations Wt FE 1 B 4 R
2020 2019
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Operating activities KR
Profit (Loss) before taxation FREEAT R A (B1E) 185,434 (9,140)
Adjustments for: FE
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEME - HER&E
and equipment &8 = 23
Depreciation and amortisation of property, L EIN =N 1Y 5
plant and equipment and TG BT E I b
intangible assets 2,995 3,000
Depreciation on right-of-use assets FHREEEITE 1,735 1,021
Share of results of associates DIGEE R RIFEE 3,505 -
Gain on step acquisition of a subsidiary a2 e NS e (8,953) -
Provision for (Reversal of) credit loss on YEH (B [E)) H At FE U R IR
other receivables EEEIBRE 1,547 (3457)
Impairment loss on deposits paid for BT EE T iR S R E S 1R
acquisition of land = 14,041
Write-down of properties MO R Y
under development = 1,135
Exchange alignment b 5 R (5,883) (1,151)
Finance costs BT R AR 18,458 1,730
Interest income IFSR@N (5,461) (4,335)
Forfeiture of deposits BUWR S - (745)
Realised gain on financial assets at fair BRATEGFABR ERMEE
value through profit or loss, net EEz B ERW=FE (7,292) (26,139)
Changes in fair value of KEMERTEE
investment properties 1,824 22,670
Operating profit (loss) before EEESREA 2 KEER
changes in working capital (&8) 187,909 (1,347)
Changes in working capital EEESEE
Increase in deposits paid for acquisition of W R E 2
land and properties BARS M (680,000) -
Increase in guarantee deposit paid ERFEZESIG N (195,000) -
Increase in properties under development 3% F1 ¥ 23 N (1,436,070) (452,079)
Decrease/(Increase) in completed FIEHEE B ME
properties held for sale WA, (g ) 291,264 (180,166)
Increase in contract cost B HIPAIE N (39,861) (1,183)
Increase in trade and B 5 R H A WK
other receivables 20 (22,185) (57,302)
Increase/(Decrease) in trade and B 5 K Hopth B FRIEIE AN,
other payables O ) 84,740 (128,757)
Increase in contract liabilities BHIBBEIEN 1,115,704 224,182
Increase in restricted cash 2R IR 21 N (178,651) (41,979)
Cash used in operations EIEFTANERS (872,150) (638,631)

i B A B W
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32. OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)

220

(b)
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32, HABH & B ER (4)

Reconciliation of liabilities from financing activities (b) RIE IS B A EER
Amounts Amount Amount due
Bank loans dueto dueto to a former
and other related non-controlling non-controlling Lease
borrowings parties  shareholders  shareholder liabilities Total
BIEFRR ERB%A EREER  ENREER
Eftfas B BERE BEE HEaE @zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTL ARETTL ARETTL ARETT ARETT ARETTL
At31 December 2018 and R2018F128310R
1January 2019 2019€181A - 12937 9,768 - - 22,705
Net cash flows: ReRmFE:
New bank borrowings raised EENTRIER 190,000 - - - - 190,000
New other borrowings raised SENTEMER 141,59 - - - - 141,259
Advance from non-controlling SRR RS
sharenolders - - 51,729 - - 251,729
Advance from related parties BEAEN - 8% - - - 8%
Repayment to related parties B R - (13,131) - - - (13.131)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEREaR - - - - (1,098) (1098)
Other changes: HitE
New lease g - - - - 525 5252
Accrued interests JESTAIE 726 - - - 137 863
At31December 2019 R2019%12831A 331985 702 261497 - 4291 598475
Net cash flows: BemFE:
New bank borrowings raised EENFRIER 770,000 - - - - 770,000
New other borrowings raised EENTEMER 1,607,710 - - - - 1,607,710
Repayment of bank borrowings EEFTER (4,666) - - - - (4,666)
Repayment of other borrowings EELMET (1,151,060) - - - - (1,151,060)
Advance from non-controlling FERRR SR
shareholders - - 72415 - - 72,415
Repayment to non-controlling BEE e
shareholders - - (64,999) - - (64,999)
Advance from a former AERRR DR
non-controlling shareholder - - - 1,963 - 1.963
Advance from related parties ol - 32,666 - - - 32,666
Repayment of lease liabilities ERHZaE - - - - (1,864) (1,864)
Other changes: Eftgs:
Effect on lease modffication HEEHRTE - - - - (1,356) (1,356)
Effect on step acquisition of a subsidiary 771 %MT% Glior7 190,000 - 54,017 - - 244,017
Reallocation EFipIT - - (52,460) 52,460 - -
Accrued interests fEsf 7 ,%\ 10,930 - - - 166 11,09
Exchange realignment B R (1,213) - - - (188) (1,401)
At 31 December 2020 20205 12831R 1,753,686 33,368 270,470 54,423 1,049 2,112,996
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33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 33. AN E] B BAES IR DL R
COMPANY
2020 2019
2020 & 20194F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
b5 ARET T ARET T
Non-current assets kRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries S IENEI L o 1,486,743 1,519,743
1,486,743 1,519,743
Current assets REEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E At pE Y F I8 183,814 87,484
Financial assets at fair value through BAFERABZN
profit or loss SREE 1,654 1,773
Cash and cash equivalents ReNRREEEY 21,879 155,353
207,347 244610
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables B 5 REAERFIE 12,600 31,069
Net current assets MEEEFE 194,747 213,541
NET ASSETS EERE 1,681,490 1,733,284
Capital and reserves BEARE #E
Share capital &7 2,585 2,585
Reserves ] 33(a) 1,753,770 1,765,786
Accumulated losses ZE5tEE 33(a) (74,865) (35,087)
TOTAL EQUITY R 1,681,490 1,733,284

BRI RE R 2021 F3 24 HES
e AERIRETE  YEUTEER

This statement of financial position was approved and authorised for
issue by the Board of Directors on 24 March 2021 and signed on its

behalf by: rxEE:
Zhou Li Fan Wenyi
RS 38 3%
Director Director
EF EF

WEERARA T 20209 DD
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33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)
(@ Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of
each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of the

. RN A EESIR UL ()

(@) R A CER 3 B 52 )
REBER G R & AN D 2 BT
BRSO IRE SN & s
HBER - ARBFHNEF KRR E

222

changes in the Company’s individual components of equity SRR D BB T ¢
between the beginning and the end of the year are set out below:
Reserves
e
Share Other Exchange Total  Accumulated Total
premium reserve reserve reserves losses Equity
REEE Efbits NERE BRE RithB &t
RMB000 RMB1000 RMBI000 RMBI000 RMB000 RMB000
ARBTL  ARRTR  ARETT  AR¥TR  ARMTR  ARETR
Balance at 1 January 2019 R019%51 A1 BRER 236,791 1416700 106516 1,760,007 (29065) 1730942
Loss for the year EREE - - - - (6022) (6022)
Other comprehensive income EREMEZEHRA
for the year:
Exchange differences on translation BB HHEZ 2 E%
of financial statements to E’J EREE
presentation currency - - 5779 5779 - 5779
Total comprehensive loss FRRAFRAE
for the year - - 5779 5779 (6,022) 283)
Balance at 31 December R19ENAER
2019.and 1 January 2020 W0F1 A1 8BNS 236,791 1,416,700 112,295 1,765,786 (35,087) 1,730,699
Loss for the year ERER - - - - (39,778) (39,778)
Other comprehensive loss EREMZEEE
for the year.
Exchange differences on translation BB HHEZ 2 E%
of financial statements to HEREE
presentation currency - - (12,016) (12,016) - (12,016)
Total comprehensive loss ER2EFELE
for the year - - (12,016) (12,016) (39,778) (51,794)
Balance at 31 December 2020 #2020 12 A 31 R9EEER 236,791 1,416,700 100,279 1,753,770 (74,865) 1,678,905

HAILAN HOLDINGS LIMITED
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HE2020E 128318 IEEE

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2020 and 2019

34.

34.

TP B T 2 ) B 4

MR2020F % 201912 A 31 Bz T EHK B

are as follows: NAIFFIEAT -
Place of incorporation/ Particulars of Percentage of
registration and issuedand  attributable equity interest
Name of company business paid up capital ELESE L Principal activities
KL/ BRTRAR
GES B RAFE 2020 019 FEEH
2020 2019F

Zhong Jia (Hong Kong) Investment Hong Kong ('HK") HK$10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Construction Company Limited E5([E%])) 100007 7T REZR

PR (BE)RERRBRAR

Peak Well Investment Development BVI US$50,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited RBRIES 500007 RAER

REREXRBRAR

Time Being Group Limited HK HK$10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding and

EREEERAR 55 10,0005 provision of decoration

consultancy services
REERRRAKEER
oS

Nanjing Tai Sheng City Development The PRC RMB10,000,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Co, Ltd. (formerly known as s ARE REZR
Lianyungang Tai Sheng City 10,000,000 7T
Development Co, Ltd)

ARRENTERARAF (A1
EEBREUTERARAA)

Hailan Construction Holding (Nanjing) The PRC RMB10,000,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Co, Ltd. (formerly known as i ARE REER
Lianyungang Long Ji Properties Co, Ltd.) 10,000,000 7T

BERRER(BR)BRAR"

(AIBEEAEEEXER A

Nanjing Jia Pei Investment The PRC US$500,000 100% 100% Investment holding
Management Consulting Co, Ltd H 5000003 7T REER

HRENEEERZEABRA

Sanya Feng Huang Xin Cheng The PRC RMB400,000,000 100% 100% Property development
Industrial Co, Ltd. H AEHE MELR

—oBEFRERERAA 400,0000007C

Sanya Feng Huang Shui Yun Real The PRC RMB280,000,000 100% 100% Property development
Estate Development Co, Ltd. H ARE NERRE

—DRBKERHEREERA 280,0000007C

i B A B W
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34. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) R B A FI R AR (A

224

Place of incorporation/ Particulars of Percentage of
registration and issuedand  attributable equity interest
Name of company business paid up capital EEERE T Principal activities
KL, BRTRAR
NAEH EMREEHE BAGE 2020 019 TEEH
2020 2019F
Hainan Nan Hai Xiang Long Real Estate The PRC RMB50,000,000 100% 100% Property development
Development Co, Ltd. i (2019 NEEE
BEEENEEHEREBRAR" RMB300,000,000)
ARE
50,000,000 7C
(20195 : AR%
300,000,000 7T)
Sanya Hui Xin Trading The PRC RMB57,142,857 100% 100%  Investment holding
SOEHES hE ARE REER
57,142,857 7T
Sanya Zhongzekai Industrial Co, Ltd. The PRC US$4,800,000 100% 100% Investment holding
(‘Sanya Zhongzekai’) H 48000003 T REER
SRR ERERAR
([=Ehzsd])
Zhong Ze (Hong Kong) Investment Limited ~ HK HK$10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
PE(BE)REBRAA 36 1000077 RAER
Danzhou Shuang Lian The PRC RMB412,500,000 80.09% 60% Property development
e i ARE NEER
412,500,000 7C
Sincere Graceful Holdings Limited BVI US$100 100% 100% Investment holding
AEERERL RBERAES 1007 REER
Hailan Technology Holdings Company HK HKS100 100% 100% Investment holding
Limited (formerly known as Grand BE 100387T RERR
Health (Hong Kong) Investment Co Ltd)
BERERERAR
(AIfEKEREY (BR) REBRAR)
Hylan Investment Inc. The USA US$100,000 100% 100% Investment holding
%H 1000005 7T RERR
Crossland Development Inc. The USA US$3,950,000 73% 73% Investment holding
*H 3950000% 7T REARR
Hamilton Avenue Investment, LLC The USA US$7,700,000 75% 75%  Property development
*H (2019: US$7,500,000) MEER
7,7000007C
(2019%
7,500,000 7T)
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34. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

34. BB A RS (4)

Place of incorporation/ Particulars of Percentage of
registration and issuedand  attributable equity interest
Name of company business paid up capital EEERE T Principal activities
AL/ ERRMR
AL SR REE RARE 2020 019 TEED
2020 2019%
Affix Innovation Company Limited HK HK$100 100% 100% Dormant
36 10077 TEXH
Guangdong Hailan Property Development ~ The PRC RMB7,250,000 55% 55% Investment holding
Limited (formerly known as Guangzhou (2019: RMB5,000,000) REZR
Hailan Property Development Limited) (Note i)
BEREEFHERERRAA R AR®725000070
BNEERHEREERAR") (2019% :
AE%50000007)
(¥zED)
Zhanjiang Hailan Real Estate Co,, Ltd. The PRC RMB18,180,000 55% 55% Property development
ETEEERERAR" i AR 181800007 NEERE
Hainan Hao Yue Holding (Shenzhen) The PRC RMB50,000,000 100% 100% Investment holding
Co, Ltd. i ARE RERR
BEEHER CRY) AR AR 50,000,0007C
("Hainan Hao Yue Holding’)
(DEEEHER )
Hailan Shiye (Guangzhou) Co, Ltd. The PRC RMB3,500,000 65% 65% Property development
(Hailan Shiye Guangzhou’) th (2019 RMB5,000,000) MERR
BEEZ(BMBERAR" (Note i
(MSEEXENM]) AR 35000007
(2019
AR%50000007T)
Uik
Suzhou Haiyue Real Estate Co, Ltd. The PRC RMB6,250,000 60% 60% Property development
FNEBEXBRAR i (Note i) NRER
AR 62500007
(i)
Foshan Hailu Real Estate Co, Ltd. The PRC RMB50,000,000 28.05% 55% Property development
BLEREZERAR HE (Note xx) MEERRE
ARE
50,000,000 7T
GE2)

WELMARAT 202048 D)5
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34. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) . BB A R R 5 (AE)
Place of incorporation/ Particulars of Percentage of
registration and issuedand  attributable equity interest
Name of company business paid up capital EtERZE Principal activities
EREL/ BRTRAR
NAER EMREEHE Bzt 2020 019 EEED
2020 2019%
Hylan at Sierra Vista Development, Inc. The USA US$3,325,000 100% 100% Investment holding
%8 (2019: US$5,000,000) REARR
3325000% 7T
(2019
5000,000%7T)
200 Ocean Boulevard, Inc. The USA US$12,725,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
%6 12,725000% 7 REER
200 Ocean Boulevard, LLC The USA 1S$22,300,000 75% 75% Property development
*H 22,300,000 7T NEER

Hailan (Southeast Asia) HK HK$10,000 65% - Dormant
Development Company Limited EB 10,0005t EEx

BE(REZ)ERERAA

Nanjing Hailan Hao Yue Properties Co, Ltd. ~ The PRC RMB6,250,000 60% - Properties development

HRBEEMESXBRAT HE (Note iv) NEER

AR 62500007
(FizEiv)

Shenzhen Hailan Hao Yue Investment The PRC RMBT1,000,000 65% - Investment holding
Development Co, Ltd. i (Note v) REZR

A EEEIREERBRAF AR 100000070

G

Shenzhen Hailan Run Shi Investment The PRC - 39.65% - Investment holding
Development Co, Ltd. i (Note vi, xx) REZR

R EEREREERAR! -

(Bt v~ xd)

Guangdong Jinzhong The PRC - 47.20% - Investment holding
Hongpeng Zhiye Co, Ltd. ’:P (Note vii, xx) BEER
('Guangdong Jinzhong Hongpeng’) -

EReBREEXARAT (PRZEvii ~ )

((ER&ERE])
Jiangxi Hailan The PRC - 42.25% = Investment holding
IFRE H (Note viii, xx) REER

HAILAN HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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34. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

. TR A mI R Al ()

Place of incorporation/ Particulars of Percentage of
registration and issuedand  attributable equity interest
Name of company business paid up capital EtERZE Principal activities
KL, BRTRAR
NAER EMREEHE Bzt 2020 019 TEFH
2020 2019F
Guangxi Hailan Jinzhong The PRC - 33.15% - Investment holding
Properties Co, Ltd. H (Note ix, xx) REZK
EESESEELARD -
(3T )
Guangxi Datong Real Estate The PRC RMB800,000 33.15% - Investment holding
Development Co, Ltd. H (Note x, xx) REZR
ERABEHEREERAR AR 8000007
(Bt 5Ex )
Guangxi Minggui The PRC RMB33,499,000 28.18% - Property development
BB i (Note xi, xxi) MEER
AR 334990007
(Bt~ xd)
Hong Yang Technology (Shenzhen) The PRC - 100% - Dormant
Co, Ltd, H (Note xii) EmER
AERE ORI BR AT -
(ki)
Hong Xin Technology (Shenzhen) The PRC - 100% - Dormant
Co, Ltd. th (Note i) TEX
AVERIE (R BR A -
(Bt i)
Qinzhou Tianmao Properties Co, Ltd. The PRC RMB3,333,000 41.83% - Property development
PMNMAKEZERA HE (Note xxi) NEERE
ARH33330007C
(P&t xd)
Jiangxi Hai Ao Real Estate The PRC - 50% = Investment holding
Development Co, Ltd. H (Note xiv, xxi) REER
IRERENEREERAR" -
GETR)
* These entities are PRC limited liability companies. The English translation of the * %? EATRAREIAR - AFHEX

company names is for reference only. The official names of the companies are in

Chinese.

ZHe
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

34.

228

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(xi)

(xii)

(xii)

(xiv)

The registered share capital is RMB50,000,000 and the remaining registered share
capital of RMB24,750,000 is committed by the Group to inject on or before 31
December 2039.

The registered share capital is RMB50,000,000 and the remaining registered share
capital of RMB32,500,000 is committed by the Group to inject on or before 31
December 2050.

The registered share capital is RMB50,000,000 and the remaining registered share
capital of RMB26,250,000 is committed by the Group to inject on or before 31 August
2049.

The registered share capital is RMB50,000,000 and the remaining registered share
capital of RMB3,750,000 is committed by the Group to inject on or before 10 February
2021 and RMB22,500,000 is committed by the Group to inject on or before 10 August
2025.

The registered share capital is RMB50,000,000 and the remaining registered share
capital of RMB31,850,000 is committed by the Group to inject on or before 30 June
2050.

The registered share capital is RMB10,000,000 and the registered share capital of
RMB3,965,000 is committed by the Group to inject on or before 30 June 2050.

The registered share capital is RMB50,000,000 and the registered share capital of
RMB23,598,250 is committed by the Group to inject on or before 31 December 2050.

The registered share capital is RMB10,000,000 and the registered share capital of
RMB4,225,000 is committed by the Group to inject on or before 21 June 2040.

The registered share capital is RMB20,000,000 and the registered share capital of
RMB6,630,000 is committed by the Group to inject on or before 31 December 2050.

The registered share capital is RMB12,000,000 and the remaining registered share
capital of RMB2,780,200 is committed by the Group to inject on or before 31
December 2030.

The registered share capital is RMB100,000,000 and the remaining registered share
capital of RMB6,859,950 is committed by the Group to inject on or before 31
December 2030.

The registered share capital is US$100,000 and is committed by the Group to inject
on or before 15 May 2050.

The registered share capital is RMB10,000,000 and is committed by the Group to
inject on or before 15 May 2050.

The registered share capital is RMB10,000,000 and the registered share capital of
RMB5,000,000 is committed by the Group to inject on or before 6 July 2050.
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GEX

0}

(i)

(iii)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

AIRIRE %5 (48)

FEM AR A A A R % 50,000,000 7 + AN B #GE
M 2039F 12 A 31 B Z AE AR T AR A
AR 24,750,000 7T ©

FEM AR A A A R % 50,000,000 7 + AN B EGE
2050 12 A 31 B Z A AR T AR A
AR 32,500,000 7T ©

FEM AR A A A R % 50,000,000 7 + AN B #GE
R 2049F 8 A 31 Bk Z AEABR T s MARA
AR 26,250,000 7T ©

FEM AR A A A R % 50,000,000 7 + AN B #GE
7202142 A 10 Az BE A SR T R AR AR
AR #3,750,0007T » B AN £ B A& 72 2025 4
8 A 10 Al z ATyEA AR 22,500,000 7T ©

FEM AR A A A R 50,000,000 7T + AN E#FGE
#2050 6 A 30 A sk 2 BEABR T Rt B AR
AR 31,850,000 7T ©

FEM AR A A A R % 10,000,000 7T © AN S @
20509 6 A30 Ask 2 AEAFEMBEAAR
3 965,000 7T °

FEM AR A A A R % 50,000,000 7T © AN EFE
20504 12 A31 Bk Z AT AGTMARAAR
523,598,250 7T °

FEM AR A A A R % 10,000,000 7T © A S EFEE
2040 6 A21 B Z AEAFMBRAAR
54,225,000 7T °

FEM AR A A A R 20,000,000 7T+ AN @
20504 12 A31 Bk Z AT AGTMARAAR
6,630,000 7T °

FEM AR A A A RE 12,000,000 7T © AEEFEE
20304 12 A 31 B Z B AR T AR A
AR 2,780,200 7T °

FE AR AR A A R #100,000,000 7T ¢ AN 5 B
2030 12 A 31 A Z ATE AR T aE AR
RARH 6,859,950 T °

FEMAR A & 100,000 3T © AL E A
FSHISAKZANEA ©

2050

FEM AR A A A R % 10,000,000 7 + AN B #GE
205045 A 15 BRZATVEA °

AR A A AR 10,000,000 7T + AN [ A
M2050F7 A6 A 2 ANEAFMRAAR
5,000,000 7T ©
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HE2020E 128318 IEEE
INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

34.

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

(xxi)

The Company'’s indirect wholly-owned subsidiary, Nanjing Bai Rui Ze Property Co,,
Ltd. (B & I B 2 A IR A 7)) was deregistered on 15 October 2020.

The Company's indirect wholly-owned subsidiary, Affix Innovation Capital, LLC was
deregistered on 21 April 2020.

The Company's indirect wholly-owned subsidiary, Nanjing Hailan Estate Co, Ltd. (7

RBEEEAMRAF]) was deregistered on 14 October 2020.

The Company's indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary, Suzhou Haiyao Real Estate Co,,
Ltd. (BRI B2 B 2 E R A 7)) was deregistered on 29 December 2020.

The Company's indirect wholly-owned subsidiary, Changshu Haiheng Real Estate Co,,
Ltd. (BB B E£ AR A a]) was deregistered on 24 September 2020.

The contribution from non-controlling interests represented the injection of paid-up
capital by non-controlling shareholders.

These companies are held by the Group through more than one tier of shareholding
structure which leads to effective equity interest attributable to the Group in these
companies to be less than 50% while penetrating to the bottom shareholding.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or

formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give

details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

The following table lists out the information relating to Danzhou Shuang
Lian, 200 Ocean Boulevard, LLC and Guangxi Minggui (2019: Danzhou
Shuang Lian), the subsidiaries of the Group which have a material non-

controlling interests (“NCI"). The summarised financial information

presented below represents the amounts before any inter-company

elimination.

34.

P BA Ja 2~ ) 4 HEE i (468

B E

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

(xxi)

(&)

AARNEEEZENBAREROMEEE
ARATDH 20204 10 A 15 BEUHEM ©

KA E K 6 5 2 & BB A R Affix Innovation
Capital, LLCE R 20206 4 A 21 BEUHEM ©

RAARMNEEZENBARERSEEXSR
RABIER 20204 10 A 14 AEUH R -

AARMEEFZENBARGFNEGREE
BRAFER 2020412 A 29 AEUH M -

ARANEEZEMBAREHEEEXSA
RARIER 20205 9 A 24 HEUHE ©

FEE R S M E AR EIAME BE
o

ZERABAEERBIER - ENRFRERE
FE SEAKERZERRNEHERK
REDH50% - B2 E 2 HIEFR -

%%:M% ERFAHIA R R B R A

BYEFEXEIBRAE léf%z@
TEE’]E?(*B

E’”}ﬁ%i\\j i%wujﬂ_’r'

REEMHBEARNFEEERZRES
RILE -

TRINTEERNEE R ERIETRE
H((EERER]) 2B RBEME
% ~ 200 Ocean Boulevard, LLC % J& P8 18 &

(20194F : f& M &1

FRER - T2

2B ERBEREAARMEYEHEAC
FRIE o

MR A RAT 20204
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34.

230

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 34, JAKEA RS (48)
Danzhou Shuang Lian 1% JH & 1

2020 2019

2020 F 20194F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET ARETT

NCl percentage R ER A DL 19.91% 40%
Current assets mENEE 1,355,736 594,831
Non-current assets ERENEE 14,800 13,246
Current liabilities mEEE (580,832) (113,143)
Non-current liabilities ERBAEE (359,002) (59,002)
Net assets BEFE 430,702 435,932
Carrying amount of NCI FEE AR 2 M BRI (B 153,184 240,943
Revenue W= 1,215 774
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year & A 518 & 2 H K5 1B 42 %8 (5,230) (45,521)
Loss attributable to NCl FEVEAR e e FE S 1R (1,648) (26,462)
Cash flows used in operating activities L EEATRAMIR SR (730,480) (56,143)
Cash flows (used in) from investing activities & Z5EE (FTA) EA IR SR (647) 7
Cash flows from financing activities BVEEEEAMIBER 731,240 58,279

In year 2013 and 2014, the Group entered into a series of
investment agreements with Nanjing San Long and Danzhou
Shuang Lian, where the Group eventually acquired 60% of the
equity interests of Danzhou Shuang Lian from Nanjing San Long
in January 2014 (the "Acquisition I"). The Danzhou Shuang Lian
project is divided into Danzhou Phase | and Danzhou Phase II. At
the time of the Acquisition |, Danzhou Phase | with an area of
approximately 89 mu was partially under development and was in
the process of pre-sale, while Danzhou Phase Il with an area of
approximately 569 mu was a piece of undeveloped land. Pursuant
to the relevant investment agreements, Nanjing San Long as the
non-controlling shareholder continued to manage, develop and
undertake fully the risk and reward of Danzhou Phase | until its
completion and disposal. The books and records, including
ledgers and bank accounts of Danzhou Phase | and Danzhou
Phase Il are maintained separately. Danzhou Phase | is an
autonomous and operationally distinct business division that
would remain under the direction of Nanjing San Long after the
Acquisition .
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34. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(@)

Danzhou Shuang Lian (Continued)

In August 2020, Guangdong Jinzhong Hongpeng, an indirect joint
venture engaged in investment holding which is incorporated
and conducts its business in the PRC was established and was
held as to 38.37% by Hailan Shiye Guangzhou, an indirect non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company which is held as to 65%
by Hainan Hao Yue Holding, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. In September 2020, Guangdong Jinzhong Hongpeng
acquired 29.208% equity interests in Danzhou Shuang Lian at a
consideration of RMB385.2 million; and Danzhou Shuang Lian
became an associate of Guangdong Jinzhong Hongpeng. In
November 2020, Hailan Shiye Guangzhou further acquired 34.24%
equity interests in Guangdong Jinzhong Hongpeng and a debt
due from Guangdong Jinzhong Hongpeng of RMB67.5 million (the
"Acquisition II") at a total consideration of RMB75.5 million.
Guangdong Jinzhong Hongpeng was 72.61% held by Hailan Shiye
Guangzhou and became a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company since then.

Upon the completion of Acquisition Il, a gain on step acquisition
of RMB8.9 million was recognised in profit or loss as a result of
measuring at fair value of previously held interests in Guangdong
Jinzhong Hongpeng and the Company has 13.79% effective
equity interest in Danzhou Shuang Lian, through holding 65%
equity interests in Hailan Shiye Guangzhou which holds 72.61%
equity interests in Guangdong Jinzhong Hongpeng, a non-wholly
owned subsidiaries of the Company.

34. BB A RS (4)

(€))

s JH 2 gk (#0)

R2020F8H  BR&EBEIE(—
R HA A B S AR S 3 1T 2 AS RO R
BEEDLE  HF/REETR)KI
MEAERABINEZEIEZENBE AR
BEBEXEEMFA3837%ER - M
BEBEXEMNBARARNZEN B
REEEEMIERIFE 65% i am
R2020F 98 - BRSEBEIAA
R #3852 5 & 7T &9 X8 U HE 1 N
S T8 49 29.208% A% A ¢ % 1E I EE B
RAEREEBBENEEAT - B
2020F 11 B - BEFTEEMUAR
K755 EETTMBREE — P
E R & 5B B A 34.249% RS Ko JIE Uk
EReERENESARKSH
Erx((WENn) - ER£ERER
BEBXEREMNFE 7261%#m - I
Bt ARAFRNIEEZEMER
ET °

IREBEIER 2 - AR AR
EReEBBESOAFERTE -
oLl ARESOBETT
EREETER - MAQRRBE
EBEEEERM(EBEARARIE
rENBLRAAERESEBEN
72.61% A% HE ) B65% IR 4 - HE B 1E
P EER A 13.79% B B A -
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34. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(@)

Danzhou Shuang Lian (Continued)

34. BB AR RE SR (48)
(@) & PN I (4)

Details of the carrying value and fair value of the Group's BRAEBLABEENERSER
previously held equity interest in Guangdong Jinzhong Hongpeng PERS HE A UL BB 118 B BREE XA
at the date of Acquisition Il are summarised as follows: SEEMFFIEE M T
RMB'000
ARETT
Fair value of previously held equity interest LRI BHREATE 8953
Interest in Guangdong Jinzhong Hongpeng RERSEBIEAEZR -
Gain on step acquisition Al g 8,953
The fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities of Guangdong BR S EBRE NS B &R
Jinzhong Hongpeng as at the date of Acquisition Il were as FIEERBEHAFERAT
follows:
RMB'000
ARETTT
Interest in an associate AN OF o 384,864
Other receivables E e IR 1,000
Cash and cash equivalents ReMRSEEY 998
Amounts due to shareholders FEARR R SRIE (54,017)
Other borrowings HER (190,000)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BN EFENTHAFEERR 142,845
Non-controlling interests VAR M 2 97
Total identifiable net assets at fair value attributable to ~ ZN&2 Bl fE(G 1 A F{EFHE M) 7] B BIF
the Group BEMR 142,942
Transaction with non-controlling interests EBRIEIER AR IR 5 17,209
160,151

Satisfied by:
Cash consideration
Debt due from Guangdong Jinzhong Hongpeng

AT 7S B
REeRE 75,526
BB A EBRNEREEBIENES

within the Group 75,672
Fair value of previously held equity interest SR BHREANTE 8953
160,151
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

34.

(@)

Danzhou Shuang Lian (Continued)

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the step acquisition of
Guangdong Jinzhong Hongpeng is as follows:

. TR A mI R Al ()

s JH 2 gk (#0)

RS PWEERSERBEANRS
MEMDHTLT :

RMB'000

ARETT

Cash consideration paid ERReRE 75,526
Cash and cash equivalents acquired EWERE RIBSEEY (998)
Net cash outflow arising from the step acquisition DA WEEE A RIRE R T FE 74528

The total consideration of the Acquisition Il included cash
consideration paid of RMB8.0 million, the fair value of previously
held equity interest in Guangdong Jinzhong Hongpeng of RMB8.9
million and the carrying value of the interests in Danzhou Shuang
Lian of RMB384.9 million were in aggregate of RMB401.8 million.
The Group derecognised non-controlling interests of RMB59.1
million and recognised the difference of RMB342.7 million
between the change of the carrying amount of the non-
controlling interests of RMB59.1 million and the fair value of the
total consideration given of RMB401.8 million in transactions with
non-controlling interests reserve within equity.

In November 2020, Hailan Shiye Guangzhou further acquired 9.7%
of the issued shares of Danzhou Shuang Lian at a consideration of
RMB105.4 million (the “Acquisition Ill"). The carrying amount of
the non-controlling interests in Danzhou Shuang Lian on the date
of Acquisition Ill was RMB27 million. The Group derecognised non-
controlling interests of RMB27 million and recognised the
difference of RMB78.4 million between the change of the carrying
amount of the non-controlling interests and the fair value of the
consideration given in transactions with non-controlling interests
reserve within equity.

Upon the completion of the Acquisition Il and Acquisition ll, the
Group holds 80.09% effective equity interests in Danzhou Shuang
Lian.

WEINAREREENRERE
ARKsOBE L AFANE
ReERIEREAFEARKSS
BETTUA R AMEN SR SR
BEAREIBETEEAAR
B4018B &I NEEKIEER
RS ARSI BRI I
FAMESS NTE B IEIE IR 2 O X 5
HHRERIFERE=REEZHA
R#so 1 BEITHMBEHRHBRED
NEFEAREL018EH B T ZEH
EZEEAREM7TEETT -
B2020F 11 8 BEEEEMMU
ARBIAEETTHRELE—F
U B8 = N EE BB D 0.7% B B2 1T B 1D
(TWEBB ) o PPN EEBE A SE4R A%
EEPREBINEENEREAAR
¥ 27 BETT o AEEKR IFERIETE
BiEm ARK7BEL  WHER
NEEIFERERHR GG R
RIEE R R R EE S B TR
RENAFEZHNEZBARE
784BETT °

AU IR WBITRE  ~NEE
B E MR 80.09% BERALHE
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

34.

234

(@)

Danzhou Shuang Lian (Continued)

The assets and liabilities as well as revenue, cost of sales and other
items in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income related to Danzhou Phase | have been
included as part of the assets and liabilities as well as profit or loss
and other comprehensive income items of Danzhou Shuang Lian
as they are not legally separable from other assets and liabilities as
well as profit or loss and other comprehensive income items
related to Danzhou Phase II. Notwithstanding the fact that the
nominal NCI percentage of Danzhou Shuang Lian is 19.91%, the
economic interest of the non-controlling shareholder was
calculated at 100% interest of Danzhou Phase | and 19.91%
interest of Danzhou Phase II.

The net profit or loss, net assets or liabilities arising from Danzhou
Phase | are wholly attributable to, and accordingly are deducted
through the inclusion of such amounts in, the non-controlling
interests in the Group's consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income and the consolidated statement
of changes in equity.
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34. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 34. AMTE A AR RS ()
(b) 200 Ocean Boulevard, LLC (b) 200 Ocean Boulevard, LLC

2020

2020

RMB’000

AR¥ TR

NCI percentage JEERERA DL 25%
Current assets MENEE 184,473
Current liabilities mENAE (28,067)
Non-current liabilities ERHERE (13,376)

Net assets BEFE 143,030
Carrying amount of NCl| R E SR REE 35,758
Revenue Wz -

Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year FREENEHEEEARE (2,475)

Loss attributable to NCI IR E R B B 1E (619)
Cash flows used in operating activities KRB FTARER SR (50,657)
Cash flows used in investing activities HEESFTARESR (188)

Cash flows from financing activities BEEEBEAMIB SR 51,220
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34. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(0

34. BB AR RE SR (48)

Guangxi Minggui (c) FEPYWSAE

2020

2020

RMB’000

ARB TR

NCI percentage JEERERA D 71.82%
Current assets MENEE 662,916
Non-current assets EMENEE 4,165
Current liabilities mENEE (447,663)
Net assets BEFE 219,418
Carrying amount of NC| FEE R SR ARE(E 204,486
Revenue Wz -
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year FREENEHEEEARE (12,664)
Loss attributable to NCl IR R B B 1E (9,095)
Cash flows from operating activities KEEBELRRESR 249,534
Cash flows used in investing activities HEESFTARESR (243,271)
Cash flows from financing activities BEEEEAMIB SR 94,480
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35.

2020012 A31BIEFE

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY
BN RREEARQT “RXKEX”)

On 16 October 2020, Jiangxi Hailan, an indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company and & FB&8 /& hE2 R R AR A 7] and
M REARE BBRA A (together as the “Vendors”) entered into an
asset transfer agreement pursuant to which Jiangxi Hailan agreed to
acquire and the Vendors agreed to sell in aggregate 99% of equity
interests in X% & % and the amounts due to Vendors in aggregate of
RMB41,757,000 at total consideration of RMB101,740,000. The sole asset
and liabilities of X% & % are holding land use rights of the land parcels
situated at Laijiao Chuipian District, Qinzhou City, Guangxi Zhuang
Autonomous Region, the PRC and the amounts due to shareholders of
RMB41,757,000. This acquisition was completed on 16 October 2020. The
fair value of the asset was assessed to be RMB102,767,000 by the
management based on valuation from an independent valuer.

The Group has elected to measure the non-controlling interests in
K 7% B 2 at its proportionate share of the acquired identifiable assets.
The amount of the non-controlling interests at the acquisition date
amounted to approximately RMB1,028,000.

During the reporting period, the Group has paid RMB44,832,000 out of
the total consideration of RMB101,740,000 for the acquisition of these
lands which is recorded as properties under development. At the end of
the reporting period, the consideration payables of RMB56,908,000 and
respective interest payables of RMB473,000 were included in other
payables under current liabilities. The consideration payables are interest
bearing at 3.85% per annum and repayable in 2021.

35.

WAL B )G 2 )
ZMBTREBEEERAR(TRKE
ES))

R 2020F 10 A16 H » RARKEEIES
EWBARIASERERESHME
BRBEEERARERRMTRELEGR
RNEl(GEERF DI LEES ZHE -
B IASEREKE  mMEARE
PEXRKEZES LB IERENE S
FIEA HE AR 417570007 AREA
AR ¥E101,7400007C © KK B ERME—
BENEBEAFBBURTREEAMKE
SRR SN T ERUEE B @ M 3R B9 1 M (5 P
LA B FE A A SR AR A R 8 41,757,000
TT o ZUEEE F 20204 10 A 16 B 72K ©
EEEREB Y GEMOGEETEEE
B A E A AREE 102,767,000 7T ©

AEBECERZAUBRENEENL
IRt ERKE XA IFERER - 1
Wi AR RS RO RARE
1,028,000 7 °

R|EHRN TEEEZHERBAR
#101,740,0007C ) A & % 44,832,000
T WBEWEZE T WET ARE
P RIRER BRAREARK
56,908,000 7T M & JE 1~ F1| B A R # 473,000
TEFAMRBEEIET A EME R
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36. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

238

In

addition to information disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated

financial statements, the Group has the following events after 31
December 2020.

@)

Acquisition of land use rights in Danzhou, the PRC

On 6 January 2021, Danzhou Shuang Lian and Hailan Shiye
(Guangzhou) Co,, Ltd (“Hailan Shiye Guangzhou”), indirect non
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company and Hunan Jinzhong
(collectively the “Transferees”), received a confirmation letter
from Danzhou Huijian Auction Co., Ltd. to confirm that the
Transferees have successfully won the bid for the auction for the
land use rights of a land situated at “Merry Home" Resettlement
Area, Binhai New District, Danzhou, Hainan, the PRC, together with
the properties on the land parcel at a consideration of
RMB1,080,000,000.

The consideration of RMB1,080,000,000 will be contributed by the
Transferees in the proportion of 50% for Danzhou Shuang Lian,
35% for Hailan Shiye Guangzhou and 15% for Hunan Jinzhong.

As a result of successfully winning the bid for the auction, the
asset transfer agreement is entered into by the Transferee and
Management Committee of Binhai New District of Danzhou on 7
January 2021.

On 29 January 2021, a certificate of The People’s Republic of China

Real Property of the land for approximately 24,800 square meters
was obtained.
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36. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD (Continued)

(ii)

Formation of joint venture

On 2 February 2021, Danzhou Shuang Lian entered into a JV
agreement (the "JV Agreement”) with Hailan Shiye Guangzhou
and Hunan Jinzhong, pursuant to which all parties agreed to
establish a joint venture company in the PRC to principally engage
in real estate development in the PRC in relation to the acquisition
of the land parcel as mentioned in above (i).

Pursuant to the terms of the JV Agreement, the registered capital
of the joint venture is RMB5,000,000. Danzhou Shuang Lian, Hailan
Shiye Guangzhou and Hunan Jinzhong will contribute
RMB2,500,000, RMB1,750,000 and RMB750,000 respectively,
representing 50%, 35% and 15% of the registered capital of the
joint venture.

The arrangements of the JV Agreement is detailed in the
Company's announcement dated 10 February 2021.
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Financial Summary

A B 2

Results & For the year ended 31 December
BEZ12831ALEE
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
2016 F 20174 20184F 20194F 2020 F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Revenue Wizs 1,400,827 2,005,308 1410474 354,688 720,670
Profit (Loss) before taxation BREIATS T (E518) 231410 780,832 544,002 (9,140) 185,434
Income tax expenses FT8Hi 2 (183,366) (521,320) (362,923) (47,497) (153,478)
Profit (Loss) for the year FRaH (BE)
(from continuing operations) CREFELEER) 48,044 259,512 181,079 (56,637) 31,956
Post-tax profit o BRI EEBRTBIE
discontinued operations piakl - - - - -
Profit (Loss) for the year FEREM (E18) 48,044 259512 181,079 (56,637) 31,956
Attributable to: THIA T FELG
Owners of the Company KARHEA 65012 251,181 179,538 (18,.897) 64,034
Non-controlling interests RS (16,968) 8,331 1,541 (37,740) (32,078)
Profit (Loss) for the year FREM (E18) 48,044 259512 181,079 (56,637) 31,956
Assets and Liabilities BEERERE As at 31 December
®12A318
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
2016 F 20174 20184F 20194F 2020 F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTT ARETT ARETT AREFTT AR¥ETR
Total assets BEE 5,264,842 5,194,638 5,043,240 4943414 7,543,276
Total liabilities war 3,576,328 3,259,117 2,893,816 2826229 5,629,318
Net assets EETE 1,688,514 1,935,521 2,149,424 2117185 1,913,958
Equity attributable to the EREHEB A
owners of the Company JEiL R 1368873 1,606,571 1,811,257 1852442 = 1,484,553
Non-controlling interests PRI 319,641 328,950 338,167 264,743 429,405
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